PROJECT MANUAL

KITCHEN CABINET REPLACEMENTS AT ROSA K RAGSDALE & JAMES A LONG COMMUNITIES

for the

PALATKA HOUSING AUTHORITY

CRG ARCHITECTS/PALATKA, INC.
JOB NO. 016Z04

KITCHEN CABINET REPLACEMENTS AT ROSA K RAGSDALE AND JAMES A LONG COMMUNITIES

for

THE PALATKA HOUSING AUTHORITY 400 NORTH 15TH STREET PALATKA, FL 32177

ARCHITECT'S JOB NUMBER: 016Z04

ARCHITECTS

CRG Architects/Palatka, Inc. 216A St. Johns Avenue Palatka, Florida 32177 Tel: 386-325-0213

Fax: 386-328-1401

E: crgarchitects@comcast.net

January 16, 2025

TABLE OF CONTENTS

DIVISION 0 BIDDING AND CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS

00020 INVITATION FOR BIDS

00040 CONFIDENTIAL BIDDER QUALIFICATIONS FORM 00099 SUPPLEMENTAL INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

00100 INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

00101 REPRESENTATIONS, CERTIFICATIONS AND OTHER STATEMENTS OF BIDDERS

00130 PRE-BID CONFERENCE

00200 INFORMATION AVAILABLE TO BIDDERS

00300 BID CHECKLIST 00310 BID FORM

00400 BID FORM ATTACHMENT

00410 BID BOND

00420 CERTIFICATE OF CONTRACTOR'S LICENSE

00421 FORM OF CONTRACTOR'S CERTIFICATE AND RELEASE

00480 NON-COLLUSIVE AFFIDAVIT

00510 FORM OF CONTRACT

00600 PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

00700 GENERAL CONDITIONS 00811 SPECIAL CONDITIONS

00812 FEDERAL LABOR STANDARDS PROVISIONS

00820 PREVAILING WAGE RATE

00832 PREVIOUS PARTICIPATION CERTIFICATE

DIVISION 1 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS01005

ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS

01010 SUMMARY OF WORK

01019 CONTRACT CONSIDERATIONS

01040 COORDINATION

01041 PROJECT COORDINATION
01045 CUTTING AND PATCHING
01060 REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

01110 UNIT PRICES

01200 PROJECT ADMINISTRATION

01300 SUBMITTALS 01400 QUALITY CONTROL

01500 CONSTRUCTION FACILITIES AND TEMPORARY CONTROL

01600 MATERIAL AND EQUIPMENT

01701 CONTRACT CLOSEOUT PROCEDURES

01710 FINAL CLEANING

DIVISION 2 SITE WORK

02050 DEMOLITION AND REMOVAL 02070 SELECTIVE DEMOLITION

DIVISION 3 – 5 NOT USED

DIVISION 6 WOOD AND PLASTICS 06200 FINISH CARPENTRY

DIVISION 7 - 8 NOT USED

DIVISION 9 FINISHES

09650 RESILIENT FLOORING

09901 PAINTING

DIVISION 10 NOT USED

DIVISION 11 EQUIPMENT

11450 RESIDENTIAL EQUIPMENT

DIVISION 12 FURNISHINGS

12370 RESIDENTIAL KITCHEN CABINETS

KITCHEN CABINET REPLACEMENTS AT ROSA K RAGSDALE & JAMES A LONG COMMUNITIES

TABLE OF CONTENTS

DIVISION 15MECHANICAL
15400
PLUMBING, GENERAL

DIVISION 16 NOT USED

END OF TABLE

DOCUMENT 00020

INVITATION FOR BIDS

PHA: Palatka Housing Authority

400 North 15th Street Palatka, Florida 32177

Architect: CRG Architects/Palatka, Inc.

216 St. Johns Avenue Palatka, Florida 32177

Contact: Joseph Kuehmeier, Architect

Phone: 386.325.0213

Contractors are invited to submit a sealed offer to the PHA located at the above address, before 2:00 p.m. local time on the 6th day of February 2025. Bids will be publicly opened at 2:00 p.m. in the Board Room of the Palatka Housing Authority for the following Project:

KITCHEN CABINET REPLACEMENTS AT ROSA K RAGSDALE & JAMES A LONG COMMUNITIES PALATKA HOUSING AUTHORITY PALATKA, FLORIDA

Contract will be on a Stipulated Price basis.

All work shall be executed in accordance with the instruction and contract documents prepared by CRG Architects/Palatka, Inc. Bid Documents shall be available via email by calling CRG Architects/Palatka, Inc., at 386-325-0213. Documents will be issued to Contractors and Subcontractors. Bid Documents are available via email by calling CRG Architects/Palatka, Inc., 386-325-0213.

A Bid Security in the form of a Bid Bond, a certified check or bank draft payable to the PHA, or U. S. Government Bonds of a sum no less than 5% of the Bid price is required.

The successful bidders shall provide performance and payment bonds or combination contract bond for one hundred percent (100%) of the contract Price.

All bids shall be addressed to the Palatka Housing Authority, Attn: Willie Mae Thomas, Director of Capital Funds Operations. All bids shall be labeled: "KITCHEN CABINET REPLACEMENTS AT ROSA K RAGSDALE & JAMES A LONG COMMUNITIES."

A Pre-Bid Conference will be held on January 16, 2025, at 10:00 a.m. local time, in the Board Room of the Palatka Housing Authority (400 North 15th Street, Palatka). All bidders or the representatives are encouraged to be in attendance for a complete review of the project. After questions are discussed, bidders may examine the project site. Clarifications from this meeting will be issued by Addenda. The last day for questions to be submitted shall be ten (10) calendar days prior to the date of bid submission. Attention is called to the requirement in the proposed Contract Documents for the Bidder to examine the site and familiarize himself with local conditions affecting the work.

Bidder's attention is called to the requirement that not less than the minimum salaries and wages as set forth in the Specifications shall be paid on this project. A Non-collusive Affidavit, bearing an original signature, is required to be submitted with the Bid Form.

Refer to other bidding requirements described in Supplemental Instructions to Bidders (Section 00099) and HUD Form 5369 - Instructions to Bidders, dated 10/02 (Section 00100).

Bidders are required to submit bids on unaltered Bid Form provided by the Architect.

Offer will be required to be submitted under a condition of irrevocability for 60 days after submission. The PHA reserves the right to accept or reject any and all Bids or to waive any informalities in the bidding.

Palatka Housing Authority

By: Willie Mae Thomas

Director of Capital Fund Operations

DOCUMENT 00040

CONFIDENTIAL BIDDER QUALIFICATION FORM

nitted hv:				
itted by:				
ess:	4:			
	State:		Tel: <u>()</u>	
TYPE OF FIRM:				
Corporation		Partnership		
Sole Proprietorship	Years in	Business:		
OFFICERS, PARTNERS OR O	WNERS & CONSTRUC	CTION EXPERIE	NCE	
		Yea	ars of Experience in Classificat	ion of Work
Name	Title		listed	
NUMBER OF PERSONNEL IN	OPCANIZATION:			
		ring	Office	
	Enginee	ring	Office	
Shop	Field			
REFERENCES:				
Bank(s) Maintaining Account	(s):			
Suppliers:				

Year	Name of Project	Architect/Engineer*	Contract Amount
l .		1	
VERAGE ANNUAL	BILLING FOR LAST FIVE YEA	RS \$	
OTAL WORK IN PR	ROGRESS AND UNDER CONTI	RACT \$	
IST MAIOD WORK	LINDER CONTRACT:		
IST MAJOR WORK	UNDER CONTRACT:		
		Architect/Fngineer*	Contract Amount
IST MAJOR WORK % Complete	UNDER CONTRACT: Name of Project	Architect/Engineer*	Contract Amount
		Architect/Engineer*	Contract Amount
	Name of Project		
	Name of Project	Architect/Engineer* Architect/Engineer*	
% Complete	Name of Project *Required – Name, telephon	ne number, address and contact pers	on
% Complete	Name of Project *Required – Name, telephon		on
% Complete	Name of Project *Required – Name, telephon	ne number, address and contact pers	on
% Complete	Name of Project *Required – Name, telephon	ne number, address and contact pers	on
% Complete	Name of Project *Required – Name, telephon	ne number, address and contact pers	on
% Complete	Name of Project *Required – Name, telephon	ne number, address and contact pers	on
% Complete	Name of Project *Required – Name, telephon	ne number, address and contact pers	on
% Complete	Name of Project *Required – Name, telephon	ne number, address and contact pers	on
% Complete	Name of Project *Required – Name, telephon	ne number, address and contact pers	on

10.	HAVE YOU AT ANY TIME FAILED TO COMPLET	TE A CONTRACT?					
	YES NO						
	ARE THERE ANY JUDGMENTS, CLAIMS OR SUITES PENDING OR OUTSTANDING AGAINST YOU?						
	YES 🗆 NO 🗆	YES NO					
	IF THE ANSWER TO EITHER QUESTION IS YE	ES, SUBMIT DETAILS ON SEPARATE SHEET.					
	LIST ALL LAWSUITS YOUR FIRM HAS FILED I	DUE TO CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS IN THE LAST FIVE YEARS:					
11.	FINANCIAL STATEMENT						
	Current Assets	\$					
	Fixed Assets (Depreciated)	\$					
	Other Assets	\$					
	TOTAL ASSETS	\$					
	Current Liabilities	\$					
	Long Term Liabilities	\$					
	TOTAL LIABILITIES	\$					
	NET WORTH	\$					
	Date of latest Balance Sheet:						
	Prepared byupon request .	, a certified Public Accountant, and available					
	Dated at, this	s day of, 20					
inform qualific and ac Surety any cr includi	ation as required with the understanding the cations of this organization to perform the type ccuracy of all statements herein made. We will herein named, any other bonding company, be dit to us are hereby authorized to furnish young, but not limited to, information concerning reby release any and all such parties from any	bove mentioned proposed project, the undersigned is submitting the at it is for your confidential use only to assist in determining the see and magnitude of work included and further, guarantee the truth II accept your determination of qualifications without prejudice. The bank, subcontractor, we have done business, or who have extended with any information you may request concerning our organization performance on previous work or credit standing with any of them regal responsibility whatsoever of having furnished such information					
	Name of Organization:						
	Ву:						
	Date:	Title:					
Attest	ed to By:						
	Title:						

END OF DOCUMENT

SECTION 00099

SUPPLEMENTAL INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

1.1 DEFINITIONS

- A. Bidding Documents includes the drawings and specifications containing the "Invitation to Bid", the "Supplemental Instructions to Bidders", the "Instructions to Bidders", Scope of Work, other sample Bidding and Contract Forms, the General and Supplementary Conditions, the Specifications and related Drawing Schedules and Details. Any addenda issued prior to the receipt of bids shall also become part of the Bidding Documents.
- B. All definitions set forth in the General Conditions of the Contract for Non-Construction, HUD-5370 (noted as Section 00700 in this Project Manual), or in other Contract Documents are applicable to the Bidding Documents.
- C. Addenda are written or graphic instruments issued by the Architect prior to the execution of the Contract which modify or interpret the Bidding Documents by additions, deletion, clarifications, or corrections.
- D. A bid is a complete and properly signed proposal to do the work or designated portion thereof for the sums stipulated therein supported by data called for in the Bidding Documents.
- E. Base Bid is the sum stated in the bid for which the bidder offers to perform the work described as the Base, to which work may be added or deducted for sums stated in any alternated bids.
- F. An alternate bid (or Alternate) is an amount stated in the bid to be added to or deducted from the amount of the Base Bid, if the corresponding change in project scope or materials or methods of construction described in the Bidding Documents is accepted.
- G. A Unit Price is an amount stated in the bid as a price per unit of measurement for materials or services as described in the Contract Documents.
- H. A bidder is one who submits a bid for a prime Contract with the Owner for the work described in the proposed Contract Documents. Each bidder must have the qualifications described hereunder in Paragraph 1.2.
- I. A sub-bidder is one who submits a bid to a bidder for materials or labor for a portion of the work. Each sub-bidder must have the qualifications hereunder in Paragraph 1.2.
- J. A surety is a corporate body which is bound with and for the bidder, which is primarily liable and which guarantees the faithful performance of the Contract, if it is awarded to the bidder.

1.2 BIDDERS QUALIFICATIONS AND SPECIFICATIONS:

- A. Bidders Qualifications:
 - 1. In order to be qualified, a bidder must
 - Be able to present evidence that he and his subcontractors are currently registered with, or hold an unexpired certificate applicable to this class of building issued by the Florida Construction Industry Licensing Board, in accordance with Chapter 489, Part I, Licensing of Construction Industry, Florida Statutes, or the Florida Electrical and Alarm System Contractors Licensing Board, in accordance with Chapter 489, Part II, Florida Statutes; or the local Plumbers Licensing Board, in accordance with Chapter 553, Part I, Florida Statutes.
 - 2. In order to be qualified if the bidder is a Corporation, it must be properly registered with the State of Florida, Department of State, Division of Corporations; and must hold a current State Corporate Charter number in accordance with Chapter 607 Florida Statutes.
 - 3. The Agreement will only be entered into with responsible bidders found to be satisfactory by the Owner, qualified by experience and in a financial position to do the work specified. As a minimum, bidders shall be able to meet the following requirements described below. Bidders shall furnish documentation on AIA Document 305 Contractor's Qualifications Statement, as to:
 - a. Bondability
 - b. Insurability
 - c. Experience in similar work Furnish names and addresses of Owners of prior work performed and location of work performed.
 - d. Adequate plant and equipment.
 - e. Supervisory personnel with experience in similar work.

- f. Suitable finance resources
- g. Service facilities
- h. Permanent organization
- i. Existing workload of such nature and quantity as not to interfere with the performance of this Contract.
- 4. Each bidder is required to be familiar with all Federal, State and local laws, ordinances, rules and regulations that in any manner affect the work. Ignorance on the part of the bidder or sub-bidder will in no way relieve him from the responsibility.
- 5. Each bidder shall be prepared to furnish information to confirm their qualifications as described hereunder in Paragraph 1.6.

B. Each bidder by making his bid represents that:

- 1. He has read and understands the Bidding Documents and his bid is made in accordance therewith.
- 2. He has visited the site and has familiarized himself with the local conditions under which the work is to be performed and has correlated his observations with the requirements of the proposed Contract Documents.
- 3. His bid is based upon the materials, systems, and equipment described in the Bidding Documents without exception.

1.3 BIDDING DOCUMENTS

A. Copies:

- 1. Bidders may obtain complete sets of the Bidding Documents from the Architect designated in the "Invitation to Bid" in the number and for the deposit sum(s) stated therein.
- 2. Bidders shall use complete sets of Bidding Documents in preparing for bids; the Architect and Owner do not assume any responsibility for errors or misinterpretations resulting from the use of incomplete sets of Bidding Documents in preparing bids.
- 3. The Architect in making copies of the Bidding Documents available on the above terms, does so only for the purpose of obtaining bids on the work and does not confer a license or grant for any other use.
- 4. Bidding Documents may be procured from the office of the Architect upon receipt of payment in the amount stated in the "Invitation to Bid", made payable to CRG Architects/Palatka, Inc.
 - a. No partial sets of drawings and/or Specifications will be issued.
 - b. Digital sets will be included with Addendum No. 1.

B. Interpretation of Correction of Bidding Documents:

- 1. Bidders shall promptly notify the Architect of any ambiguity, inconsistency, or error which they may discover upon examination of the Bidding Documents or the site and local conditions.
- 2. Bidders requiring clarification or an interpretation of the Bidding Documents shall make a written request to the Architect to reach him at least seven (7) days prior to the date for receipt of bids.
- 3. Any interpretation, correction, or change in the Bidding Documents will be made by the Architect by addendum. Interpretations, corrections, or changes of the Bidding Documents made in any other manner will not be binding, and bidders shall not rely upon such interpretations, corrections and changes. Only the Architect will issue addenda.
- 4. No oral explanations in regard to the meaning of the Bidding Documents will be made and no oral instructions will be given before the award of the Contract except as described in the sub-paragraph entitled "Pre-Bid Conference" herewith.

C. Basis for Bidding - Trade Names:

When reference is made in the Contract Documents to trade names, brand names, or to the names of manufacturers, such references are made solely to indicate that products of the description may be furnished and are not intended to restrict competitive bidding. If it is desired to use products of trade or brand names or of manufacturers names which are difference from those mentioned in the Contract Documents, application for the approval of the use of such products must be in receipt of the Architect within ten (10) days prior to the date set for the opening of bids. The latter provision is a restriction which applies only to the party making a submittal. Therefore, the aforesaid restriction does not inhibit the Architect from adding or deleting trade names, brand names or names of manufacturers by addendum. The burden of proving acceptability of a proposed product for use in place of a product of products designated by trade name or names, brand name or names, or by the name or names of manufacturers in the Contract Documents rests on the party submitting the request for approval. The written application for approval of proposed product must be accompanied by technical data which the party requesting approval desires to submit in support of his application. The Architect will give consideration to reports from reputable independent testing laboratories, verified experience records showing the reputation of the proposed product with previous users, evidence of reputation of the manufacturer for prompt delivery, evidence of reputation of the manufacturer for efficiency in servicing its products, or any other written information that is helpful in the circumstances. The application to the Architect for approval of a proposed product must be accompanied by a schedule setting forth in which

respects the materials or equipment submitted for consideration differ from the materials or equipment designated in the Contract Documents. The degree of proof required for approval of a proposed product as acceptable for use in place of named product of named products is that amount of proof necessary to convince a reasonable person beyond all doubt. To be approved, a proposed product must also meet or exceed all express requirements of the Contract Documents.

If the submittal is approved by the Architect an addendum will be issued by the Architect to all prospective bidders. Issuance of an addendum is a representation to all bidders that the Architect in the exercise of his professional discretion established that the product submitted for approval is acceptable and meets or exceeds all express requirements. In order for the Architect to prepare an Addendum intelligently, an application for approval of a product must be accompanied by a copy of the published recommendations of the manufacturer for the installation of the product together with a complete schedule of changes in the drawings and specifications, if any, which must be made in the work in order to permit the use and installation of the propose product in accordance with the recommendations of the manufacturer of a product. Unless requests for approvals of other products have been received and approvals have been published by addendum in accordance with the above procedure, the successful bidder may furnish no products of any trade names, brand names, or manufacturers' names except those designated in the Contract Documents with the exception of any changes or substitution that may be affected via Change Order. Any party who alleges that rejection of a submittal is the result of bias, prejudice, caprice, or error on the part of the Architect may request a conference with a representative of the Owner, provided that the request for said conference, submitted in writing, shall have reached the Owner at least five (5) days prior to the date set for the opening of bids, time being of the essence.

D. Pre-Bid Conference:

- 1. A Pre-Bid Conference will be held at the time and place described in the "Invitation to Bid" at which time the Architect will be available to clarify, interpret and assist bidders to better understand the Bidding Documents. At that time, the architect will answer any questions and make any and all explanations required by the bidders. However, only those explanations or instructions issued by written addendum shall be used in bidding.
- 2. No later than three days prior to bid date, the Architect will issue an addendum which will include all approved substitutions and changes to the Contract Documents, along with written explanations of any matters arising from discussion at the Pre-Bid Conference.

E. Addenda:

- 1. The Architect is responsible for addenda to be mailed or delivered to all who are known to the Architect to have received a Bid Package or a complete set of Bidding Documents. The Architect will not be responsible for issuance or receipt of addenda forwarded by the bidder's mail carrier.
- 2. Copies of addenda will be made available for inspection wherever Bidding Documents are on file for that purpose.
- 3. Each bidder shall ascertain prior to submitting his bid that he has received all addenda issued, and he shall acknowledge their receipt in his bid.

1.4 BIDDING PROCEDURES

A. Form and Style of Bids:

- 1. Bids shall be submitted in duplicate using exact copies of the Proposal Form provided in Bid Packages. If necessary, copies of these forms may be obtained from the Architect at a cost of \$1.00 per sheet for letter size copies (\$6.00 per set).
- 2. All blanks on the Proposal Form shall be filled in by typewriter or manually in ink.
- 3. Where so indicated by the makeup of the Proposal Form, sums shall be expressed in both words and figures, and in case of discrepancy between the two, the amount written in words shall govern.
- 4. No interlineations, alteration, excisions, or special conditions shall be made; erasures shall be explained or noted over the signature of the bidder. Any unexplained omissions, erasures, alterations, information not requested or other irregularities of any kind may constitute a cause for rejection of the bid by the Owner.
- 5. Each copy of the bid shall include the legal name and full business address of the bidder and a statement that the bidder is sole proprietor, a partnership, a corporation, or any other legal entity. Each copy shall be signed by the person or persons legally authorized to bind the bidder to a Contract. A bid submitted by an agent shall have current Power of Attorney attached certifying the agent's authority to bind the bidder to a Contract. The Power of Attorney must then be signed by the Principal within ten (10) calendar days of bid submission and must refer to the specific project and bid.
- 6. Bids submitted by a corporation must be signed with the legal name and seal of the corporation followed by the name of the state of its incorporation and the manual signature and designation of an officer, agent, or other person authorized to bind the corporation and Florida State Charter Number.

- 7. Bids submitted by partnership shall show the names of all partners and must be signed in the partnership name by one of the partners. The partnership signature shall be followed by the manual signature of the partner signing.
- 8. In every case, the name of the person signing and his designation shall be typed or printed below his signature. A person who affixes his signature the words "President", "Secretary", "Agent" or other designation, without disclosing his principal, may be held to be individually responsible for such bid. Satisfactory evidence of the authority of an officer, agent, attorney or other person signing for partnership or an individual shall be furnished.

B. Bid Security:

- 1. As stipulated in the "Invitation to Bid", each bid shall be accompanied by a Bid Bond (on form enclosed, Document 00410) in the amount of five percent (5%) of the Contract Sum listed on the bidders Proposal Form pledging that the bidder will enter into a Contract with the Owner on the terms stated in his bid and will furnish Bonds as described hereunder in Paragraph 1.7 covering the faithful of all obligations arising thereunder. Type or print the dollar amount of the Bond wherever required. The words "5% of the Bid", are not sufficient and will require re-execution of the Bond.
- 2. The Bid Security shall be submitted with the understanding that it guarantees the bidder will not withdraw his bid for a period of sixty (60) days after the scheduled date and time for the receipt of bids described in the "Invitation to Bid"; that if his bid is accepted, he will enter into a written contract with the Owner in accordance with the Form of Agreement described hereunder in Paragraph 1.7 will be given; and that in the event of withdrawal of the bid within the stated withdrawal period, or failure to enter into the Agreement and furnish the Bonds within ten (10) days after he has received notice of acceptance of his bid or within any extended period the Owner may grant, the bidder shall be in default and shall be liable to the Owner for the full amount of the Bid Security as damages due the Owner on the account of the default of the bidder in any particular hereof.
- 3. The Bid Security shall be returned to all bidders after the Owner and the accepted bidder have executed the Agreement and Labor and Performance Bond has been approved by the Owner.
- 4. If the required Agreement and Bonds described hereunder in Paragraph 1.7 have not been executed within sixty (60) days after the date of the opening of the bids, then the Bid Security of any bidder will be returned upon his request, provided he has not been notified of the acceptance of his bid prior to the date of such request.
- 5. If the Bid Security is in the form of a Bid Bond, the Surety Company furnishing the Bond shall be acceptable if it complies with the provisions described hereunder in Paragraph 1.7. Type or print dollar amount of the Bond wherever required. The words "5% of the Bid" are not sufficient and will require re-execution of the Bond. The Bid Bond shall be signed by a Florida Licensed Resident Agent who holds Power of Attorney from the Surety Company issuing the Bond.
 - a. Prepare two (2) copies of the Bid Bond on Document 00410 for the Owner.
 - b. Type or print bidder's and surety's names where required.
 - c. Type or print the dollar amount of the Bond where required. The words "5% of the Bid" are not sufficient and will require re-execution of the Bond.
 - d. Date the Bond prior to the time of the bid opening.
 - e. Type or print the description of the construction in the same language as in the "Invitation to Bid".
 - f. Complete the signatures on the form. A corporate bidder shall sign in the following manner:

By:	
•	President, or Florida Resident Agent

The corporate seal must be affixed. Type or print the name of Surety on the line provided and affix its corporate seal.

g. Attach a copy of Surety's Florida Resident Agent's Power of Attorney. If not recorded, the copy of the Power of Attorney must have an original signature of the Secretary or Assistant Secretary of the Surety Company certifying to the copy. The Surety's corporate seal must also be affixed.

C. Submission of Bids

- 1. At Bid Time: To be considered for the award of contract, three (3) completed and properly executed originals of the following will be required with the bid:
 - a. BID CHECK LIST with Authorized Signature (00300A-1)
 - b. BID PROPOSAL FORM (00310)
 - c. BID BOND FORM (00410)
 - d. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE FORM (Optional 00300A-2)
 - e. PUBLIC ENTITY CRIME SWORN STATEMENT (Mandatory <u>Must be notarized</u> 00300A-3)
 - f. PROOF OF INSURANCE

- q. INFORMATION AVAILABLE TO BIDDERS (00200)
- h. CONFIDENTIAL BIDDER QUALIFICATION FORM (00040)
- i. NON COLLUSIVE AFFIDAVIT (00480)
- j. REPRESENTATIONS, CERTIFICATIONS, and OTHER STATEMENTS OF BIDDERS (00101)
- k. CERTIFICATE OF CONTRACTOR'S LICENSE (00420)
- I. HUD FORM 2530 PREVIOUS PARTICIPATION CERTIFICATE (00832)

To be accompanied by the following statement:

Authorized Signature:

All companies certify by their signature that they have read and understand the conditions and specifications of the bid and have included all required documents, and that they have the authority, capacity and capability to perform according to conditions and specifications of the bid request.

Company Name:	
	(Type or Print)
Address:	
City, State, Zip:	
Telephone Number:	
Authorized Signature:	_
Printed Name and Title:	

a) All above listed forms shall be in one (1) envelope affixed to the outside of the envelope containing the two (2) completed and executed PROPOSAL FORMS. The envelope containing the PROPOSAL FORM shall be plainly marked "BID" on the outside along with the following:

TO: PALATKA HOUSING AUTHORITY

PALATKA, FLORIDA

SUBMITTED BY: (LEGAL NAME AND BUSINESS

ADDRESS OF THE BIDDER)

PROPOSAL FOR: KITCHEN CABINET REPLACEMENTS

AT ROSA K RAGSDALE

& JAMES A LONG COMMUNITIES PALATKA HOUSING AUTHORITY

PALATKA, FLORIDA

2. If the bid is being sent by mail, the sealed envelope shall be enclosed in a separate mailing envelope with the notation "BID ENCLOSED" on the face thereof, and shall be delivered to:

Palatka Housing Authority Attention: Willie Mae Thomas 400 North 15th Street Palatka, FL 32177

- 3. Sealed bids must be submitted either by mail or personal delivery so that they are in receipt of the Palatka Housing Authority, on or before 2:00 PM local time, February 6, 2025. Bids will be clocked in and stamped with the date and time of receipt by an employee of the PHA. Only those bids receiving a receipt stamp on or before the bid submission deadline will be opened, reviewed and considered.
- 4. Oral, telephonic, or telegraphic bids are invalid and will not receive consideration.

1.5 BID MODIFICATION AND WITHDRAWAL:

A. A bid may not be modified, withdrawn or canceled by the bidder during the stipulated time period following the opening of bids as described in the "Invitation to Bid", and the bidder so agrees in submitting his Bid.

Negligence on the part of the bidder in preparing the bid confers no right for withdrawal of the bid after it has been opened.

- B. Prior to the time and date designated for receipt of bids, bids submitted early may be modified or withdrawn only by notice to the party receiving such bids at the place and prior to the time designated for receipt of bids. Such notice shall be in writing over the signature of the bidder or shall be by telegram; if by telegram, written confirmation over the signature of the bidder must have been mailed and postmarked on or before the date and time set for receipt of bids; it shall be so worded as not to revel the amount of the original bid.
- C. Withdrawn bids may be resubmitted up to the time designated for the receipt of bids provided that they are then fully in conformance with the "Instructions to Bidders".
- D. Bid Security shall be in amount sufficient for the bid as modified or resubmitted.

1.6 CONSIDERATION OF BIDS

A. Opening of Bids: Unless stated otherwise in the "Invitation to Bid", the properly identified bids received in time will be opened publicly and will be read aloud, and an abstract of the amounts of the Base Bids and Major Alternates, if any, will be made available to all bidders. The designee for the Palatka Housing Authority will decide the specific time has arrived to open bids and no bids received after that time will be considered. No responsibility nor liability whatsoever will be attached to any PHA staff member, Board member, or the Architect for the premature opening of a bid not properly addressed and identified in accordance with the Invitation to Bid.

B. Rejection of Bids:

- 1. The Owner shall have the right to reject any or all bids and in particular to reject a bid not accompanied by the required bid Security or any data required by the Bidding Documents or a bid in any way incomplete or irregular.
- 2. The Owner shall have the right to reject any bidder who in its opinion has previously failed to perform properly, to complete his work on time, who has habitually and without just cause neglected payments of bills, or otherwise disregarded obligations or whose Surety has failed to meet its obligations on any public construction in the State of Florida.
- 3. Any or all Proposals may be rejected if there is reason to believe that collusion exists among the bidders and no participants in such collusion will be considered for future Proposals for the same work. Proposals in which the prices obviously are unbalanced may be rejected.

C. Acceptance of the Bid:

1. It is the intent of the Owner to Award a Contract to the lowest responsible bidder provided the bid has been submitted in accordance with the requirements of the Bidding Documents and does not exceed the funds available. The Owner shall have the right to waive any informality or irregularity in any bid or bids received and to accept the bid or bids which, in his judgment, is in his own best interest.

1.7 AWARD

- A. In the event the Contract is awarded to this bidder, the bidder shall enter into a formal written Agreement with the Owner in accordance with the accepted bid within ten (10) calendar days after said Contract is submitted to him and will furnish to the Owner a Contract Performance and Payment Bond with good and sufficient sureties (See Section 00600), satisfactory to the Owner, in the amount of 100% of the accepted bid. The bidder further agrees that in the event of the bidder's default or breach of any of the Agreements of this proposal, the said Bid Security shall be forfeited. And further, the Owner then may either award the Contract to another responsible bidder, or re-advertise for bids, and may charge against the defaulting bidder the difference between the amount of the bid and the amount for which a Contract for the work is subsequently executed, irrespective of whether the amount due exceeds the amount of the Bid Bonds. If a more favorable bid is received by advertising, the defaulting bidder shall have no claim against the Owner.
- B. The successful bidder for each phase of the Project shall, within ten (10) days of notification of selection, submit the following information:
 - 1. Percentages of work to be performed by bidder with his own forces.
 - 2. Proprietary names of the suppliers or principal items, or systems of material and equipment proposed for the work.
 - Insurance Certificates.
 - 4. Submittal and Schedule Outline.
 - 5. Schedule of Values in a form acceptable to the Owner and Architect.

1.8 ADDENDUM

A. Acknowledgment shall be made for receipt of the addenda issued during the bidding period on the Form of Proposal.

1.9 TIME OF COMPLETION

- A. The time of completion of the Project is of great importance to the Owner. It is highly desirable that the Project be substantially completed at the earliest possible time. Work shall commence when the Contractor is given written Notice to Proceed. The work shall reach Final Completion within seven (7) calendar days after the date of Substantial Completion
- B. Time of completion will be written into the basic Contract unless different times of completion are mutually agreed upon in writing by the Contractor and Owner prior to the execution of the Contract.
- C. The Contractor shall furnish sufficient forces, construction plant and equipment, and to work such hours, including overtime operations, as may be necessary to ensure the prosecution of the work, to allow the Substantial Completion and Final Completion of the Project within the specified times. Normal inclement weather will not be sufficient reason to allow an extension of time on the Project. Only exceptional weather conditions, acts of God which might cause delay in the work, or other factors outlined in the Contract Agreement between Owner and Contractor, will be considered justifiable reasons for an extension of time.
- D. Failure on the part of the Contractor to comply with the conditions of the basic Contract concerning the time in which the Project is to be completed will be considered by the Owner as a justifiable reason to invoke the conditions of the Contract relating to termination; or, at its sole option, to avail itself of the rights under Article 8 of the "Supplementary General Conditions" concerning Liquidated Damages.
- E. Bidders are informed that the following paragraphs concerning Liquidated Damages will be inserted into the basic Contract.
 - 1. Failure to complete the project within the time fixed in this Agreement will result in substantial injury to the Owner, and as damages arising from such failure cannot be calculated with any degree of certainty, according to the definition of Substantial Completion in Paragraph 1.21 (herein), within the time fixed or within further time if any, as may be authorized in accordance with the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall pay the Owner as Liquidated Damages for such delay, and not as penalty, Three Hundred and 00/100 Dollars (\$300.00) for each and every calendar day elapsing between the date fixed for Substantial Completion and the date of such Substantial Completion shall have been fully accomplished. It is also hereby agreed that if after thirty (30) calendar days after Substantial Completion this Project is not fully and Finally Completed in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall pay to the Owner as Liquidated Damages, and not as penalty, Three Hundred and 00/100 Dollars (\$300.00) for each and every calendar day elapsing for such delay until Final Completion. These Liquidated Damages shall be payable in addition to any expenses or costs payable by the Contractor to the Owner under the Contract Documents.

If awarded this Construction Contract, the bidder agrees to complete the work covered by the Contract as follows:

- a. All work shall be substantially complete within one hundred twenty (120) calendar days after the Owner's Notice to Proceed.
- b. Final Completion in seven (7) consecutive days from Substantial Completion.
- 2. The provision for Liquidated Damages for delay shall in no manner affect the Owner's right to terminate the Contract, as provided in the Contractor's Agreement or elsewhere in these Contract Documents and Owner's exercise of the right to terminate shall not release Contractor from his obligations to pay the Liquidated Damages, the amount hereinbefore set out. The Liquidated Damages shall be payable in addition to any excess expenses or costs payable by the Contractor under Article 23 of the Special Conditions and shall not exclude recovery of damages by the Owner under other provisions of the Contract, except for Contractor's delays.

1.10 PERFORMANCE BOND AND LABOR AND MATERIAL PAYMENT BOND:

- A. Owner's Right to Require Bonds:
 - 1. The Owner shall require the bidder to furnish a Performance Bond and Labor and Material Payment Bond covering the faithful performance of the Contract and the payment of all obligations arising thereunder equal to 100% of the Contract amount with such sureties secured through the bidder's usual sources as may be agreeable to the parties. The cost shall be included in the Contractor's Base Bid.
 - a. The Bonds shall be kept current with the full amount of the Contract.
 - b. The Bonds shall extend as a Maintenance Bond for one (1) year after final acceptance of the Project by the Owner.

- B. Time and Delivery and Form of Bonds:
 - 1. The bidder shall deliver the required Bonds to the Owner not later than the date of execution of the Contract.
 - 2. The Form of the Bonds shall be State Statute 235.32 "Performance Bond" and State Statute 255.05 "Labor and Material Payment Bond" as described hereunder.

C. Execution of the Bonds:

- 1. The Contractor's Performance and Labor and Material Payment Bond shall be executed on behalf of the Contractor in the same manner as the Contract was executed and by the same person or persons who executed the Contract; and it shall not be dated earlier than the Agreement.
- 2. The Bond must be accompanied by a duly authenticated or certified document evidencing that the person executing the Bond on behalf of the Surety had the authority to do so on the date of the Bond. In the usual case, the conferring of that authority has occurred prior to the date of the Bond; and the document showing date of the appointment and enumeration of the powers of the person executing the Bond is accompanied by a certification that the appointment and powers have not been revoked and remain in effect. The date of that certification cannot be earlier than the date of the Bond.
- 3. Such certificate must be manually signed or be accompanied by a duly attested Resolution adopted by a Board of Directors, stating that the signatures of the officers and the seal of the company may be affixed to any Power of Attorney or to any certificate relating thereto by facsimile; and that such facsimile signature will be valid and binding upon the company.

D. Acceptable Surety Companies:

- To be acceptable as Surety for Bid Bond and Performance and Payment Bonds, the Surety Company must, at a minimum, comply with the provisions described below. In addition, the PHA may reject any surety due to prior performance issues.
- 2. The Surety Company must be admitted doing business in the State of Florida and shall have a Florida Resident Agent.
- 3. The Surety Company shall have been in business and have a record of successful continuous operations for at least five (5) years.
- 4. The Surety Company shall have at least the following minimum ratings:
 - a. CONTRACT AMOUNT AND REQUIRED FINANCIAL RATINGS:

(Best Financial Rating)

\$0 to 375,000 \$375,001 to 500,000 \$500,001 to 750,000 \$750,001 to 1,000,000 \$1,000,001 to 1,250,000 \$1,250.001 to 1,500,000	BBB BBB+ AA AA+ AAA AAA+
\$1,000,001 to 1,250,000	
\$1,250.001 to 1,500,000	AAA+
\$1,500,001 to 2,000,000	AAAA
\$2,000,001 to 2,500,000	AAAA+
\$2,500,001 or more	AAAAA

- b. Best's policyholder's ratings of "A" (which signifies "excellent" based upon good underwriting, economic management, adequate reserves for undisclosed liabilities, net resources for unusual stock and sound investment) or an equivalent rating from the Insurance Commissioner if not rated by Best's.
- 5. The Surety Company shall not expose itself to any loss on any risk in an amount exceeding ten percent (10%) of its surplus to policyholders, provided:
 - a. Any risk or portion of any risk which shall have been reinsured (in which case these minimum requirements contained herein also apply to the reinsuring carrier) in assuming insurer authorized or approved by the Insurance Commissioner to do such business in this State shall be deducted in determining the limitations of risk prescribed in the Section.
 - b. In the case of a Surety Insurance Company, there shall be deducted, in addition to the deduction for reinsurance, the amount assumed by and co-surety, the value of any security deposited, pledged or held subject to the content of the Surety and for the protection of the Surety.

1.11 FORM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN OWNER AND CONTRACTOR:

A. Form to be used: Document 00510 Form of Contract, bound herein.

1.12 NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE

A. The non-discrimination clause contained in Section 202, Executive Order 11240, as amended by Executive Order 11375, relative to Equal Employment Opportunity for all persons without regard to race, color, religion, sex, or national origin, and the implementing rules and regulations prescribed by the Secretary of Labor, are incorporated herein.

1.13 APPRENTICE EMPLOYEE REQUIREMENTS

- A. Bidder's attention is called to the State Public Works Compliance Act, Paragraph 446.102, Florida Statutes. The Bureau of Apprenticeship in the Division of Labor, Florida Department of Commerce, will assist bidders in the determination of actual or anticipated need in complying with the statutory requirements of this law.
- B. The following pertinent Contract clauses from the Act shall be the conditions of each State of Florida Contract in excess of \$25,000.00. The bidder agrees, if awarded the Contract:
 - 1. To hire, for their performance of the Contract, a number of apprentices in each occupation which bears to the number of the journeymen in that occupation to be employed in the performance of the Contract ratio of at least one apprentice or trainee to every five (5) journeymen.
 - 2. That he will, when feasible, assure that 25% of such apprentices or trainees are in their first year of training, except when the number of apprentices or trainees to be hired is fewer than four. Feasibility here involves a consideration of the availability of training opportunities for first year apprentices or trainees, the hazardous nature of the work for beginning workers and excessive unemployment of apprentices or trainees in their second and/or subsequent years of training.
 - 3. That during the performance of the Contract, he will make diligent efforts to employ the number of apprentices or trainees necessary to meet the requirements of subparagraphs 1. and 2. Above; however, on-the-job training programs shall only be established in non-apprenticable trades or occupations, to meet the requirements of Section 446.101, Florida Statutes.
- C. The bidder agrees to return records of employment by trade the number of apprentices or trainees, or apprentices or trainees by first year of training and of journeymen and the wages paid and hours of work of such persons, on a form as prescribed by the Bureau of Apprenticeship of the Office of Labor Relations, Florida Department of Commerce, at three (3) month intervals. Submission of duplicate copies of forms submitted to the United States Department of Labor shall be sufficient compliance with the provisions of this section.

1.14 FLORIDA PRODUCTS AND LABOR

A. The bidder's attention is called to Section 255.04, Florida Statutes, which requires that on public bidding contracts, Florida products and labor shall be used wherever price and quality are equal.

1.15 TAXES AND PERMITS

- A. The Owner is not subject to Florida sales and use tax. However, any Contractor who purchases materials which will be used in the construction of a building will not be exempted from the sales tax on these materials as evidenced by the following excerpt from the Florida Statutes: "The State, any county, municipality, or political subdivision of this State is exempt from the sales tax, except this exemption shall not include sales of tangible personal property made to Contractors employed either directly or as agent of any such government or political subdivision thereof when such tangible personal property goes into or becomes a part of public works owned by such government or political subdivision thereof."
- B. The Owner is not subject to:
 - 1. Federal excise taxes on materials or appliances that are incorporated into and become a part of the completed improvement.
 - 2. Cost of municipal or county building permits.
- C. In every case of a purchase of materials to be incorporated in the work which are subject to Federal excise tax, the Owner will furnish to the Contractor the necessary Federal excise tax exemption certificate upon receipt of a copy of the supplier's invoice showing the item or items, the net price and Federal excise tax separately.
- D. The Owner will furnish certain material and equipment items as outlined in this section.
- E. The Contractor is required to obtain all required City of Palatka building permits.

1.16 PROGRESS PAYMENTS

A. Based upon Applications for Payment submitted to and acceptable to the Architect by the Contractor, the Owner shall make monthly progress payments to the Contractor as provided in the Agreement.

1.17 ENGINEERING:

- A. Each bidder must include in his proposal all costs for verifying the suitability of the work by others which affects the Contractor's work, and to perform all engineering and surveying and field measurements which may be required to complete the work. Destruction and displacement of monuments by the Contractor will make said Contractor liable for all cost to reestablish the monument.
- B. Basic reference points and benchmarks will be provided by Owner. Subsequent surveying and field measurements from these points will be the responsibility of each Contractor.

1.18 OWNER'S OPTION TO DIRECT PURCHASE MATERIALS

- A. The Owner is tax exempt and exercises his right to purchase directly various construction materials, supplies, and equipment that may be a part of this Contract. The Owner may exercise this option at no additional cost. The Owner will, via his purchase orders, purchase the materials, and the Contractor shall assist the Owner in the preparation of the purchase orders. The materials shall be purchased from the vendors/suppliers selected by the Contractor, for the price originally negotiated by the Contractor. At the Pre-Construction Conference, the successful bidder will be given a list of the equipment and materials to be purchased by the Owner. Ten days after the Pre-Construction Conference, the Contractor shall provide the Owner with the information necessary to issue the purchase order.
- B. The Contract amount shall be reduced by the net, undiscounted amount of the purchase orders plus all sales taxes. Issuance of the purchase orders by the Owner shall not relieve the Contractor of any of his responsibilities regarding material purchases, or installations, with the exception of the payments for the materials so purchased. Contractor shall remain fully responsible for coordination, correct quantities ordered, submittal, protection, storage, scheduling, shipping, security, expediting, receiving, installation, cleaning and all applicable warranties.
- C. The material supplier may be required to provide a Supply Bond in the amount of 100% of the purchase order price. The Bond shall be from a qualified surety company authorized to do business in the State of Florida and acceptable to the Owner. Verifying that a designated material supplier can furnish a Supply Bond (if required) will be responsibility of the Contractor.

1.19 BID PROTESTS

- A. Bid protests filed pursuant to Florida Statutes 120.57 shall be served upon Willie Mae Thomas, Executive Director, 400 North 15th Street, Palatka, FL 32177, via certified mail. Bid protests may be preliminarily filed, if followed by a certified mail original, via facsimile transmittal to Willie Mae Thomas at 386.329.0145. Bid protests must be accompanied by a cost deposit of five thousand dollars (\$5,000.00) or one percent of the total contract price, whichever is greater.
- B. In the event the protesting party is not the prevailing party, as a result of final agency action taken pursuant to 120.57, said cost deposit shall be retained by the PHA to defray its costs, expenses and fees, including reasonable attorney's fees with respect to their participation in the bid protest process. Furthermore, the unsuccessful protester shall be responsible to the PHA for all other and additional reasonable fees, expenses and costs, in the event the deposit which the PHA retains pursuant to this paragraph is insufficient to reimburse the PHA for all costs and fees incurred.

1.20 PROGRESS CLEANING

A. Contractor's attention is directed to Section 01500, 1.8B of this manual. The special cleaning requirement must be adhered to during the course of construction.

1.21 SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION

A. Substantial Completion is the stage in progress of the work when the work or designated portion thereof is sufficiently complete in accordance with the Contract Documents so the Owner can occupy or utilize the work for its intended use.

- B. When the Contractor considers that the work, or a portion thereof which the Owner agrees to accept separately, is substantially complete, the Contractor shall prepare and submit to the Architect a comprehensive list of items to be completed or corrected. The contractor shall proceed promptly to complete and correct items on the list. Failure to include an item on such list does not alter the responsibility of the Contractor to complete all work in accordance with the Contract Documents. Upon receipt of the Contractor's list, the Architect will make an inspection to determine whether the work or designated portion thereof is substantially complete. If the Architects' inspection discloses any item, whether or not included on the Contractor's list, which is not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall, before issuance of the Certificate of Substantial Completion, complete or correct such item upon notification by the Architect. The Contractor shall then submit a request for another inspection by the Architect to determine Substantial Completion.
- C. When the work or designated portion thereof is substantially complete, the Architect will prepare a Certificate of Substantial Completion which shall establish the date of Substantial Completion, shall establish responsibilities of the Owner and Contractor for security, maintenance, heat, utilities, damage to the work and insurance, and shall fix the time within which the Contractor shall finish all items on the list accompanying the Certificate. Warranties required by the Contract Documents shall commence on the date of Substantial Completion of the work or designated portion thereof unless otherwise provided in the Certificate of Substantial Completion. The Certificate of Substantial Completion shall be submitted to the Owner and Contractor for their written acceptance of responsibilities assigned to them in such Certificate.
- D. Upon Substantial Completion of the work or designated portion thereof and upon application by the Contractor and certification by the Architect, the Owner shall make payment, reflecting adjustment in retainage, if any, for such work or portion thereof as provided in the Contract Documents.

END OF SECTION

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Office of Public and Indian Housing

Instructions to Bidders for Contracts Public and Indian Housing Programs

Instructions to Bidders for Contracts

Public and Indian Housing Programs

Table of Contents

Cla	use	Pag
1.	Bid Preparation and Submission	1
2.	Explanations and Interpretations to Prospective Bidders	1
3.	Amendments to Invitations for Bids	1
4.	Responsibility of Prospective Contractor	1
5.	Late Submissions, Modifications, and Withdrawal of Bid	s 1
6.	Bid Opening	2
7.	Service of Protest	2
8.	Contract Award	2
9.	Bid Guarantee	3
10.	Assurance of Completion	3
11.	Preconstruction Conference	3
12.	Indian Preference Requirements	3

1. Bid Preparation and Submission

- (a) Bidders are expected to examine the specifications, drawings, all instructions, and, if applicable, the construction site (see also the contract clause entitled **Site Investigation and Conditions Affecting the Work** of the *General Conditions of the Contract for Construction*). Failure to do so will be at the bidders' risk.
- (b) All bids must be submitted on the forms provided by the Public Housing Agency/Indian Housing Authority (PHA/IHA). Bidders shall furnish all the information required by the solicitation. Bids must be signed and the bidder's name typed or printed on the bid sheet and each continuation sheet which requires the entry of information by the bidder. Erasures or other changes must be initialed by the person signing the bid. Bids signed by an agent shall be accompanied by evidence of that agent's authority. (Bidders should retain a copy of their bid for their records.)
- (c) Bidders must submit as part of their bid a completed form HUD-5369-A, "Representations, Certifications, and Other Statements of Bidders."
- (d) All bid documents shall be sealed in an envelope which shall be clearly marked with the words "Bid Documents," the Invitation for Bids (IFB) number, any project or other identifying number, the bidder's name, and the date and time for receipt of bids.
- (e) If this solicitation requires bidding on all items, failure to do so will disqualify the bid. If bidding on all items is not required, bidders should insert the words "No Bid" in the space provided for any item on which no price is submitted.
- (f) Unless expressly authorized elsewhere in this solicitation, alternate bids will not be considered.
- (g) Unless expressly authorized elsewhere in this solicitation, bids submitted by telegraph or facsimile (fax) machines will not be considered.
- (h) If the proposed contract is for a Mutual Help project (as described in 24 CFR Part 905, Subpart E) that involves Mutual Help contributions of work, material, or equipment, supplemental information regarding the bid advertisement is provided as an attachment to this solicitation.

2. Explanations and Interpretations to Prospective Bidders

- (a) Any prospective bidder desiring an explanation or interpretation of the solicitation, specifications, drawings, etc., must request it at least 7 days before the scheduled time for bid opening. Requests may be oral or written. Oral requests must be confirmed in writing. The only oral clarifications that will be provided will be those clearly related to solicitation procedures, i.e., not substantive technical information. No other oral explanation or interpretation will be provided. Any information given a prospective bidder concerning this solicitation will be furnished promptly to all other prospective bidders as a written amendment to the solicitation, if that information is necessary in submitting bids, or if the lack of it would be prejudicial to other prospective bidders.
- (b) Any information obtained by, or provided to, a bidder other than by formal amendment to the solicitation shall not constitute a change to the solicitation.

3. Amendments to Invitations for Bids

- (a) If this solicitation is amended, then all terms and conditions which are not modified remain unchanged.
- (b) Bidders shall acknowledge receipt of any amendment to this solicitation (1) by signing and returning the amendment, (2) by identifying the amendment number and date on the bid form, or (3) by letter, telegram, or facsimile, if those methods are authorized in the solicitation. The PHA/IHA must receive acknowledgement by the time and at the place specified for receipt of bids. Bids which fail to acknowledge the bidder's receipt of any amendment will result in the rejection of the bid if the amendment(s) contained information which substantively changed the PHA's/IHA's requirements.
- (c) Amendments will be on file in the offices of the PHA/IHA and the Architect at least 7 days before bid opening.

4. Responsibility of Prospective Contractor

- (a) The PHA/IHA will award contracts only to responsible prospective contractors who have the ability to perform successfully under the terms and conditions of the proposed contract. In determining the responsibility of a bidder, the PHA/IHA will consider such matters as the bidder's:
 - (1) Integrity;
 - (2) Compliance with public policy;
 - (3) Record of past performance; and
 - (4) Financial and technical resources (including construction and technical equipment).
- (b) Before a bid is considered for award, the bidder may be requested by the PHA/IHA to submit a statement or other documentation regarding any of the items in paragraph (a) above. Failure by the bidder to provide such additional information shall render the bidder nonresponsible and ineligible for award.

5. Late Submissions, Modifications, and Withdrawal of Bids

- (a) Any bid received at the place designated in the solicitation after the exact time specified for receipt will not be considered unless it is received before award is made and it:
- (1) Was sent by registered or certified mail not later than the fifth calendar day before the date specified for receipt of offers (e.g., an offer submitted in response to a solicitation requiring receipt of offers by the 20th of the month must have been mailed by the 15th);
- (2) Was sent by mail, or if authorized by the solicitation, was sent by telegram or via facsimile, and it is determined by the PHA/IHA that the late receipt was due solely to mishandling by the PHA/IHA after receipt at the PHA/IHA; or
- (3) Was sent by U.S. Postal Service Express Mail Next Day Service Post Office to Addressee, not later than 5:00 p.m. at the place of mailing two working days prior to the date specified for receipt of proposals. The term "working days" excludes weekends and observed holidays.
- (b) Any modification or withdrawal of a bid is subject to the same conditions as in paragraph (a) of this provision.
- (c) The only acceptable evidence to establish the date of mailing of a late bid, modification, or withdrawal sent either by registered or certified mail is the U.S. or Canadian Postal Service postmark both on the envelope or wrapper and on the original receipt from the U.S. or Canadian Postal Service. Both postmarks must show a legible date or the bid, modification, or withdrawal shall be processed as if mailed late. "Postmark" means a printed, stamped, or otherwise placed impression (exclusive of a postage meter machine impression) that is readily identifiable without further action as having been supplied and affixed by employees of the U.S. or Canadian Postal Service on the date of mailing. Therefore, bidders should request the postal clerk to place a hand cancellation bull's-eye postmark on both the receipt and the envelope or wrapper.
- (d) The only acceptable evidence to establish the time of receipt at the PHA/IHA is the time/date stamp of PHA/IHA on the proposal wrapper or other documentary evidence of receipt maintained by the PHA/IHA.
- (e) The only acceptable evidence to establish the date of mailing of a late bid, modification, or withdrawal sent by Express Mail Next Day Service-Post Office to Addressee is the date entered by the post office receiving clerk on the "Express Mail Next Day Service-Post Office to Addressee" label and the postmark on both the envelope or wrapper and on the original receipt from the U.S. Postal Service. "Postmark" has the same meaning as defined in paragraph (c) of this provision, excluding postmarks of the Canadian Postal Service. Therefore, bidders should request the postal clerk to place a legible hand cancellation bull's eye postmark on both the receipt and Failure by a bidder to acknowledge receipt of the envelope or wrapper.
- (f) Notwithstanding paragraph (a) of this provision, a late modification of an otherwise successful bid that makes its terms more favorable to the PHA/IHA will be considered at any time it is received and may be accepted.
- (g) Bids may be withdrawn by written notice, or if authorized by this solicitation, by telegram (including mailgram) or facsimile machine transmission received at any time before the exact time set for opening of bids; provided that written confirmation of telegraphic or facsimile withdrawals over the signature of the bidder is mailed and postmarked prior to the specified bid opening time. A bid may be withdrawn in person by a bidder or its authorized representative if, before the exact time set for opening of bids, the identity of the person requesting withdrawal is established and the person signs a receipt for the bid

6. Bid Opening

All bids received by the date and time of receipt specified in the solicitation will be publicly opened and read. The time and place of opening will be as specified in the solicitation. Bidders and other interested persons may be present.

7. Service of Protest

(a) Definitions. As used in this provision:

"Interested party" means an actual or prospective bidder whose direct economic interest would be affected by the award of the contract.

"Protest" means a written objection by an interested party to this solicitation or to a proposed or actual award of a contract pursuant to this solicitation.

(b) Protests shall be served on the Contracting Officer by obtaining written and dated acknowledgement from —

[Contracting Officer designate the official or location where a protest may be served on the Contracting Officer]

(c) All protests shall be resolved in accordance with the PHA's/IHA's protest policy and procedures, copies of which are maintained at the PHA/IHA.

8. Contract Award

- (a) The PHA/IHA will evaluate bids in response to this solicitation without discussions and will award a contract to the responsible bidder whose bid, conforming to the solicitation, will be most advantageous to the PHA/IHA considering only price and any price-related factors specified in the solicitation.
- (b) If the apparent low bid received in response to this solicitation exceeds the PHA's/IHA's available funding for the proposed contract work, the PHA/IHA may either accept separately priced items (see 8(e) below) or use the following procedure to determine contract award. The PHA/IHA shall apply in turn to each bid (proceeding in order from the apparent low bid to the high bid) each of the separately priced bid deductible items, if any, in their priority order set forth in this solicitation. If upon the application of the first deductible item to all initial bids, a new low bid is within the PHA's/IHA's available funding, then award shall be made to that bidder. If no bid is within the available funding amount, then the PHA/IHA shall apply the second deductible item. The PHA/IHA shall continue this process until an evaluated low bid, if any, is within the PHA's/IHA's available funding. If upon the application of all deductibles, no bid is within the PHA's/IHA's available funding, or if the solicitation does not request separately priced deductibles, the PHA/IHA shall follow its written policy and procedures in making any award under this solicitation.
- (c) In the case of tie low bids, award shall be made in accordance with the PHA's/IHA's written policy and procedures.
- (d) The PHA/IHA may reject any and all bids, accept other than the lowest bid (e.g., the apparent low bid is unreasonably low), and waive informalities or minor irregularities in bids received, in accordance with the PHA's/IHA's written policy and procedures.

for the bid. KITCHEN CABINET REPLACEMENTS AT ROSA K RAGSDALE & JAMES A LONG COMMUNITIES SECTION 00100 - INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

- (e) Unless precluded elsewhere in the solicitation, the PHA/IHA may accept any item or combination of items bid.
- (f) The PHA/IHA may reject any bid as nonresponsive if it is materially unbalanced as to the prices for the various items of work to be performed. A bid is materially unbalanced when it is based on prices significantly less than cost for some work and prices which are significantly overstated for other work.
- (g) A written award shall be furnished to the successful bidder within the period for acceptance specified in the bid and shall result in a binding contract without further action by either party.

Bid Guarantee (applicable to construction and equipment contracts exceeding \$25,000)

All bids must be accompanied by a negotiable bid guarantee which shall not be less than five percent (5%) of the amount of the bid. The bid guarantee may be a certified check, bank draft, U.S. Government Bonds at par value, or a bid bond secured by a surety company acceptable to the U.S. Government and authorized to do business in the state where the work is to be performed. In the case where the work under the contract will be performed on an Indian reservation area, the bid guarantee may also be an irrevocable Letter of Credit (see provision 10, Assurance of Completion, below). Certified checks and bank drafts must be made payable to the order of the PHA/IHA. The bid guarantee shall insure the execution of the contract and the furnishing of a method of assurance of completion by the successful bidder as required by the solicitation. Failure to submit a bid guarantee with the bid shall result in the rejection of the bid. Bid guarantees submitted by unsuccessful bidders will be returned as soon as practicable after bid opening.

10. Assurance of Completion

- (a) Unless otherwise provided in State law, the successful bidder shall furnish an assurance of completion prior to the execution of any contract under this solicitation. This assurance may be [Contracting Officer check applicable items] —
- [X] (1) a performance and payment bond in a penal sum of 100 percent of the contract price; or, as may be required or permitted by State law;
- [] (2) separate performance and payment bonds, each for 50 percent or more of the contract price;
- [] (3) a 20 percent cash escrow;
- [] (4) a 25 percent irrevocable letter of credit; or,
- [] (5) an irrevocable letter of credit for 10 percent of the total contract price with a monitoring and disbursements agreement with the IHA (applicable only to contracts awarded by an IHA under the Indian Housing Program).
- (b) Bonds must be obtained from guarantee or surety companies acceptable to the U.S. Government and authorized to do business in the state where the work is to be performed. Individual sureties will not be considered. U.S. Treasury Circular Number 570, published annually in the Federal Register, lists companies approved to act as sureties on bonds securing Government contracts, the maximum underwriting limits on each contract bonded, and the States in which the company is licensed to do business. Use of companies listed in this circular is mandatory. Copies of the circular may be downloaded on the U.S. Department of Treasury website http://www.fms.treas.gov/c570/index.html, or ordered for a minimum fee by contacting the Government Printing Office at (202) 512-2168.

- (c) Each bond shall clearly state the rate of premium and the total amount of premium charged. The current power of attorney for the person who signs for the surety company must be attached to the bond. The effective date of the power of attorney shall not precede the date of the bond. The effective date of the bond shall be on or after the execution date of the contract.
- (d) Failure by the successful bidder to obtain the required assurance of completion within the time specified, or within such extended period as the PHA/IHA may grant based upon reasons determined adequate by the PHA/IHA, shall render the bidder ineligible for award. The PHA/IHA may then either award the contract to the next lowest responsible bidder or solicit new bids. The PHA/IHA may retain the ineligible bidder's bid guarantee.

Preconstruction Conference (applicable to construction contracts)

After award of a contract under this solicitation and prior to the start of work, the successful bidder will be required to attend a preconstruction conference with representatives of the PHA/IHA and its architect/engineer, and other interested parties convened by the PHA/IHA. The conference will serve to acquaint the participants with the general plan of the construction operation and all other requirements of the contract (e.g., Equal Employment Opportunity, Labor Standards). The PHA/IHA will provide the successful bidder with the date, time, and place of the conference.

- 12. Indian Preference Requirements (applicable only if this solicitation is for a contract to be performed on a project for an Indian Housing Authority)
- (a) HUD has determined that the contract awarded under this solicitation is subject to the requirements of section 7(b) of the Indian Self-Determination and Education Assistance Act (25 U.S.C. 450e(b)). Section 7(b) requires that any contract or subcontract entered into for the benefit of Indians shall require that, to the greatest extent feasible
- (1) Preferences and opportunities for training and employment (other than core crew positions; see paragraph (h) below) in connection with the administration of such contracts or subcontracts be given to qualified "Indians." The Act defines "Indians" to mean persons who are members of an Indian tribe and defines "Indian tribe" to mean any Indian tribe, band, nation, or other organized group or community, including any Alaska Native village or regional or village corporation as defined in or established pursuant to the Alaska Native Claims Settlement Act, which is recognized as eligible for the special programs and services provided by the United States to Indians because of their status as Indians; and,
- (2) Preference in the award of contracts or subcontracts in connection with the administration of contracts be given to Indian organizations and to Indian-owned economic enterprises, as defined in section 3 of the Indian Financing Act of 1974 (25 U.S.C. 1452). That Act defines "economic enterprise" to mean any Indianowned commercial, industrial, or business activity established or organized for the purpose of profit, except that the Indian ownership must constitute not less than 51 percent of the enterprise; "Indian organization" to mean the governing body of any Indian tribe or entity established or recognized by such governing body; "Indian" to mean any person who is a member of any tribe, band, group, pueblo, or community which is recognized by the Federal Government as eligible for services from the Bureau of Indian Affairs and any "Native" as defined in the Alaska Native Claims Settlement Act: and Indian "tribe" to mean any Indian tribe, band, group, pueblo, or community including Native villages and Native groups (including

corporations organized by Kenai, Juneau, Sitka, and Kodiak) as defined in the Alaska Native Claims Settlement Act, which is recognized by the Federal Government as eligible for services from the Bureau of Indian Affairs.

- (b) (1) The successful Contractor under this solicitation shall comply with the requirements of this provision in awarding all subcontracts under the contract and in providing training and employment opportunities.
- (2) A finding by the IHA that the contractor, either (i) awarded a subcontract without using the procedure required by the IHA, (ii) falsely represented that subcontracts would be awarded to Indian enterprises or organizations; or, (iii) failed to comply with the contractor's employment and training preference bid statement shall be grounds for termination of the contract or for the assessment of penalties or other remedies.
- (c) If specified elsewhere in this solicitation, the IHA may restrict the solicitation to qualified Indian-owned enterprises and Indian organizations. If two or more (or a greater number as specified elsewhere in the solicitation) qualified Indian-owned enterprises or organizations submit responsive bids, award shall be made to the qualified enterprise or organization with the lowest responsive bid. If fewer than the minimum required number of qualified Indian-owned enterprises or organizations submit responsive bids, the IHA shall reject all bids and readvertise the solicitation in accordance with paragraph (d) below.
- (d) If the IHA prefers not to restrict the solicitation as described in paragraph (c) above, or if after having restricted a solicitation an insufficient number of qualified Indian enterprises or organizations submit bids, the IHA may advertise for bids from non-Indian as well as Indian-owned enterprises and Indian organizations. Award shall be made to the qualified Indian enterprise or organization with the lowest responsive bid if that bid is -
- (1) Within the maximum HUD-approved budget amount established for the specific project or activity for which bids are being solicited; and
- (2) No more than the percentage specified in 24 CFR 905.175(c) higher than the total bid price of the lowest responsive bid from any qualified bidder. If no responsive bid by a qualified Indian-owned economic enterprise or organization is within the stated range of the total bid price of the lowest responsive bid from any qualified enterprise, award shall be made to the bidder with the lowest bid.
- (e) Bidders seeking to qualify for preference in contracting or subcontracting shall submit proof of Indian ownership with their bids. Proof of Indian ownership shall include but not be limited to:
- (1) Certification by a tribe or other evidence that the bidder is an Indian. The IHA shall accept the certification of a tribe that an individual is a member.
- (2) Evidence such as stock ownership, structure, management, control, financing and salary or profit sharing arrangements of the enterprise.

- (f) (1) All bidders must submit with their bids a statement describing how they will provide Indian preference in the award of subcontracts. The specific requirements of that statement and the factors to used by the IHA in determining the statement's adequacy are included as an attachment to this solicitation. Any bid that fails to include the required statement shall be rejected as nonresponsive. The IHA may require that comparable statements be provided by subcontractors to the successful Contractor, and may require the Contractor to reject any bid or proposal by a subcontractor that fails to include the statement.
- (2) Bidders and prospective subcontractors shall submit a certification (supported by credible evidence) to the IHA in any instance where the bidder or subcontractor believes it is infeasible to provide Indian preference in subcontracting. The acceptance or rejection by the IHA of the certification shall be final. Rejection shall disqualify the bid from further consideration.
- (g) All bidders must submit with their bids a statement detailing their employment and training opportunities and their plans to provide preference to Indians in implementing the contract; and the number or percentage of Indians anticipated to be employed and trained. Comparable statements from all proposed subcontractors must be submitted. The criteria to be used by the IHA in determining the statement(s)'s adequacy are included as an attachment to this solicitation. Any bid that fails to include the required statement(s), or that includes a statement that does not meet minimum standards required by the IHA shall be rejected as nonresponsive.
- (h) Core crew employees. A core crew employee is an individual who is a bona fide employee of the contractor at the time the bid is submitted; or an individual who was not employed by the bidder at the time the bid was submitted, but who is regularly employed by the bidder in a supervisory or other key skilled position when work is available. Bidders shall submit with their bids a list of all core crew employees.
- (i) Preference in contracting, subcontracting, employment, and training shall apply not only on-site, on the reservation, or within the IHA's jurisdiction, but also to contracts with firms that operate outside these areas (e.g., employment in modular or manufactured housing construction facilities).
- (j) Bidders should contact the IHA to determine if any additional local preference requirements are applicable to this solicitation.
- (k) The IHA [] does [] does not [Contracting Officer check applicable box] maintain lists of Indian-owned economic enterprises and Indian organizations by specialty (e.g., plumbing, electrical, foundations), which are available to bidders to assist them in meeting their responsibility to provide preference in connection with the administration of contracts and subcontracts.

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Office of Public and Indian Housing

Representations, Certifications, and Other Statements of Bidders Public and Indian Housing Programs

Representations, Certifications, and Other Statements of Bidders

Public and Indian Housing Programs

Table of Contents

Clause		
1.	Certificate of Independent Price Determination	1
2.	Contingent Fee Representation and Agreement	1
3.	Certification and Disclosure Regarding Payments to Influence Certain Federal Transactions	1
4.	Organizational Conflicts of Interest Certification	2
5.	Bidder's Certification of Eligibility	2
6.	Minimum Bid Acceptance Period	2
7.	Small, Minority, Women-Owned Business Concern Representation	2
8.	Indian-Owned Economic Enterprise and Indian Organization Representation	2
9.	Certification of Eligibility Under the Davis-Bacon Act	3
10.	Certification of Nonsegregated Facilities	3
11.	Clean Air and Water Certification	3
12.	Previous Participation Certificate	3
13.	Bidder's Signature	3

Certificate of Independent Price Determination

- (a) The bidder certifies that--
- (1) The prices in this bid have been arrived at independently, without, for the purpose of restricting competition, any consultation, communication, or agreement with any other bidder or competitor relating to (i) those prices, (ii) the intention to submit a bid, or (iii) the methods or factors used to calculate the prices offered;
- (2) The prices in this bid have not been and will not be knowingly disclosed by the bidder, directly or indirectly, to any other bidder or competitor before bid opening (in the case of a sealed bid solicitation) or contract award (in the case of a competitive proposal solicitation) unless otherwise required by law; and
- (3) No attempt has been made or will be made by the bidder to induce any other concern to submit or not to submit a bid for the purpose of restricting competition.
- (b) Each signature on the bid is considered to be a certification by the signatory that the signatory--
- (1) Is the person in the bidder's organization responsible for determining the prices being offered in this bid or proposal, and that the signatory has not participated and will not participate in any action contrary to subparagraphs (a)(I) through (a)(3) above; or
- (2) (i) Has been authorized, in writing, to act as agent for the following principals in certifying that those principals have not participated, and will not participate in any action contrary to subparagraphs (a)(l) through (a)(3) above.

full name of person(s) in the bidder's organization responsible for determining the prices offered in this bid or proposal, and the title of his or her position in the bidder's organization];

(ii) As an authorized agent, does certify that the principals named in subdivision (b)(2)(i) above have not participated, and will not participate, in any action contrary to subparagraphs (a)(1) through (a)(3) above; and

- (iii) As an agent, has not personally participated, and will not participate in any action contrary to subparagraphs (a)(1) through (a)(3) above.
- (c) If the bidder deletes or modifies subparagraph (a)2 above, the bidder must furnish with its bid a signed statement setting forth in detail the circumstances of the disclosure.
- [] [Contracting Officer check if following paragraph is applicable]
- (d) Non-collusive affidavit. (applicable to contracts for construction and equipment exceeding \$50,000)
- (1) Each bidder shall execute, in the form provided by the PHA/ IHA, an affidavit to the effect that he/she has not colluded with any other person, firm or corporation in regard to any bid submitted in response to this solicitation. If the successful bidder did not submit the affidavit with his/her bid, he/she must submit it within three (3) working days of bid opening. Failure to submit the affidavit by that date may render the bid nonresponsive. No contract award will be made without a properly executed affidavit.
- (2) A fully executed "Non-collusive Affidavit" [] is, [] is not included with the bid.

Contingent Fee Representation and Agreement

(a) Definitions. As used in this provision:

"Bona fide employee" means a person, employed by a bidder and subject to the bidder's supervision and control as to time, place, and manner of performance, who neither exerts, nor proposes to exert improper influence to solicit or obtain contracts nor holds out as being able to obtain any contract(s) through improper influence.

"Improper influence" means any influence that induces or tends to induce a PHA/IHA employee or officer to give consideration or to act regarding a PHA/IHA contract on any basis other than the merits of the matter.

- (b) The bidder represents and certifies as part of its bid that, except for full-time bona fide employees working solely for the bidder, the
- (1) [] has, [] has not employed or retained any person or company to solicit or obtain this contract; and
- (2) [] has, [] has not paid or agreed to pay to any person or company employed or retained to solicit or obtain this contract any commission, percentage, brokerage, or other fee contingent upon or resulting from the award of this contract.
- (c) If the answer to either (a)(1) or (a)(2) above is affirmative, the bidder shall make an immediate and full written disclosure to the PHA/IHA Contracting Officer.
- (d) Any misrepresentation by the bidder shall give the PHA/IHA the right to (1) terminate the contract; (2) at its discretion, deduct from contract payments the amount of any commission, percentage, brokerage, or other contingent fee; or (3) take other remedy pursuant to the contract.
- **Certification and Disclosure Regarding Payments to** 3. Influence Certain Federal Transactions (applicable to contracts exceeding \$100,000)
- (a) The definitions and prohibitions contained in Section 1352 of title 31, United States Code, are hereby incorporated by reference in paragraph (b) of this certification.

DOCUMENT 00101 - REPRESENTATION, CERTIFICATION AND OTHER STATEMENTS OF BIDDERS

- (b) The bidder, by signing its bid, hereby certifies to the best of his or her knowledge and belief as of December 23, 1989 that:
- (1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress on his or her behalf in connection with the awarding of a contract resulting from this solicitation;
- (2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds (including profit or fee received under a covered Federal transaction) have been paid, or will be paid, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress on his or her behalf in connection with this solicitation, the bidder shall complete and submit, with its bid, OMB standard form LLL, "Disclosure of Lobbying Activities;" and
- (3) He or she will include the language of this certification in all subcontracts at any tier and require that all recipients of subcontract awards in excess of \$100,000 shall certify and disclose accordingly.
- (c) Submission of this certification and disclosure is a prerequisite for making or entering into this contract imposed by section 1352, title 31, United States Code. Any person who makes an expenditure prohibited under this provision or who fails to file or amend the disclosure form to be filed or amended by this provision, shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than \$10,000, and not more than \$100,000, for each such failure.
- (d) Indian tribes (except those chartered by States) and Indian organizations as defined in section 4 of the Indian Self-Determination and Education Assistance Act (25 U.S.C. 450B) are exempt from the requirements of this provision.

4. Organizational Conflicts of Interest Certification

The bidder certifies that to the best of its knowledge and belief and except as otherwise disclosed, he or she does not have any organizational conflict of interest which is defined as a situation in which the nature of work to be performed under this proposed contract and the bidder's organizational, financial, contractual, or other interests may, without some restriction on future activities:

- (a) Result in an unfair competitive advantage to the bidder; or,
- (b) Impair the bidder's objectivity in performing the contract work.
- [] In the absence of any actual or apparent conflict, I hereby certify that to the best of my knowledge and belief, no actual or apparent conflict of interest exists with regard to my possible performance of this procurement.

5. Bidder's Certification of Eligibility

- (a) By the submission of this bid, the bidder certifies that to the best of its knowledge and belief, neither it, nor any person or firm which has an interest in the bidder's firm, nor any of the bidder's subcontractors, is ineligible to:
- (1) Be awarded contracts by any agency of the United States Government, HUD, or the State in which this contract is to be performed; or,
 - (2) Participate in HUD programs pursuant to 24 CFR Part 24.
- (b) The certification in paragraph (a) above is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when making award. If it is later determined that the bidder knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, the contract may be terminated for default, and the bidder may be debarred or suspended from participation in HUD programs and other Federal contract programs.

6. Minimum Bid Acceptance Period

- (a) "Acceptance period," as used in this provision, means the number of calendar days available to the PHA/IHA for awarding a contract from the date specified in this solicitation for receipt of bids.
- (b) This provision supersedes any language pertaining to the acceptance period that may appear elsewhere in this solicitation.
- (c) The PHA/IHA requires a minimum acceptance period of [Contracting Officer insert time period] calendar days.
- (d) In the space provided immediately below, bidders may specify a longer acceptance period than the PHA's/IHA's minimum requirement. The bidder allows the following acceptance period: calendar days.
- (e) A bid allowing less than the PHA's/IHA's minimum acceptance period will be rejected.
- (f) The bidder agrees to execute all that it has undertaken to do, in compliance with its bid, if that bid is accepted in writing within (1) the acceptance period stated in paragraph (c) above or (2) any longer acceptance period stated in paragraph (d) above.

7. Small, Minority, Women-Owned Business Concern Representation

The bidder represents and certifies as part of its bid/ offer that it -(a) [] is, [] is not a small business concern. "Small business concern," as used in this provision, means a concern, including its affiliates, that is independently owned and operated, not dominant in the field of operation in which it is bidding, and qualified as a small business under the criteria and size standards in 13 CFR 121.

(b) []is, []is not a women-owned business enterprise. "Women-owned business enterprise," as used in this provision, means a business that is at least 51 percent owned by a woman or women who are U.S. citizens and who also control and operate the business.

(c) [] is, [] is not a minority business enterprise. "Minority business enterprise," as used in this provision, means a business which is at least 51 percent owned or controlled by one or more minority group members or, in the case of a publicly owned business, at least 51 percent of its voting stock is owned by one or more minority group members, and whose management and daily operations are controlled by one or more such individuals. For the purpose of this definition, minority group members are:

(Check the block applicable to you)

[] Black Americans	[] Asian Pacific Americans
[] Hispanic Americans	[] Asian Indian Americans
[] Native Americans	[] Hasidic Jewish Americans

8. Indian-Owned Economic Enterprise and Indian Organization Representation (applicable only if this solicitation is for a contract to be performed on a project for an Indian Housing Authority)

The bidder represents and certifies that it:

- (a) [] is, [] is not an Indian-owned economic enterprise. "Economic enterprise," as used in this provision, means any commercial, industrial, or business activity established or organized for the purpose of profit, which is at least 51 percent Indian owned. "Indian," as used in this provision, means any person who is a member of any tribe, band, group, pueblo, or community which is recognized by the Federal Government as eligible for services from the Bureau of Indian Affairs and any "Native" as defined in the Alaska Native Claims Settlement Act.
- (b) [] is, [] is not an Indian organization. "Indian organization," as used in this provision, means the governing body of any Indian tribe or entity established or recognized by such governing body. Indian "tribe" means any Indian tribe, band, group, pueblo, or

00101-3

DOCUMENT 00101 - REPRESENTATION, CERTIFICATION AND OTHER STATEMENTS OF BIDDERS

community including Native villages and Native groups (including corporations organized by Kenai, Juneau, Sitka, and Kodiak) as defined in the Alaska Native Claims Settlement Act, which is recognized by the Federal Government as eligible for services from the Bureau of Indian Affairs.

Certification of Eligibility Under the Davis-Bacon Act (applicable to construction contracts exceeding \$2,000)

- (a) By the submission of this bid, the bidder certifies that neither it nor any person or firm who has an interest in the bidder's firm is a person or firm ineligible to be awarded contracts by the United States Government by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1).
- (b) No part of the contract resulting from this solicitation shall be subcontracted to any person or firm ineligible to be awarded contracts by the United States Government by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1).
- (c) The penalty for making false statements is prescribed in the U. S. Criminal Code, 18 U.S.C. 1001.

Certification of Nonsegregated Facilities (applicable to contracts exceeding \$10,000)

- (a) The bidder's attention is called to the clause entitled **Equal Employment Opportunity** of the General Conditions of the Contract for Construction.
- (b) "Segregated facilities," as used in this provision, means any waiting rooms, work areas, rest rooms and wash rooms, restaurants and other eating areas, time clocks, locker rooms and other storage or dressing areas, parking lots, drinking fountains, recreation or entertainment areas, transportation, and housing facilities provided for employees, that are segregated by explicit directive or are in fact segregated on the basis of race, color, religion, or national origin because of habit, local custom, or otherwise.
- (c) By the submission of this bid, the bidder certifies that it does not and will not maintain or provide for its employees any segregated facilities at any of its establishments, and that it does not and will not permit its employees to perform their services at any location under its control where segregated facilities are maintained. The bidder agrees that a breach of this certification is a violation of the Equal Employment Opportunity clause in the contract.
- (d) The bidder further agrees that (except where it has obtained identical certifications from proposed subcontractors for specific time periods) prior to entering into subcontracts which exceed \$10,000 and are not exempt from the requirements of the Equal Employment Opportunity clause, it will:
- (1) Obtain identical certifications from the proposed subcontractors;
 - (2) Retain the certifications in its files; and
- (3) Forward the following notice to the proposed subcontractors (except if the proposed subcontractors have submitted identical certifications for specific time periods):

Notice to Prospective Subcontractors of Requirement for Certifications of Nonsegregated Facilities

A Certification of Nonsegregated Facilities must be submitted before the award of a subcontract exceeding \$10,000 which is not exempt from the provisions of the Equal Employment Opportunity clause of the prime contract. The certification may be submitted either for each subcontract or for all subcontracts during a period (i.e., quarterly, semiannually, or annually).

Note: The penalty for making false statements in bids is prescribed in 18 U.S.C. 1001.

Clean Air and Water Certification (applicable to contracts exceeding \$100,000)

The bidder certifies that:

- (a) Any facility to be used in the performance of this contract [] is, [] is not listed on the Environmental Protection Agency List of Violating Facilities:
- (b) The bidder will immediately notify the PHA/IHA Contracting Officer, before award, of the receipt of any communication from the Administrator, or a designee, of the Environmental Protection Agency, indicating that any facility that the bidder proposes to use for the performance of the contract is under consideration to be listed on the EPA List of Violating Facilities; and,
- (c) The bidder will include a certification substantially the same as this certification, including this paragraph (c), in every nonexempt subcontract.
- **12. Previous Participation Certificate** (applicable to construction and equipment contracts exceeding \$50,000)
- (a) The bidder shall complete and submit with his/her bid the Form HUD-2530, "Previous Participation Certificate." If the successful bidder does not submit the certificate with his/her bid, he/she must submit it within three (3) working days of bid opening. Failure to submit the certificate by that date may render the bid nonresponsive. No contract award will be made without a properly executed certificate.
- (b) A fully executed "Previous Participation Certificate"[] is, [] is not included with the bid.

13. Bidder's Signature

The bidder hereby certifies that the information contained in these certifications and representations is accurate, complete, and current.

(Signature and Date)		
(Typed or Printed Name)	 	
(Title)	 	
(Company Name)	 	
(Company Address)		

EMPLOYEE RIGHTS UNDER THE DAVIS-BACON ACT

FOR LABORERS AND MECHANICS EMPLOYED ON FEDERAL OR FEDERALLY ASSISTED CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS

THE UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR WAGE AND HOUR DIVISION

PREVAILING WAGES

You must be paid not less than the wage rate listed in the Davis-Bacon Wage Decision posted with this Notice for the work you perform.

OVERTIME

You must be paid not less than one and one-half times your basic rate of pay for all hours worked over 40 in a work week. There are few exceptions.

ENFORCEMENT

Contract payments can be withheld to ensure workers receive wages and overtime pay due, and liquidated damages may apply if overtime pay requirements are not met. Davis-Bacon contract clauses allow contract termination and debarment of contractors from future federal contracts for up to three years. A contractor who falsifies certified payroll records or induces wage kickbacks may be subject to civil or criminal prosecution, fines and/or imprisonment.

APPRENTICES

Apprentice rates apply only to apprentices properly registered under approved Federal or State apprenticeship programs.

PROPER PAY

If you do not receive proper pay, or require further information on the applicable wages, contact the Contracting Officer listed below:

Willie Mae Thomas, Director of Capital Funds Operations Palatka Housing Authority 400 North 15th Street Palatka, FL 32177

Telephone: (386)-329-0132

or contact the U.S. Department of Labor's Wage and Hour Division.



DOCUMENT 00130

PRE-BID CONFERENCE

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.1 SUMMARY

- A. All Bidders are encouraged to attend the **PRE-BID CONFERENCE** described in the Invitation for Bids (Section 00020, this manual)
- B. Attendance is strongly encouraged for all Bidders. Subcontractors are also invited and encouraged to attend the Pre-Bid Conference.
- C. Agenda Outline: Prepared by Architect
 - 1. Attendance roster to be signed by all attendees.
 - 2. Introduction of Owner Architect/Engineer Project Team and Attendees.
 - 3. Project Summary and Scope of Work
 - 4. Availability of Documents
 - a. Plan Room
 - b. General Contractors
 - c. Sub-Trade Plan Availability
 - d. Set Purchases (full)
 - 5. Instructions to Bidders and Review of Bid Process (see Document 00100, this manual)
 - 6. U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Supplemental Instructions:
 - a. Instructions to Bidders for contracts
 - b. Representations, Certifications & Other Statements of Bidders
 - 7. Form of Contract (Document 00510)
 - 8. Proposal Submission Requirements & List(s) of Subcontractors (Documents 00099 and 00400)
 - 9. Material and Equipment (Section 01600)
 - 10. Addenda Schedule
 - 11. Contractor Question Period (answers will be included in an addendum)
 - 12. Closing Statements & Site Visit

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

NOT USED

PART 3 - EXECUTION

3.1 AGENDA

A. Copies of this agenda will be available to all parties in attendance.

END OF SECTION

INFORMATION AVAILABLE TO BIDDERS

1.1 ORIGINAL DRAWINGS

- A. Copies of the original drawings for the project are available for viewing at the office of the PHA.
- B. The PHA is not responsible for variations in the existing conditions. Bidders shall decide for themselves the character of the material and conditions to be encountered. Upon request by the bidder, the original drawings may be reviewed upon signing the following waiver:

"We acknowledge by the signature below that the use of the original drawings was intended solely for the Architect's use in the design of this project and shall not be used as a basis for calculations in the preparation of our bid. The use and interpretation of the information for any other purposes shall be entirely the responsibility of the using party."

This waiver must be signed by a person or persons authorized to bind the Bidder to a contract.

Signature	Date
Typed or Printed Name	
Title	
Company Name	

END OF DOCUMENT

BID CHECKLIST

The following documents $\underline{\text{must}}$ be included in bid submittals with the exception of the Drug Free Workplace Program Form which is voluntary:
BID CHECK LIST with Authorized Signature (00300A-1)
BID PROPOSAL FORM (00310)
BID FORM ATTACHMENT (00400-1)
BID BOND FORM (00410)
DRUG FREE WORKPLACE FORM (Optional) (00300A-2)
PUBLIC ENTITY CRIME SWORN STATEMENT (Must be notarized) (Mandatory) (00300A-3)
PROOF OF INSURANCE (00700-36)
INFORMATION AVAILABLE TO BIDDERS (00200)
CONFIDENTIAL BIDDER QUALIFICATION FORM (00040)
NON COLLUSIVE AFFIDAVIT (00480)
$\textbf{REPRESENTATIONS, CERTIFICATIONS, and OTHER STATEMENTS OF BIDDERS} \ (00101)$
CERTIFICATE OF CONTRACTORS LICENSE (00420)
HUD FORM 2530 - PREVIOUS PARTICIPATION CERTIFICATE (00832)

AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE:

All companies certify by their signature that they have read and understand the conditions and specifications of the bid and have included all required documents, and that they have the authority, capacity and capability to perform according to the conditions and specifications of the bid request.

Company Name:	
. ,	Type or Print
Address:	
	er:
Authorized Signat	ure:
Printed Name and	Title:

DRUG FREE WORKPLACE PROGRAM FORM

In order to have a drug-free workplace program, a business shall:

- 1) Publish a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violations of such prohibition.
- 2) Inform employees about the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace, the business's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace, any available drug counselling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs, and the penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.
- 3) Give each employee engaged in providing the commodities or contractual services that are under bid a copy of the statement specified in Subsection (1).
- In the statement specified in Subsection (1), notify the employees that, as a condition of working in the commodities or contractual services that are under bid, the employee will abide by the terms of the statement and will notify the employer of any conviction of, or plea of guilty or nolo contendre to, any violation of Chapter 893 or of any controlled substance law of the United States or any state, for a violation occurring in the workplace no later than five (5) days after conviction.
- 5) Impose a sanction on, or require the satisfactory participation in a drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation program if such is available in the employee's community, by any employee who is so convicted.
- 6) Make good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation of this section.

AS THE PERSON AUTHORIZED TO SIGN THIS	S STATEMENT, I CERTIFY THAT THIS FIRM,
	(Name of Company)
COMPLIES FULLY WITH THE ABOVE REQUIREM	MENTS.
Authorized Signature	Date

SWORN STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 287.133(3)(a), FLORIDA STATUTES, ON PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES

(To be signed in the presence of a	notary public or other officer	authorized to administer oaths)	
STATE OF			
COUNTY OF			
Before me, the undersigned author sworn, made the following stateme		, who, being by	me first duly
1. The business address of		(name of bidder or cont	ractor) is
2. My relationship to	(name of bidde	r or contractor) is:	
(state relationship such as sole pr	oprietor, partner, president,	vice president)	
of any state or federal law by a per public entity in Florida or with an a including, but not limited to, any b	son with respect to and direct gency or political subdivision id or contract for goods or se	287.133 of the Florida Statutes includedly related to the transaction of busines of any other state or with the United Struces to be provided to any public enters, bribery, collusion, racketeering, co	ess with any States, ity or such an
of a public entity crime, with or wit	hout an adjudication of guilt, or information after July 1, 19	ne statute to mean a finding of guilt or in any federal or state trial court of re 189, as a result of a jury verdict, nonju	ecord relating
corporation convicted of a public er in the management of the entity ar executives, partners, shareholders,	ntity crime, or (20 an entity und who has been convicted of , employees, members, and a tion who knowingly entered in	n (1) a predecessor or successor of a punder the control of any natural person a public entity crime, or (3) those off agents who are active in the managemento a joint venture with a person who a 36 months.	who is active icers, directors, ent of an
	gement of the bidder or contr	cutive, partner, shareholder, employed ractor nor any affiliate of the bidder or ., 1989.	
(Draw a line through paragraph 6 i	f paragraph 7 below applies)		
partner, shareholder, employee, m the bidder or contractor or an affilia Section 287.133(3) by order of the name of the convicted person or af	ember, or agent of the bidder ate of the bidder or the control Division of Administrative He filiate to appear on the convi	oidder or contractor, or an officer, direct r or contractor who is active in the mate actor.A determination has been made earings that it is not in the public inter cted vendor list. The name of the contract. A copy of the order of the Division	nagement of pursuant to est for the victed person
(Draw a line through paragraph 7 i			
		mentioned above on the	
, 20			uay or
		(affix seal)	
Notary Public		(******	
My Commission Expires PUR 7068 (8/89)			

BID FORM

FORM OF PROPOSAL (Submit in Triplicate) (Read Instructions Carefully) (DO NOT RETYPE FORM)

DATE:		
FROM:	(Name of Bidder/Firm Name))
	(Address)	
TO:	Palatka Housing Authority 400 North 15 th Street Palatka, FL 32177	
familia	rized with all the conditions affecting and gove	, having visited the site of the proposed project and become erning the construction of the project, hereby proposes to furnish ilities, and services for the proper execution and completion of:
	AT ROSA K RAGSDAL	CABINET REPLACEMENTS LE & JAMES A LONG COMMUNITIES LATKA, FLORIDA
	ct compliance with the drawings, specifications ed by and on file in the office of:	s, addenda and all other Contract documents relating thereto as
	2164	rchitects/Palatka, Inc. A St. Johns Avenue tka, Florida 32177
and do	es hereby propose to furnish all labor, materia etion of the work called for and described by s	als, equipment and services for the proper execution and aid documents for the following:
A.	BASE BID:	
	COST PER COMMUNITY: • ROSA K RAGSDALE PRICE \$	
	JAMES A LONG PRICE	
В.	Unit Price "A":	
	Dollars (\$ per S.F)	
C.	Unit Price "B":	
	Dollars (\$ per S.F)	
D.	Unit Price "C":	
	Price (\$ per Linear Foot)	

E. GENERAL ACKNOWLEDGMENT:

In submitting this bid, the undersigned agrees to the following:

- 1. To honor this bid for a period of 60 days.
- 2. To enter into and execute a Contract if awarded on the basis of this bid, within ten (10) calendar days after Agreement is submitted to him, and to furnish all bonds and insurance required in accordance with the Instructions To Bidders, General Conditions, Supplementary General Conditions, Standard Requirements, and Special Conditions.
- 3. The O.S.H.A. Hazard Communication Compliance Kit is, by reference, made a part hereof. By execution of this Proposal, Contractor acknowledges the O.S.H.A. Hazard Communication Compliance Kit and will abide by its contents in its entirety.

ADDENDUM	

Bidder to list all revisions received,	or, if none, state "NONE RECEIVED"
Addendum No.	, dated
Addendum No.	, dated
Addendum No.	, dated

G. BID SECURITY

- 1. Accompanying this Form of Proposal is a Certified or Cashier's Check, Cash, or a Bid Bond in the amount of five percent (5%) of the Base Bid.
- 2. This offer shall be open to acceptance for ninety (90) days from the bid closing date. If this bid is accepted by the PHA within the period stated above, we, the undersigned, will:
 - a. Execute the Agreement within ten (10) days of its receipt.
 - b. Commence the work within seven (7) days after written Notice to Proceed.

H. CONTRACT TIME

a. If this bid is accepted, we the undersigned will complete the work in one hundred twenty (120) calendar days from the date of Notice to Proceed.

I. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

- a. Bidder understands that the PHA reserves the right to reject any and all bids and to waive any informalities in the bidding.
- b. By signing and submitting this bid, the bidder recognizes the requirements for ten percent (10%) retainage of payments, Paragraph 27.f of the General conditions, HUD Form 5370, dated April 2002, a component part of the Contract Document. The bidder further acknowledges that he understands that under the provisions of local statutes, the retainage will only be placed in an interest-bearing escrow account on project when the contract amount is above that amount specified in those local statutes. Where Contractor's retainage is not governed by local statutes, it may only be subject to being placed in an interest-bearing escrow account with the concurrence of the local HUD office. The bidder further acknowledges that the establishment of such an escrow account is not automatic and may only be considered on written request by the Contractor to the PHA.
- c. The bidder represents that he () has, () has not, participated in a previous Contract or subcontract subject to the Equal Opportunity Clause herein or the clause originally contained in Section 301 of Executive Order No. 10925, or the clause contained in Section 201 of Executive Order No. 11114, as amended by Executive Order No. 11375 of October 17, 1967; that he () has, () has not, filed all required compliance reports and that representations indicating submission of required compliance reports, signed by proposed subcontractors will be obtained prior to subcontract awards. The bidder further represents that he will, if required, submit, and require proposed subcontractors to submit, a compliance report prior to the award of the Contract or subcontract.
- d. Certification of non-segregated facilities: By signing this bid, the bidder certifies that he does not maintain or provide for his employees any segregated facilities at any of his establishments, and that he does not permit his employees to perform their services at any location, under his control, where segregated facilities are maintained. He certifies further that he will not maintain or provide for his employees any segregated facilities at any of his establishments, and that he will not permit his employees to perform their services at any location, under his control, where segregated facilities are maintained. The bidder agrees that a breach of this certification is a violation of the Equal Opportunity Clause in this Contract. As used in the certification, the term "segregated facilities" means any waiting

rooms, work areas, rest rooms and wash rooms, restaurant and other eating areas, time clocks, locker rooms and other storage and dressing areas, parking lots, drinking fountains, recreation or entertainment areas, transportation, housing facilities provided for employees which are segregated by explicit directive or are in fact segregated on the base of race, color, religion, or national origin, because of habit, local custom, or otherwise. He further agrees that (except where he has obtained identical certifications from proposed subcontractors prior to the award of subcontracts for specific time periods) he will obtain identical certifications from proposed subcontractors prior to the award of subcontracts exceeding ten thousand and 00/100 dollars (\$10,000) which are not exempt form the provisions of the Equal Employment Opportunity Clause, that he will retain such certifications in his files; and that he will forward a notice to his proposed subcontractors as provided in the Instructions to Bidders. NOTE: The penalty for making false statements in offers is prescribed in 18 U.S.C. 1001.

e. Contractor agrees to protect, defend, indemnify and hold the PHA, its officers, employees and agents free and harmless from and against any and all losses, penalties, damages, settlements, costs, charges, professional fees or other expenses or liabilities of every kind and character arising out of or relating to any and all claims, liens, demands, obligations, actions, proceeding, or causes of action of every kind in connection with or arising out of this agreement and/or the performance hereof that are due to the agents. The Contractor further agrees to investigate, handle, respond to, provide defense for, and defend the same at its sole expense and agrees to bear all other costs and expenses related thereto.

J. OFFER

- a. By the act of submitting this bid for the proposed Contract, the bidder represents that:
- a. The Bidder and all subcontractors the bidder intend to use have carefully and thoroughly reviewed the drawings, Specifications, Addenda, and other construction Contract Documents and have found them complete and free from ambiguities and sufficient for the purpose intended; further that,
- The Bidder and all workmen, employees, and subcontractors the Bidder intends to use are skilled and experienced in the type of construction represented by the construction Contract Documents bid upon; further that,
- c. Neither the Bidder nor any of the Bidder's employee's agents, intended suppliers or subcontractors have relied upon any verbal representations, allegedly authorized or unauthorized from the PHA, or the PHA's employees or agents, including Architects, engineers, or consultants, in assembling the Bid Price; and further that,
- d. The Bid Price is solely based upon the construction Contract Documents and properly issued written Addenda and not upon any other written representation.

K. APPENDICES

Submit the following Appendices concurrent with bid submissions. *Note: Failure to include these items may cause the bid to be declared non-responsive and be rejected.*

BID CHECK LIST with Authorized Signature (00300A-1)

BID PROPOSAL FORM (00310)

DRUG FREE WORKPLACE FORM (Optional) (00300A-2)

PUBLIC ENTITY CRIME SWORN STATEMENT (Must be notarized) (Mandatory) (00300A-3)

PROOF OF INSURANCE (00700-36)

INFORMATION AVAILABLE TO BIDDERS (00200)

CONFIDENTIAL BIDDER QUALIFICATION FORM (00040)

NON-COLLUSIVE AFFIDAVIT (00480)

REPRESENTATIONS, CERTIFICATIONS, and OTHER STATEMENTS OF BIDDERS (00101)

CERTIFICATE OF CONTRACTORS LICENSE (00420)

HUD FORM 2530 - PREVIOUS PARTICIPATION CERTIFICATE (00832)

Bidder hereby certifies that all statements and amounts entered herein have been carefully prepared under the express conditions as described in the Bidding Requirements, Contract Conditions, and other Contract Documents, and that such statements are true and correct.

BIDDER:	
ADDRESS*:	
STATE & ZIP CODE:	
TELEPHONE NUMBER:	FAX NUMBER:
*If P. O. Box is used, provide phys	sical 911 address of business location.
	By: (Officer of Firm Authorized to sign Bid, type name and title)
	(Signature of Officer)
	(Type Name and Title of Officer)
	Florida State Contractor License Number
NOTARY WITNESS THEREOF,	
(Date)	(Notary Public Signature & Seal or Stamp) SEAL (if a corporation)
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, th	ne bidder has hereunto set his signature and affixed his seal this day of
FIRM NAME:	
	(TYPE OR PRINT)
BY:	
Name and title of officer or other in	ndividual executing proposal:
NAME:	
	(TYPE OR PRINT)
TITLE:	(TYPE OR PRINT)

END OF SECTION

BID FORM ATTACHMENT - LIST OF SUBCONTRACTORS

DIVISION OF WORK	PROPOSED SUBCONTRACTOR	PRINCIPAL/OFFICER	CORP. ADDRESS	LICENSE NO.
DEMOLITION				
ROOFING				

SIGNED: _	
	DDER)

BID BOND

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, That we the undersigned, (Name of Principal) as Principal, and Surety (Name of Surety) are held and firmly bound unto the Palatka Housing Authority hereinafter called the "Local Authority," in the penal sum DOLLARS, Lawful money of the United States, for the payment of which sum well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these present. THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH that whereas the Principal has submitted the accompanying bid, dated the day of , 20 for NOW, THEREFORE, if the Principal shall not withdraw said bid within the period specified therein after the opening of the same, or, if no period be specified, within ninety (90) days after the said opening, and shall within the period specified therefore, or, if no period be specified within ten (10) days after the prescribed forms are presented to him for signature, enter into a written contract with bond with good and sufficient surety or sureties, as may be required, for the faithful performance and proper fulfillment of such contract; or in the event of the withdrawal of said bid within the period specified, or the failure to enter into such contact and give such bond within the time specified, if the Principal shall pay the local Authority the difference between the amount specified in said bid and the amount for which the Local Authority may procure the required work or supplies or both, if the latter amount be in excess of the former, then the above obligation shall be void and of no effect, otherwise to remain in full force and virtue. IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the above-bounded parties have executed this instrument under their several seals this day of ______ 20 ____ the name and corporate seal of each corporate party being hereto affixed and these presents duly signed by its undersigned representative, pursuant to authority of its governing body. In presence of: (SEAL) (Individual Principal) (SEAL) (Business Address) __ (SEAL) (Individual Principal) __ (SEAL) (Business Address) (SEAL) By: (Affix corporate seal)

Attest:			
		(Corporate Principal)	
		(Business Address)	
	Ву: _	(Affix corporate seal)	
Attest:			
		(Corporate Surety)	
		(Business Address)	
	Ву: _	(Affix corporate seal)	
(Power-of-Attorney for person sig	ining for	Surety Company must be attached.)	
CERTIFICATE AS TO CORPORATE PRINCIPAL			
I, certify	y that I a	am the	
for the corporation named as Principal in the within Bor	nd: that	t, w	ho signed said Bond
on behalf of the Principal was then		of	said corporation;
that I know his signature, and his signature thereto is $\boldsymbol{\varsigma}$ for	genuine	and that said Bond duly signed, seale	ed, and attested to
and in behalf of said corporation by authority of its gov	erning b	oody.	
		(Corporate Seal)	

CERTIFICATE OF CONTRACTOR'S LICENSE

The Contractor shall provide a copy of his current license which authorizes him to perform residential work. NOTE: A city or county occupational license will not suffice for the purpose of this section. The Contractor shall provide an original ink signature on the face of the copy of the license. This shall be provided as part of the bid.

The Contractor's license number and date of registration must appear on the envelope containing the bid, otherwise the bid will not be considered.

END OF DOCUMENT

FORM OF CONTRACTOR'S CERTIFICATE AND RELEASE

CERTIFICATE AND RELEASE

FROM:	
TO:	Palatka Housing Authority
RE:	CONTRACT ENTERED INTO THE DAY OF 20 BETWEEN THE:
	Palatka Housing Authority, Palatka, Florida
	HEREINAFTER CALLED THE LOCAL AUTHORITY AND
	(Name of Contractor)
	OF
	(city) (state)
	HEREINAFTER CALLED THE CONTRACTOR FOR THE
	(Type of Construction)
OF:	the KITCHEN CABINET REPLACEMENTS AT ROSA K RAGSDALE & JAMES A LONG COMMUNITIES
	KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:
1	The undersigned hereby certifies that there is due and payable under the Contract and duly approved Change Orders and modifications the undisputed balance of \$
2	The undersigned further certifies that in addition to the amount set forth in Paragraph 1 hereof, there are outstanding and unsettled the following items which he claims are just and due owing by the Local Authority to the Contractor:
	(Itemize claims and amounts claimed. If none, so state.)
3	The undersigned further certifies that all work required under this contract including work required under Change Orders numbered has been performed in accordance with the terms thereof, and that there are no claims of laborers or mechanics for unpaid wages arising out of the performance of this

4. Except for the amount stated in paragraphs 1 and 2 hereof the undersigned has received from the Local Authority all sums of money payable to the undersigned under or pursuant to the aforementioned contract or any change or modification thereof.

contract and that the wage rates paid by the Contractor and all Subcontractors were in conformity with

5. That in consideration of the payment of the amount stated in paragraph 1 hereof the undersigned does hereby release the Local Authority from any and all claims arising under or by virtue of this contract except the amounts listed in paragraph 2 hereof; provided, however, that if for any reason the Local Authority does not pay in full the amount stated in paragraph 1 hereof, said deduction shall not affect validity of this release, but the amount so deducted shall be automatically included under paragraph 2 as an amount which the Contractor has not released but will release upon payment thereof. The Contractor further certifies that upon payment of the amounts listed in paragraph 2 hereof, and of any amount which may be deducted from paragraph 1 hereof, he will release the Local Authority from any and all

the contract provisions relating to said wage rates.

Page _____ of ____

claims of any nature whatsoever arising out of said contract or modification thereof and will execute such further releases or assurances as the Local Authority may request.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, t	he undersigned has signed	and sealed this instrument this	day of
	20		
		(Contractor)	(Seal)
		(Contractor)	
		(Signature and Title)	
	, being first	and duly sworn on oath, deposes and says	s, first, that is the
	of the	, second, that he has read	the foregoing
Certificate of Release by him subs	cribed as	of the	
Affiant further states that the mat	ters and things stated ther	rein are, to the best of his knowledge and l	belief, true.
		(Signature of Affiant)	
Subscribed before me this	day of	, 20:	
Notary:			
My Commission expires:			

END OF DOCUMENT

NON-COLLUSIVE AFFIDAVIT

(Prime Bidder)

	(Fillie Blader)	
State of		
County of		
	hairan Guah dala assassa	decree and com-
	, being first duly sworr	n, deposes and says:
That he is(a pa	artner or officer of the firm of etc)
(а р	arther of officer of the fifth of, etc.)
the party making the foregoing proposal or said bidder has not colluded, conspired, con sham bid or to refrain from bidding, and has collusion, or communication or conference, fix any overhead, profit or cost element of sagainst the Palatka Housing Authority or an said proposal or bid are true.	nived or agreed, directly or indire s not in any manner, directly or in with any person to fix the bid pric aid bid price, or that of any other	ctly, with any bidder or person, to put in directly, sough by agreement or e of affiant or of any other bidder, or to bidder, or to secure any advantage
	Signature of:	
	Bidder, if the bidder is an indiv	idual
	Partner, if the bidder is a partr	nership
	Officer, if the bidder is a corpo	ration
	,	
Subscribed and sworn to before me this	dav of	20 .
Natoria Dublia		
Notary Public		
My Commission expires:		
,		

END OF DOCUMENT

FORM OF CONTRACT

THIS	AGREEMENT, made thisday	y of		in the year Two	Thousand
	by and betwe	een,			
()	A corporation organized and existing	ng under the Laws of	the State of		
()					
()					
,	nafter called the " Contractor " and Pa				ity. "
WITN follow	IESSETH, that the Contractor and the vs:	Local Authority for th	ne consideration state	d herein mutually	agree as
<u>ARTI</u>	CLE I. STATEMENT OF WORK				
	Contractor shall furnish all labor, mate red for the construction and completion		and services, and pe	rform and complet	e all work
		Kitchen Cabinet Re Rosa K Ragsdale & Communit Palatka, Flo	James A Long ies		
in str	ict accordance with the above Project	: Specifications, and <i>I</i>	Addenda thereto num	beredand	dated
conse	ecutively and	and	d the Drawings refere	nced to therein, all	prepared by
	C	RG ARCHITECTS/PA 216A St. Johns Palatka, FL 3	Avenue		
which	n said Specifications, Addenda, and Dr	rawings are incorpora	ated herein by referen	ice and made a par	t hereof.
<u>ARTI</u>	CLE 2. THE CONTRACT PRICE				
	ocal Authority shall pay the Contractoded in the Specifications			urrent funds, subje	ect to additions
				(\$).
Unit	Price "A" in the sum of:				
			(\$_) per Sq. Ft.
Unit	Price "B" in the sum of:				
			(\$_		per Sq. Ft.
ΔII na	avments under this Contract shall be r	made at the office of	the Local Authority		

ARTICLE 3. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

The Contract shall consist of the following component parts:

a.) This instrument

- d.) Technical Specifications
- b.) General Conditions (HUD-5370)
- e.) Drawings as Indicated on Index of Drawings

c.) Addenda

This Instrument, together with the other documents enumerated in this Article 3, which said other documents are as fully a part of the Contract as if hereto attached or herein repeated, form the Contract. In the event that any provision in any component part of this Contract conflicts with any provision of any other component part, the provision of the component part first enumerated in this Article 3. Shall govern, except as otherwise specifically stated. The various provisions in Addenda shall be construed in the order of preference of the component part of the Contract which each modifies.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Instrument to be executed in four (4) original counterparts the day and year first above written.

Attest:	
	(Contractor)
	BY
Witness	
	TITLE
Witness	
	(Street)
	(City, State, Zip)
	Palatka Housing Authority (Local Authority)
Witness	BY
Wikeses	TITLE
Witness	

(Print or type names underneath all signatures.)

END OF DOCUMENT

Performance Bond

CONTRACTOR: (Name, legal status and address)	SURETY: (Name, legal status and principal place of business)	ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS: The author of this document has
OWNER: (Name, legal status and address)		added information needed for its completion. The author may also have revised the text of the original AIA standard form. An Additions and Deletions Report that notes added information as well as revisions to the standard form text is available from the author and should be reviewed. A
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT Date: Amount: \$ Description: (Name and location)		vertical line in the left margin of this document indicates where the author has added necessary information and where the author has added to or deleted from the original AIA text.
sample		This document has important legal consequences. Consultation with an attorney is encouraged with respect to its completion or modification.
Date: (Not earlier than Construction Contract)	t Date)	Any singular reference to Contractor, Surety, Owner or other party shall be considered plural where applicable.
Amount: \$ Modifications to this Bond:	None See Section 16	
CONTRACTOR AS PRINCIPAL Company: (Corporate Seal)	SURETY Company: (Corporate Seal)	
Signature: Name and Title: (Any additional signatures appear on the	Signature: Name and Title: he last page of this Performance Bond.)	
(FOR INFORMATION ONLY — Name, AGENT or BROKER:	address and telephone) OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE: (Architect, Engineer or other party:)	

AIA Document A312™ – 2010 Performance Bond. The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved, WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AIA software at 10:24:44 on 03/05/2015 under Order No.7222959630 1 which expires on 08/01/2015, and is not for resale.

Init.

- § 1 The Contractor and Surety, jointly and severally, bind themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators; successors and assigns to the Owner for the performance of the Construction Contract, which is incorporated herein by reference.
- § 2 If the Contractor performs the Construction Contract, the Surety and the Contractor shall have no obligation under this Bond, except when applicable to participate in a conference as provided in Section 3.
- § 3 If there is no Owner Default under the Construction Contract, the Surety's obligation under this Bond shall arise after
 - the Owner first provides notice to the Contractor and the Surety that the Owner is considering declaring a Contractor Default. Such notice shall indicate whether the Owner is requesting a conference among the Owner, Contractor and Surety to discuss the Contractor's performance. If the Owner does not request a conference, the Surety may, within five (5) business days after receipt of the Owner's notice, request such a conference. If the Surety timely requests a conference, the Owner shall attend. Unless the Owner agrees otherwise, any conference requested under this Section 3.1 shall be held within ten (10) business days of the Surety's receipt of the Owner's notice. If the Owner, the Contractor and the Surety agree, the Contractor shall be allowed a reasonable time to perform the Construction Contract, but such an agreement shall not waive the Owner's right, if any, subsequently to declare a Contractor Default;
 - .2 the Owner declares a Contractor Default, terminates the Construction Contract and notifies the Surety; and
 - .3 the Owner has agreed to pay the Balance of the Contract Price in accordance with the terms of the Construction Contract to the Surety or to a contractor selected to perform the Construction Contract.
- § 4 Failure on the part of the Owner to comply with the notice requirement in Section 3.1 shall not constitute a failure to comply with a condition precedent to the Surety's obligations, or release the Surety from its obligations, except to the extent the Surety demonstrates actual prejudice.
- § 5 When the Owner has satisfied the conditions of Section 3, the Surety shall promptly and at the Surety's expense take one of the following actions:
- § 5.1 Arrange for the Contractor, with the consent of the Owner, to perform and complete the Construction Contract;
- § 5.2 Undertake to perform and complete the Construction Contract itself, through its agents or independent contractors;
- § 5.3 Obtain bids or negotiated proposals from qualified contractors acceptable to the Owner for a contract for performance and completion of the Construction Contract, arrange for a contract to be prepared for execution by the Owner and a contractor selected with the Owner's concurrence, to be secured with performance and payment bonds executed by a qualified surety equivalent to the bonds issued on the Construction Contract, and pay to the Owner the amount of damages as described in Section 7 in excess of the Balance of the Contract Price incurred by the Owner as a result of the Contractor Default; or
- § 5.4 Waive its right to perform and complete, arrange for completion, or obtain a new contractor and with reasonable promptness under the circumstances:
 - .1 After investigation, determine the amount for which it may be liable to the Owner and, as soon as practicable after the amount is determined, make payment to the Owner; or
 - .2 Deny liability in whole or in part and notify the Owner, citing the reasons for denial.
- § 6 If the Surety does not proceed as provided in Section 5 with reasonable promptness, the Surety shall be deemed to be in default on this Bond seven days after receipt of an additional written notice from the Owner to the Surety demanding that the Surety perform its obligations under this Bond, and the Owner shall be entitled to enforce any remedy available to the Owner. If the Surety proceeds as provided in Section 5.4, and the Owner refuses the payment or the Surety has denied liability, in whole or in part, without further notice the Owner shall be entitled to enforce any remedy available to the Owner.

- § 7 If the Surety elects to act under Section 5.1, 5.2 or 5.3, then the responsibilities of the Surety to the Owner shall not be greater than those of the Contractor under the Construction Contract, and the responsibilities of the Owner to the Surety shall not be greater than those of the Owner under the Construction Contract. Subject to the commitment by the Owner to pay the Balance of the Contract Price, the Surety is obligated, without duplication, for
 - .1 the responsibilities of the Contractor for correction of defective work and completion of the Construction Contract;
 - .2 additional legal, design professional and delay costs resulting from the Contractor's Default, and resulting from the actions or failure to act of the Surety under Section 5; and
 - .3 liquidated damages, or if no liquidated damages are specified in the Construction Contract, actual damages caused by delayed performance or non-performance of the Contractor.
- § 8 If the Surety elects to act under Section 5.1, 5.3 or 5.4, the Surety's liability is limited to the amount of this Bond.
- § 9 The Surety shall not be liable to the Owner or others for obligations of the Contractor that are unrelated to the Construction Contract, and the Balance of the Contract Price shall not be reduced or set off on account of any such unrelated obligations. No right of action shall accrue on this Bond to any person or entity other than the Owner or its heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns.
- § 10 The Surety hereby waives notice of any change, including changes of time, to the Construction Contract or to related subcontracts, purchase orders and other obligations.
- § 11 Any proceeding, legal or equitable, under this Bond may be instituted in any court of competent jurisdiction in the location in which the work or part of the work is located and shall be instituted within two years after a declaration of Contractor Default or within two years after the Contractor ceased working or within two years after the Surety refuses or fails to perform its obligations under this Bond, whichever occurs first. If the provisions of this Paragraph are void or prohibited by law, the minimum period of limitation available to sureties as a defense in the jurisdiction of the suit shall be applicable.
- § 12 Notice to the Surety, the Owner or the Contractor shall be mailed or delivered to the address shown on the page on which their signature appears.
- § 13 When this Bond has been furnished to comply with a statutory or other legal requirement in the location where the construction was to be performed, any provision in this Bond conflicting with said statutory or legal requirement shall be deemed deleted herefrom and provisions conforming to such statutory or other legal requirement shall be deemed incorporated herein. When so furnished, the intent is that this Bond shall be construed as a statutory bond and not as a common law bond.

§ 14 Definitions

Init.

- § 14.1 Balance of the Contract Price. The total amount payable by the Owner to the Contractor under the Construction Contract after all proper adjustments have been made, including allowance to the Contractor of any amounts received or to be received by the Owner in settlement of insurance or other claims for damages to which the Contractor is entitled, reduced by all valid and proper payments made to or on behalf of the Contractor under the Construction Contract.
- § 14.2 Construction Contract. The agreement between the Owner and Contractor identified on the cover page, including all Contract Documents and changes made to the agreement and the Contract Documents.
- § 14.3 Contractor Default. Failure of the Contractor, which has not been remedied or waived, to perform or otherwise to comply with a material term of the Construction Contract.
- § 14.4 Owner Default. Failure of the Owner, which has not been remedied or waived, to pay the Contractor as required under the Construction Contract or to perform and complete or comply with the other material terms of the Construction Contract.
- § 14.5 Contract Documents. All the documents that comprise the agreement between the Owner and Contractor.

§ 15 If this Bond is issued for an agreement between a Contractor and subcontractor, the term Contractor in this Bond shall be deemed to be Subcontractor and the term Owner shall be deemed to be Contractor.

§ 16 Modifications to this bond are as follows:

(Space is provided below for add. CONTRACTOR AS PRINCIPAL	itional signatures of ad	ded parties, other than those of SURETY	appearing on the cover page.
Company:	(Corporate Seal)	Company:	(Corporate Seal)
Signature:		Signature:	
Name and Title: Address:		Name and Title: Address:	

Init.

Payment Bond

CONTRACTOR:	SURETY:	
(Name, legal status and address)	(Name, legal status and principal place of business)	ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS:
	of business)	The author of this document has
		added information needed for its completion. The author may also
		have revised the text of the original
OWNER:		AIA standard form. An Additions and
(Name, legal status and address)		Deletions Report that notes added
		information as well as revisions to the standard form text is available from
3 A		the author and should be reviewed. A
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT		vertical line in the left margin of this
Date:		document indicates where the author
Amount: \$		has added necessary information
Description: (Name and location)		and where the author has added to or deleted from the original AIA text.
sample		ŭ
L. C.		This document has important legal consequences. Consultation with an
		attorney is encouraged with respect
BOND		to its completion or modification.
Date: (Not earlier than Construction Contr	act Date)	Any singular reference to Contractor,
(1401 earlier than Construction Contr	uci Duie)	Surety, Owner or other party shall be
Amount: \$		considered plural where applicable.
Modifications to this Bond:	None See Section 18	
	OUDETS/	
CONTRACTOR AS PRINCIPAL	SURETY (Cornerate Seel)	
Company: (Corporate Seal,	Company: (Corporate Seal)	
Signature:	Signature:	
Name and	Name and	
Title:	Title:	
(Any additional signatures appear on	the last page of this Payment Bond.)	
EOD INFORMATION ONLY No.	us adduses and tolombous)	
(FOR INFORMATION ONLY — Nan AGENT or BROKER:	OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE:	
Committee of mildights	(Architect, Engineer or other party:)	

AIA Document A312TM - 2010 Payment Bond. The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by A IA software at 10:18:35 on 03/05/2015 under Order No.7222959630_1 which expires on 08/91/2015, and is not for resale

Init.

- § 1 The Contractor and Surety, jointly and severally, bind themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns to the Owner to pay for labor, materials and equipment furnished for use in the performance of the Construction Contract, which is incorporated herein by reference, subject to the following terms.
- § 2 If the Contractor promptly makes payment of all sums due to Claimants, and defends, indemnifies and holds harmless the Owner from claims, demands, liens or suits by any person or entity seeking payment for labor, materials or equipment furnished for use in the performance of the Construction Contract, then the Surety and the Contractor shall have no obligation under this Bond.
- § 3 If there is no Owner Default under the Construction Contract, the Surety's obligation to the Owner under this Bond shall arise after the Owner has promptly notified the Contractor and the Surety (at the address described in Section 13) of claims, demands, liens or suits against the Owner or the Owner's property by any person or entity seeking payment for labor, materials or equipment furnished for use in the performance of the Construction Contract and tendered defense of such claims, demands, liens or suits to the Contractor and the Surety.
- § 4 When the Owner has satisfied the conditions in Section 3, the Surety shall promptly and at the Surety's expense defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Owner against a duly tendered claim, demand, lien or suit.
- § 5 The Surety's obligations to a Claimant under this Bond shall arise after the following:
- § 5.1 Claimants, who do not have a direct contract with the Contractor,
 - 1 have furnished a written notice of non-payment to the Contractor, stating with substantial accuracy the amount claimed and the name of the party to whom the materials were, or equipment was, furnished or supplied or for whom the labor was done or performed, within ninety (90) days after having last performed labor or last furnished materials or equipment included in the Claim; and
 - .2 have sent a Claim to the Surety (at the address described in Section 13).
- § 5.2 Claimants, who are employed by or have a direct contract with the Contractor, have sent a Claim to the Surety (at the address described in Section 13).
- § 6 If a notice of non-payment required by Section 5.1.1 is given by the Owner to the Contractor, that is sufficient to satisfy a Claimant's obligation to furnish a written notice of non-payment under Section 5.1.1.
- § 7 When a Claimant has satisfied the conditions of Sections 5.1 or 5.2, whichever is applicable, the Surety shall promptly and at the Surety's expense take the following actions:
- § 7.1 Send an answer to the Claimant, with a copy to the Owner, within sixty (60) days after receipt of the Claim, stating the amounts that are undisputed and the basis for challenging any amounts that are disputed; and
- § 7.2 Pay or arrange for payment of any undisputed amounts.
- § 7.3 The Surety's failure to discharge its obligations under Section 7.1 or Section 7.2 shall not be deemed to constitute a waiver of defenses the Surety or Contractor may have or acquire as to a Claim, except as to undisputed amounts for which the Surety and Claimant have reached agreement. If, however, the Surety fails to discharge its obligations under Section 7.1 or Section 7.2, the Surety shall indemnify the Claimant for the reasonable attorney's fees the Claimant incurs thereafter to recover any sums found to be due and owing to the Claimant.
- § 8 The Surety's total obligation shall not exceed the amount of this Bond, plus the amount of reasonable attorney's fees provided under Section 7.3, and the amount of this Bond shall be credited for any payments made in good faith by the Surety.
- § 9 Amounts owed by the Owner to the Contractor under the Construction Contract shall be used for the performance of the Construction Contract and to satisfy claims, if any, under any construction performance bond. By the Contractor furnishing and the Owner accepting this Bond, they agree that all funds earned by the Contractor in the performance of the Construction Contract are dedicated to satisfy obligations of the Contractor and Surety under this Bond, subject to the Owner's priority to use the funds for the completion of the work.

- § 10 The Surety shall not be liable to the Owner, Claimants or others for obligations of the Contractor that are unrelated to the Construction Contract. The Owner shall not be liable for the payment of any costs or expenses of any Claimant under this Bond, and shall have under this Bond no obligation to make payments to, or give notice on behalf of, Claimants or otherwise have any obligations to Claimants under this Bond.
- § 11 The Surety hereby waives notice of any change, including changes of time, to the Construction Contract or to related subcontracts, purchase orders and other obligations.
- § 12 No suit or action shall be commenced by a Claimant under this Bond other than in a court of competent jurisdiction in the state in which the project that is the subject of the Construction Contract is located or after the expiration of one year from the date (1) on which the Claimant sent a Claim to the Surety pursuant to Section 5.1.2 or 5.2, or (2) on which the last labor or service was performed by anyone or the last materials or equipment were furnished by anyone under the Construction Contract, whichever of (1) or (2) first occurs. If the provisions of this Paragraph are void or prohibited by law, the minimum period of limitation available to sureties as a defense in the jurisdiction of the suit shall be applicable.
- § 13 Notice and Claims to the Surety, the Owner or the Contractor shall be mailed or delivered to the address shown on the page on which their signature appears. Actual receipt of notice or Claims, however accomplished, shall be sufficient compliance as of the date received.
- § 14 When this Bond has been furnished to comply with a statutory or other legal requirement in the location where the construction was to be performed, any provision in this Bond conflicting with said statutory or legal requirement shall be deemed deleted herefrom and provisions conforming to such statutory or other legal requirement shall be deemed incorporated herein. When so furnished, the intent is that this Bond shall be construed as a statutory bond and not as a common law bond.
- § 15 Upon request by any person or entity appearing to be a potential beneficiary of this Bond, the Contractor and Owner shall promptly furnish a copy of this Bond or shall permit a copy to be made.

§ 16 Definitions

- § 16.1 Claim. A written statement by the Claimant including at a minimum:
 - .1 the name of the Claimant;
 - .2 the name of the person for whom the labor was done, or materials or equipment furnished;
 - .3 a copy of the agreement or purchase order pursuant to which labor, materials or equipment was furnished for use in the performance of the Construction Contract;
 - .4 a brief description of the labor, materials or equipment furnished;
 - the date on which the Claimant last performed labor or last furnished materials or equipment for use in the performance of the Construction Contract;
 - .6 the total amount earned by the Claimant for labor, materials or equipment furnished as of the date of the Claim;
 - .7 the total amount of previous payments received by the Claimant; and
 - .8 the total amount due and unpaid to the Claimant for labor, materials or equipment furnished as of the date of the Claim.
- § 16.2 Claimant. An individual or entity having a direct contract with the Contractor or with a subcontractor of the Contractor to furnish labor, materials or equipment for use in the performance of the Construction Contract. The term Claimant also includes any individual or entity that has rightfully asserted a claim under an applicable mechanic's lien or similar statute against the real property upon which the Project is located. The intent of this Bond shall be to include without limitation in the terms "labor, materials or equipment" that part of water, gas, power, light, heat, oil, gasoline, telephone service or rental equipment used in the Construction Contract, architectural and engineering services required for performance of the work of the Contractor and the Contractor's subcontractors, and all other items for which a mechanic's lien may be asserted in the jurisdiction where the labor, materials or equipment were furnished.
- § 16.3 Construction Contract. The agreement between the Owner and Contractor identified on the cover page, including all Contract Documents and all changes made to the agreement and the Contract Documents.

- § 16.4 Owner Default. Failure of the Owner, which has not been remedied or waived, to pay the Contractor as required under the Construction Contract or to perform and complete or comply with the other material terms of the Construction Contract.
- § 16.5 Contract Documents. All the documents that comprise the agreement between the Owner and Contractor.
- § 17 If this Bond is issued for an agreement between a Contractor and subcontractor, the term Contractor in this Bond shall be deemed to be Subcontractor and the term Owner shall be deemed to be Contractor.
- § 18 Modifications to this bond are as follows:

(Space is provided below for addi CONTRACTOR AS PRINCIPAL	tional signatures of ad	ded parties, other that SURETY	n those appearing on the cover page.,
Company:	(Corporate Seal)	Company:	(Corporate Seal)
Signature:		Signature:	
Name and Title: Address:		Name and Title: Address:	

Init.

General Conditions for Construction Contracts - Public Housing Programs

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Office of Public and Indian Housing OMB Approval No. 2577-0157 (exp. 1/31/2027)

Applicability. This form is applicable to any construction/development contract greater than \$250,000.

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 1.0 hours per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Comments regarding the accuracy of this burden estimate and any suggestions for reducing this burden can be sent to the Reports Management Officer, Office of Policy Development and Research, REE, Department of Housing and Urban Development, 451 7th St SW, Room 4176, Washington, DC 20410-5000. When providing comments, please refer to OMB Approval No. 2577-0157. This form includes those clauses required by OMB's common rule on grantee procurement, implemented at HUD in 2 CFR 200, and those requirements set forth in Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968 and its amendment by the Housing and Community Development Act of 1992, implemented by HUD at 24 CFR Part 75. The form is required for construction contracts awarded by Public Housing Agencies (PHAs). The form is used by Housing Authorities in solicitations to provide necessary contract clauses. If the form were not used, PHAs would be unable to enforce their contracts. Responses to the collection of information are required to obtain a benefit or to retain a benefit. The information requested does not lend itself to confidentiality. HUD may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to respond to a collection of information unless it displays a currently valid OMB number.

Clause	Page		Clause	Page
1. Definitions	2		Administrative Requirements	
2. Contractor's Responsibility for Work	2	25.	Contract Period	9
3. Architect's Duties, Responsibilities and Authority	2	26.	Order of Precedence	9
4. Other Contracts	3	27.	Payments	9
Construction Requirements		28.	Contract Modifications	10
5. Preconstruction Conference and Notice to Proceed	3	29.	Changes	10
6. Construction Progress Schedule	3	30.	Suspension of Work	11
7. Site Investigation and Conditions Affecting the Work	3	31.	Disputes	11
8. Differing Site Conditions	4	32.	Default	11
Specifications and Drawings for Construction	4	33.	Liquidated	12
10. As-Built Drawings	5	34.	Termination of Convenience	12
11. Material and Workmanship	5	35.	Assignment of Contract	12
12. Permits and Codes	5	36.	Insurance	12
13. Health, Safety, and Accident Prevention	6	37.	Subcontracts	13
14. Temporary Buildings and Transportation Materials	6	38.	Subcontracting with Small and Minority Firms, Women's Business Enterprise, and Labor Surplus Area Firms	13
15. Availability and Use of Utility Services	6	39.	Equal Employment Opportunity	13
16. Protection of Existing Vegetation, Structures, Equipment, Utilities, and Improvements	6	40.	Employment, Training, and Contracting Opportunities for Low-Income Persons, Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968	14
17. Temporary Buildings and Transportation Materials	7	41.	Interest of Members of Congress	15
18. Clean Air and Water	7	42.	Interest of Members, Officers, or Employees and Former Members, Officers, or Employees	15
19. Energy Efficiency	7	43.	Limitations on Payments Made to Influence	15
20. Inspection and Acceptance of Construction	7	44.	Royalties and Patents	15
21. Use and Possession Prior to	8	45.	Examination and Retention of Contractor's Records	15
22. Warranty of Title	8	46.	Labor Standards-Davis-Bacon and Related Acts	15
23. Warranty of	8	47.	Non-Federal Prevailing Wage Rates	19
24. Prohibition Against	9	48.	Procurement of Recovered	19

Liens Materials

1. Definitions

- (a) "Architect" means the person or other entity engaged by the PHA to perform architectural, engineering, design, and other services related to the work as provided for in the contract. When a PHA uses an engineer to act in this capacity, the terms "architect" and "engineer" shall be synonymous. The Architect shall serve as a technical representative of the Contracting Officer. The Architect's authority is as set forth elsewhere in this contract.
- (b) "Contract" means the contract entered into between the PHA and the Contractor. It includes the forms of Bid, the Bid Bond, the Performance and Payment Bond or Bonds or other assurance of completion, the Certifications, Representations, and Other Statements of Bidders (form HUD-5370), these General Conditions of the Contract for Construction (form HUD-5370), the applicable wage rate determinations from the U.S. Department of Labor, any special conditions included elsewhere in the contract, the specifications, and drawings. It includes all formal changes to any of those documents by addendum, change order, or other modification.
- (c) "Contracting Officer" means the person delegated the authority by the PHA to enter into, administer, and/or terminate this contract and designated as such in writing to the Contractor. The term includes any successor Contracting Officer and any duly authorized representative of the Contracting Officer also designated in writing. The Contracting Officer shall be deemed the authorized agent of the PHA in all dealings with the Contractor.
- (d) "Contractor" means the person or other entity entering into the contract with the PHA to perform all of the work required under the contract.
- (e) "Drawings" means the drawings enumerated in the schedule of drawings contained in the Specifications and as described in the contract clause entitled Specifications and Drawings for Construction herein.
- (f) "HUD" means the United States of America acting through the Department of Housing and Urban Development including the Secretary, or any other person designated to act on its behalf. HUD has agreed, subject to the provision Annual Contributions Terms and Conditions (ACC), to provide financial assistance to the PHA, which includes assistance in financing the work to be performed under this contract. As defined elsewhere in these General Conditions or the contract documents, the determination of HUD may be required to authorize changes in the work or for release of funds to the PHA for payment to the Contractor. Notwithstanding HUD's role, nothing in this contract shall be construed to create any contractual relationship between the Contractor and HUD.
- (g) "Project" means the entire project, whether construction or rehabilitation, the work for which is provided for in whole or in part under this contract.
- (h) "PHA" means the Public Housing Agency organized under applicable state laws which is a party to this contract.
- (j) "Specifications" means the written description of the technical requirements for construction and includes the criteria and tests for determining whether the requirements are met.
- (I) "Work" means materials, workmanship, and manufacture and fabrication of components.

2. Contractor's Responsibility for Work

- (a) The Contractor shall furnish all necessary labor, materials, tools, equipment, and transportation necessary for performance of the work. The Contractor shall also furnish all necessary water, heat, light, and power not made available to the Contractor by the PHA pursuant to the clause entitled Availability and Use of Utility Services herein.
- (b) The Contractor shall perform on the site, and with its own organization, work equivalent to at least [] (12 percent unless otherwise indicated) of the total amount of work to be performed under the order. This percentage may be reduced by a supplemental agreement to this order if, during performing the work, the Contractor requests a reduction and the Contracting Officer determines that the reduction would be to the advantage of the PHA.
- (c) At all times during performance of this contract and until the work is completed and accepted, the Contractor shall directly superintend the work or assign and have on the work site a competent superintendent who is satisfactory to the Contracting Officer and has authority to act for the Contractor.
- (d) The Contractor shall be responsible for all damages to persons or property that occur as a result of the Contractor's fault or negligence, and shall take proper safety and health precautions to protect the work, the workers, the public, and the property of others. The Contractor shall hold and save the PHA, its officers and agents, free and harmless from liability of any nature occasioned by the Contractor's performance. The Contractor shall also be responsible for all materials delivered and work performed until completion and acceptance of the entire work, except for any completed unit of work which may have been accepted under the contract.
- (e) The Contractor shall lay out the work from base lines and bench marks indicated on the drawings and be responsible for all lines, levels, and measurements of all work executed under the contract. The Contractor shall verify the figures before laying out the work and will be held responsible for any error resulting from its failure to do so.
- act on its behalf. HUD has agreed, subject to the provisions of an (f) The Contractor shall confine all operations (including Annual Contributions Terms and Conditions (ACC), to storage of materials) on PHA premises to areas provide financial assistance to the PHA, which includes authorized or approved by the Contracting Officer.
 - (g) The Contractor shall at all times keep the work area, including storage areas, free from accumulations of waste materials. After completing the work and before final inspection, the Contractor shall (1) remove from the premises all scaffolding, equipment, tools, and materials (including rejected materials) that are not the property of the PHA and all rubbish caused by its work; (2) leave the work area in a clean, neat, and orderly condition satisfactory to the Contracting Officer; (3) perform all specified tests; and, (4) deliver the installation in complete and operating condition.
 - (h) The Contractor's responsibility will terminate when all work has been completed, the final inspection made, and the work accepted by the Contracting Officer. The Contractor will then be released from further obligation except as required by the warranties specified elsewhere in the contract.

3. Architect's Duties, Responsibilities, and Authority

(a) The Architect for this contract, and any successor, shall be designated in writing by the Contracting Officer.

- (b) The Architect shall serve as the Contracting Officer's technical representative with respect to architectural, Schedule engineering, and design matters related to the work performed under the contract. The Architect may provide direction on contract performance. Such direction shall be within the scope of the contract and may not be of a nature which: (1) institutes additional work outside the scope of the contract; (2) constitutes a change as defined in the Changes clause herein; (3) causes an increase or decrease in the cost of the contract; (4) alters the Construction Progress Schedule; or (5) changes any of the other express terms or conditions of the contract.
- (c) The Architect's duties and responsibilities may include but shall not be limited to:
- (1) Making periodic visits to the work site, and on the basis of his/her on-site inspections, issuing written reports to the PHA which shall include all observed deficiencies. The Architect shall file a copy of the report with the Contractor's designated representative at the site:
- (2) Making modifications in drawings and technical specifications and assisting the Contracting Officer in the preparation of change orders and other contract modifications for issuance by the Contracting Officer;
- (3) Reviewing and making recommendations with respect to - (i) the Contractor's construction progress schedules; (ii) the Contractor's shop and detailed drawings; (iii) the machinery, mechanical and other equipment and materials or other articles proposed for use by the Contractor; and, (iv) the Contractor's price breakdown and progress payment estimates; and.
- (4) Assisting in inspections, signing Certificates of Completion, and making recommendations with respect to acceptance of work completed under the contract.

4. Other Contracts

The PHA may undertake or award other contracts for additional work at or near the site of the work under this contract. The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the other contractors and with PHA employees and shall carefully adapt scheduling and performing the work under this contract to accommodate the additional work, heeding any direction that may be provided by the Contracting Officer. The Contractor shall not commit or permit any act that will interfere with the performance of work by any other contractor or by PHA employees

Construction Requirements

5. Pre-construction Conference and Notice to Proceed of the work, and that it has investigated and satisfied itself

- (a) Within ten calendar days of contract execution, and prior to the commencement of work, the Contractor shall attend a preconstruction conference with representative of the PHA its Architect, and other interested parties
 - attend a preconstruction conference with representatives of the PHA, its Architect, and other interested parties convened by the PHA. The conference will serve to acquaint the participants with the general plan of the construction operation and all other requirements of the contract. The PHA will provide the Contractor with the date, time, and place of the conference.
- (b) The contractor shall begin work upon receipt of a written Notice to Proceed from the Contracting Officer or designee. The Contractor shall not begin work prior to receiving such notice.

6. Construction Progress

- (a) The Contractor shall, within five days after the work commences on the contract or another period of time determined by the Contracting Officer, prepare and submit to the Contracting Officer for approval three copies of a practicable schedule showing the order in which the Contractor proposes to perform the work, and the dates on which the Contractor contemplates starting and completing the several salient features of the work (including acquiring labor, materials, and equipment). The schedule shall be in the form of a progress chart of suitable scale to indicate appropriately the percentage of work scheduled for completion by any given date during the period. If the Contractor fails to submit a schedule within the time prescribed, the Contracting Officer may withhold approval of progress payments or take other remedies under the contract until the Contractor submits the required schedule.
- (b) The Contractor shall enter the actual progress on the chart as required by the Contracting Officer, and immediately deliver three copies of the annotated schedule to the Contracting Officer. If the Contracting Officer determines, upon the basis of inspection conducted pursuant to the clause entitled Inspection and Acceptance of Construction, herein that the Contractor is not meeting the approved schedule, the Contractor shall take steps necessary to improve its progress, including those that may be required by the Contracting Officer, without additional cost to the PHA. In this circumstance, the Contracting Officer may require the Contractor to increase the number of shifts, overtime operations, days of work, and/or the amount of construction plant, and to submit for approval any supplementary schedule or schedules in chart form as the Contracting Officer deems necessary to demonstrate how the approved rate of progress will be regained.
- (c) Failure of the Contractor to comply with the requirements of the Contracting Officer under this clause shall be grounds for a determination by the Contracting Officer that the Contractor is not prosecuting the work with sufficient diligence to ensure completion within the time specified in the Contract. Upon making this determination, the Contracting Officer may terminate the Contractor's right to proceed with the work, or any separable part of it, in accordance with the Default clause of this contract.

7. Site Investigation and Conditions Affecting the Work

(a) The Contractor acknowledges that it has taken steps reasonably necessary to ascertain the nature and location

as to the general and local conditions which can affect the work or its cost, including but not limited to, (1) conditions bearing upon transportation, disposal, handling, and storage of materials; (2) the availability of labor, water, electric power, and roads; (3) uncertainties of weather, river stages, tides, or similar physical conditions at the site; (4) the conformation and conditions of the ground; and (5) the character of equipment and facilities needed preliminary to and during work performance. The Contractor also acknowledges that it has satisfied itself as to the character, quality, and quantity of surface and subsurface materials or obstacles to be encountered insofar as this information is

- reasonably ascertainable from an inspection of the site,
- including all exploratory work done by the PHA, as well as from the drawings and specifications made a part of this contract. Any failure of the Contractor to take the actions described and acknowledged in this paragraph will not relieve the Contractor from responsibility for estimating properly the difficulty and cost of successfully performing the work, or for proceeding to successfully perform the work without additional expense to the PHA.
- (b) The PHA assumes no responsibility for any conclusions or interpretations made by the Contractor based on the information made available by the PHA. Nor does the PHA assume responsibility for any understanding reached or representation made concerning conditions which can affect the work by any of its officers or agents before the execution of this contract, unless that understanding or representation is expressly stated in this contract.

8. Differing Site Conditions

- (a) The Contractor shall promptly, and before the conditions are disturbed, give a written notice to the Contracting Officer of (1) subsurface or latent physical conditions at the site which differ materially from those indicated in this contract, or (2) unknown physical conditions at the site(s), of an unusual nature, which differ materially from those ordinarily encountered and generally recognized as inhering in work of the character provided for in the contract.
- (b) The Contracting Officer shall investigate the site conditions promptly after receiving the notice. Work shall not proceed at the affected site, except at the
 - Contractor's risk, until the Contracting Officer has provided written instructions to the Contractor. If the conditions do materially so differ and cause an increase or decrease in the Contractor's cost of, or the time required for, performing any part of the work under this contract, whether or not changed as a result of the conditions, the Contractor shall file a claim in writing to the PHA within ten days after receipt of such instructions and, in any event, before proceeding with the work. An equitable adjustment in the contract price, the delivery schedule, or both shall be made under this clause and the contract modified in writing accordingly.
- (c) No request by the Contractor for an equitable adjustment to the contract under this clause shall be allowed, unless the Contractor has given the written notice required; provided, that the time prescribed in (a) above for giving written notice may be extended by the Contracting Officer.
- (d) No request by the Contractor for an equitable adjustment to the contract for differing site conditions shall be allowed if made after final payment under this contract.

9. Specifications and Drawings for Construction

(a) The Contractor shall keep on the work site a copy of the drawings and specifications and shall at all times give the Contracting Officer access thereto. Anything mentioned in the specifications and not shown on the drawings, or shown on the drawings and not mentioned in the specifications, shall be of like effect as if shown or mentioned in both. In case of difference between drawings and specifications, the specifications shall govern. In case of discrepancy in the figures, in the drawings, or in the specifications, the matter shall be

- promptly submitted to the Contracting Officer, who shall promptly make a determination in writing. Any adjustment by the Contractor without such a determination shall be at its own risk and expense. The Contracting Officer shall furnish from time to time such detailed drawings and other information as considered necessary, unless otherwise provided.
- (b) Wherever in the specifications or upon the drawings the words "directed", "required", "ordered", "designated", "prescribed", or words of like import are used, it shall be understood that the "direction", "requirement", "order", "designation", or "prescription", of the Contracting Officer is intended and similarly the words "approved", "acceptable", "satisfactory", or words of like import shall mean "approved by", or "acceptable to", or "satisfactory to" the Contracting Officer, unless otherwise expressly stated.
- (c) Where "as shown" "as indicated", "as detailed", or words of similar import are used, it shall be understood that the reference is made to the drawings accompanying this contract unless stated otherwise. The word "provided" as used herein shall be understood to mean "provide complete in place" that is "furnished and installed".
- (d) "Shop drawings" means drawings, submitted to the PHA by the Contractor, subcontractor, or any lower tier subcontractor, showing in detail (1) the proposed fabrication and assembly of structural elements and (2) the installation (i.e., form, fit, and attachment details) of materials of equipment. It includes drawings, diagrams, layouts, schematics, descriptive literature, illustrations, schedules, performance and test data, and similar materials furnished by the Contractor to explain in detail specific portions of the work required by the contract. The PHA may duplicate, use, and disclose in any manner and for any purpose shop drawings delivered under this contract.
- (e) If this contract requires shop drawings, the Contractor shall coordinate all such drawings, and review them for accuracy, completeness, and compliance with other contract requirements and shall indicate its approval thereon as evidence of such coordination and review. Shop drawings submitted to the Contracting Officer without evidence of the Contractor's approval may be returned for resubmission. The Contracting Officer will indicate an approval or disapproval of the shop drawings and if not approved as submitted shall indicate the PHA's reasons therefore. Any work done before such approval shall be at the Contractor's risk. Approval by the Contracting Officer shall not relieve the Contractor from responsibility for any errors or omissions in such drawings, nor from responsibility for complying with the requirements of this contract, except with respect to variations described and approved in accordance with (f) below
- (f) If shop drawings show variations from the contract requirements, the Contractor shall describe such variations in writing, separate from the drawings, at the time of submission. If the Architect approves any such variation and the Contracting Officer concurs, the Contracting Officer shall issue an appropriate modification to the contract, except that, if the variation is minor or does not involve a change in price or in time of performance, a modification need not be issued.

 (g) It shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to make
- (g) It shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to make timely requests of the PHA for such large scale and full size drawings, color schemes, and other additional information, not already in his possession, which shall be

Previous editions are obsolete Page 4 of 19 form HUD-5370 (1/2014)

- required in the planning and production of the work. Such requests may be submitted as the need arises, but each such request shall be filed in ample time to permit appropriate action to be taken by all parties involved so as to avoid delay.
- (h) The Contractor shall submit to the Contracting Officer for approval four copies (unless otherwise indicated) of all shop drawings as called for under the various headings of these specifications. Three sets (unless otherwise indicated) of all shop drawings, will be retained by the PHA and one set will be returned to the Contractor. As required by the Contracting Officer, the Contractor, upon completing the work under this contract, shall furnish a complete set of all shop drawings as finally approved. These drawings shall show all changes and revisions made up to the time the work is completed and accepted.
- (i) This clause shall be included in all subcontracts at any tier. It shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to ensure that all shop drawings prepared by subcontractors are submitted to the Contracting Officer.

10. As-Built Drawings

- (a) "As-built drawings," as used in this clause, means drawings submitted by the Contractor or subcontractor at any tier to show the construction of a particular structure or work as actually completed under the contract. "As-built drawings" shall be synonymous with "Record drawings."
- (b) As required by the Contracting Officer, the Contractor shall provide the Contracting Officer accurate information to be used in the preparation of permanent as-built drawings. For this purpose, the Contractor shall record on one set of contract drawings all changes from the installations originally indicated, and record final locations of underground lines by depth from finish grade and by accurate horizontal offset distances to permanent surface improvements such as buildings, curbs, or edges of walks
- (c) This clause shall be included in all subcontracts at any tier. It shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to ensure that all as-built drawings prepared by subcontractors are submitted to the Contracting Officer.

11. Material and Workmanship

- (a) All equipment, material, and articles furnished under this contract shall be new and of the most suitable grade for the purpose intended, unless otherwise specifically provided in this contract. References in the contract to equipment, material, articles, or patented processes by trade name, make, or catalog number, shall be regarded as establishing a standard of quality and shall not be construed as limiting competition. The Contractor may, at its option, use any equipment, material, article, or process that, in the judgment of, and as approved by the Contracting Officer, is equal to that named in the specifications, unless otherwise specifically provided in this contract.
- (b) Approval of equipment and materials.
- (1) The Contractor shall obtain the Contracting Officer's approval of the machinery and mechanical and other equipment to be incorporated into the work. When requesting approval, the Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer the name of the manufacturer, the model number, and other information concerning the performance, capacity, nature, and rating of the

- machinery and mechanical and other equipment. When required by this contract or by the Contracting Officer, the Contractor shall also obtain the Contracting Officer's approval of the material or articles which the Contractor contemplates incorporating into the work. When requesting approval, the Contractor shall provide full information concerning the material or articles. Machinery, equipment, material, and articles that do not have the required approval shall be installed or used at the risk of subsequent rejection.
- (2) When required by the specifications or the Contracting Officer, the Contractor shall submit appropriately marked samples (and certificates related to them) for approval at the Contractor's expense, with all shipping charges prepaid. The Contractor shall label, or otherwise properly mark on the container, the material or product represented, its place of origin, the name of the producer, the Contractor's name, and the identification of the construction project for which the material or product is intended to be used.
- (3) Certificates shall be submitted in triplicate, describing each sample submitted for approval and certifying that the material, equipment or accessory complies with contract requirements. The certificates shall include the name and brand of the product, name of manufacturer, and the location where produced.
- (4) Approval of a sample shall not constitute a waiver of the PHA right to demand full compliance with contract requirements. Materials, equipment and accessories may be rejected for cause even though samples have been approved.
- (5) Wherever materials are required to comply with recognized standards or specifications, such specifications shall be accepted as establishing the technical qualities and testing methods, but shall not govern the number of tests required to be made nor modify other contract requirements. The Contracting Officer may require laboratory test reports on items submitted for approval or may approve materials on the basis of data submitted in certificates with samples. Check tests will be made on materials delivered for use only as frequently as the Contracting Officer determines necessary to insure compliance of materials with the specifications. The Contractor will assume all costs of retesting materials which fail to meet contract requirements and/or testing materials offered in substitution for those found deficient.
- (6) After approval, samples will be kept in the Project office until completion of work. They may be built into the work after a substantial quantity of the materials they represent has been built in and accepted.
- (c) Requirements concerning lead-based paint. The Contractor shall comply with the requirements concerning lead-based paint contained in the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. 4821-4846) as implemented by 24 CFR Part 35.

12. Permits and Codes

(a) The Contractor shall give all notices and comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations. Notwithstanding the requirement of the Contractor to comply with the drawings and specifications in the contract, all work installed shall comply with all applicable codes and regulations as amended by any waivers. Before installing the work, the Contractor shall examine the drawings and the specifications for compliance with applicable codes and regulations bearing on the work and shall immediately report any discrepancy it may discover to the Contracting Officer. Where the requirements of the drawings and specifications fail to comply with the applicable code or regulation, the Contracting Officer shall modify the contract by change order pursuant to the clause entitled Changes herein to conform to the code or regulation.

(b) The Contractor shall secure and pay for all permits, fees, and licenses necessary for the proper execution and completion of the work. Where the PHA can arrange for the issuance of all or part of these permits, fees and licenses, without cost to the Contractor, the contract amount shall be reduced accordingly.

13. Health, Safety, and Accident Prevention

- (a) In performing this contract, the Contractor shall:
- (1) Ensure that no laborer or mechanic shall be required to work in surroundings or under working conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous, or dangerous to his/her health and/or safety as determined under construction safety and health standards promulgated by the Secretary of Labor by regulation;
- (2) Protect the lives, health, and safety of other persons;
- Prevent damage to property, materials, supplies, and equipment; and.
- (4) Avoid work interruptions.
- (b) For these purposes, the Contractor shall:
- (1) Comply with regulations and standards issued by the Secretary of Labor at 29 CFR Part 1926. Failure to comply may result in imposition of sanctions pursuant to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (Public Law 91-54, 83 Stat. 96), 40 U.S.C. 3701 et seq.; and
- (2) Include the terms of this clause in every subcontract so that such terms will be binding on each subcontractor.
- (c) The Contractor shall maintain an accurate record of exposure data on all accidents incident to work performed under this contract resulting in death, traumatic injury, occupational disease, or damage to property, materials, supplies, or equipment, and shall report this data in the manner prescribed by 29 CFR Part 1904
- (d) The Contracting Officer shall notify the Contractor of any noncompliance with these requirements and of the corrective action required. This notice, when delivered to the Contractor or the Contractor's representative at the site of the work, shall be deemed sufficient notice of the noncompliance and corrective action required. After receiving the notice, the Contractor shall immediately take corrective action. If the Contractor fails or refuses to take corrective action promptly, the Contracting Officer may issue an order stopping all or part of the work until satisfactory corrective action has been taken. The Contractor shall not base any claim or request for equitable adjustment for additional time or money on any stop order issued under these circumstances.
- (e) The Contractor shall be responsible for its subcontractors' compliance with the provisions of this clause. The Contractor shall take such action with respect to any subcontract as the PHA, the Secretary of Housing and Urban Development, or the Secretary of Labor shall direct as a means of enforcing such provisions.

14. Temporary Heating

The Contractor shall provide and pay for temporary heating, covering, and enclosures necessary to properly protect all work and materials against damage by dampness and cold, to dry out the work, and to facilitate the completion of the work. Any permanent heating equipment used shall be turned over to the PHA in the condition and at the time required by the specifications.

15. Availability and Use of Utility Services

- (a) The PHA shall make all reasonably required amounts of utilities available to the Contractor from existing outlets and supplies, as specified in the contract. Unless otherwise provided in the contract, the amount of each utility service consumed shall be charged to or paid for by the Contractor at prevailing rates charged to the PHA or, where the utility is produced by the PHA, at reasonable rates determined by the Contracting Officer. The Contractor shall carefully conserve any utilities furnished without charge.
- (b) The Contractor, at its expense and in a manner satisfactory to the Contracting Officer, shall install and maintain all necessary temporary connections and distribution lines, and all meters required to measure the amount of each utility used for the purpose of determining charges. Before final acceptance of the work by the PHA, the Contractor shall remove all the temporary connections, distribution lines, meters, and associated paraphernalia.
- 16. Protection of Existing Vegetation, Structures, Equipment, Utilities, and Improvements
- (a) The Contractor shall preserve and protect all structures, equipment, and vegetation (such as trees, shrubs, and grass) on or adjacent to the work site, which are not to be removed under this contract, and which do not unreasonably interfere with the work required under this
- (b) The Contractor shall only remove trees when specifically authorized to do so, and shall avoid damaging vegetation that will remain in place. If any limbs or branches of trees are broken during performance of this contract, or by the careless operation of equipment, or by workmen, the Contractor shall trim those limbs or branches with a clean cut and paint the cut with a tree-pruning compound as directed by the Contracting Officer.
- (c) The Contractor shall protect from damage all existing improvements and utilities (1) at or near the work site and (2) on adjacent property of a third party, the locations of which are made known to or should be known by the Contractor. Prior to disturbing the ground at the construction site, the Contractor shall ensure that all underground utility lines are clearly marked.
- (d) The Contractor shall shore up, brace, underpin, secure, and protect as necessary all foundations and other parts of existing structures adjacent to, adjoining, and in the vicinity of the site, which may be affected by the excavations or other operations connected with the construction of the project.
- (e) Any equipment temporarily removed as a result of work under this contract shall be protected, cleaned, and replaced in the same condition as at the time of award of this contract.

- (f) New work which connects to existing work shall correspond in all respects with that to which it connects and/or be similar to existing work unless otherwise required by the specifications.
- (g) No structural members shall be altered or in any way weakened without the written authorization of the Contracting Officer, unless such work is clearly specified in the plans or specifications.
- (h) If the removal of the existing work exposes discolored or unfinished surfaces, or work out of alignment, such surfaces shall be refinished, or the material replaced as necessary to make the continuous work uniform and harmonious. This, however, shall not be construed to require the refinishing or reconstruction of dissimilar finishes previously exposed, or finished surfaces in good condition, but in different planes or on different levels Construction when brought together by the removal of intervening work, unless such refinishing or reconstruction is specified in the plans or specifications.
- The Contractor shall give all required notices to any adjoining or adjacent property owner or other party before the commencement of any work.
- (j) The Contractor shall indemnify and save harmless the PHA from any damages on account of settlement or the loss of lateral support of adjoining property, any damages from changes in topography affecting drainage, and from all loss or expense and all damages for which the PHA may become liable in consequence of such injury or damage to adjoining and adjacent structures and their premises.
- (k) The Contractor shall repair any damage to vegetation, structures, equipment, utilities, or improvements, including those that are the property of a third party, resulting from failure to comply with the requirements of this contract or failure to exercise reasonable care in performing the work. If the Contractor fails or refuses to repair the damage promptly, the Contracting Officer may have the necessary work performed and charge the cost to the Contractor.

17. Temporary Buildings and Transportation of Materials

- (a) Temporary buildings (e.g., storage sheds, shops, offices, sanitary facilities) and utilities may be erected by the Contractor only with the approval of the Contracting Officer and shall be built with labor and materials furnished by the Contractor without expense to the PHA. The temporary buildings and utilities shall remain the property of the Contractor and shall be removed by the Contractor at its expense upon completion of the work. With the written consent of the Contracting Officer, the buildings and utilities may be abandoned and need not be removed.
- (b) The Contractor shall, as directed by the Contracting Officer, use only established roadways, or use temporary roadways constructed by the Contractor when and as authorized by the Contracting Officer. When materials are transported in prosecuting the work, vehicles shall not be loaded beyond the loading capacity recommended by the manufacturer of the vehicle or prescribed by any federal, state, or local law or regulation. When it is necessary to cross curbs or sidewalks, the Contractor shall protect them from damage. The Contractor shall repair or pay for the repair of any damaged curbs, sidewalks, or roads.

18. Clean Air and Water

The contactor shall comply with the Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 USC 7401 et seq., the Federal Water Pollution Control Water Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq., and standards issued pursuant thereto in the facilities in which this contract is to be performed.

19. Energy Efficiency

The Contractor shall comply with mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency which are contained in the energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act (Pub.L. 94-163) for the State in which the work under the contract is performed.

20. Inspection and Acceptance of

- (a) Definitions. As used in this clause -
- (1) "Acceptance" means the act of an authorized representative of the PHA by which the PHA approves and assumes ownership of the work performed under this contract. Acceptance may be partial or complete.
- (2) "Inspection" means examining and testing the work performed under the contract (including, when appropriate, raw materials, equipment, components, and intermediate assemblies) to determine whether it conforms to contract requirements.
- (3) "Testing" means that element of inspection that determines the properties or elements, including functional operation of materials, equipment, or their components, by the application of established scientific principles and procedures.
- (b) The Contractor shall maintain an adequate inspection system and perform such inspections as will ensure that the work performed under the contract conforms to contract requirements. All work is subject to PHA inspection and test at all places and at all reasonable times before acceptance to ensure strict compliance with the terms of the contract.
- (c) PHA inspections and tests are for the sole benefit of the PHA and do not: (1) relieve the Contractor of responsibility for providing adequate quality control measures; (2) relieve the Contractor of responsibility for loss or damage of the material before acceptance; (3) constitute or imply acceptance; or, (4) affect the continuing rights of the PHA after acceptance of the completed work under paragraph (j) below.
- (d) The presence or absence of the PHA inspector does not relieve the Contractor from any contract requirement, nor is the inspector authorized to change any term or condition of the specifications without the Contracting Officer's written authorization. All instructions and approvals with respect to the work shall be given to the Contractor by the Contracting Officer.
- (e) The Contractor shall promptly furnish, without additional charge, all facilities, labor, and material reasonably needed for performing such safe and convenient inspections and tests as may be required by the Contracting Officer. The PHA may charge to the Contractor any additional cost of inspection or test when work is not ready at the time specified by the Contractor for inspection or test, or when prior rejection makes reinspection or retest necessary. The PHA shall perform all inspections and tests in a manner that will not unnecessarily delay the work. Special, full size, and performance tests shall be performed as described in the contract.

- (f) The PHA may conduct routine inspections of the construction site on a daily basis.
- (g) The Contractor shall, without charge, replace or correct work found by the PHA not to conform to contract requirements, unless the PHA decides that it is in its interest to accept the work with an appropriate adjustment in contract price. The Contractor shall promptly segregate and remove rejected material from the premises.
- (h) If the Contractor does not promptly replace or correct rejected work, the PHA may (1) by contract or otherwise, replace or correct the work and charge the cost to the Contractor, or (2) terminate for default the Contractor's right to proceed.
- (i) If any work requiring inspection is covered up without approval of the PHA, it must, if requested by the Contracting Officer, be uncovered at the expense of the Contractor. If at any time before final acceptance of the entire work, the **Construction** PHA considers it necessary or advisable, to examine work already completed by removing or tearing it out, the Contractor, shall on request, promptly furnish all necessary facilities, labor, and material. If such work is found to be defective or nonconforming in any material respect due to the fault of the Contractor or its subcontractors, the Contractor shall defray all the expenses of the examination and of satisfactory reconstruction. If, however, such work is found to meet the requirements of the contract, the Contracting Officer shall make an equitable adjustment to cover the cost of the examination and reconstruction, including, if completion of the work was thereby delayed, an extension of time
- (j) The Contractor shall notify the Contracting Officer, in writing, as to the date when in its opinion all or a designated portion of the work will be substantially completed and ready for inspection. If the Architect determines that the state of preparedness is as represented, the PHA will promptly arrange for the inspection. Unless otherwise specified in the contract, the PHA shall accept, as soon as practicable after completion and inspection, all work required by the contract or that portion of the work the Contracting Officer determines and designates can be accepted separately. Acceptance shall be final and conclusive except for latent defects, fraud, gross mistakes amounting to fraud, or the PHA's right under any warranty or guarantee.

21. Use and Possession Prior to Completion

- (a) The PHA shall have the right to take possession of or use any completed or partially completed part of the work. Before taking possession of or using any work, the Contracting Officer shall furnish the Contractor a list of items of work remaining to be performed or corrected on those portions of the work that the PHA intends to take possession of or use. However, failure of the Contracting Officer to list any item of work shall not relieve the Contractor of responsibility for complying with the terms of the contract. The PHA's possession or use shall not be deemed an acceptance of any work under the contract.
- (b) While the PHA has such possession or use, the Contractor shall be relieved of the responsibility for (1) the loss of or damage to the work resulting from the PHA's possession or use, notwithstanding the terms of the clause entitled Permits and Codes herein; (2) all maintenance costs on the areas occupied; and, (3) furnishing heat, light, power, and water used in the areas

occupied without proper remuneration therefore. If prior possession or use by the PHA delays the progress of the work or causes additional expense to the Contractor, an equitable adjustment shall be made in the contract price or the time of completion, and the contract shall be modified in writing accordingly.

22. Warranty of Title

The Contractor warrants good title to all materials, supplies, and equipment incorporated in the work and agrees to deliver the premises together with all improvements thereon free from any claims, liens or charges, and agrees further that neither it nor any other person, firm or corporation shall have any right to a lien upon the premises or anything appurtenant thereto.

23. Warranty of

- (a) In addition to any other warranties in this contract, the Contractor warrants, except as provided in paragraph (j) of this clause, that work performed under this contract conforms to the contract requirements and is free of any defect in equipment, material, or workmanship performed by the Contractor or any subcontractor or supplier at any tier. This warranty shall continue for a period of (one year unless otherwise indicated) from the date of final acceptance of the work. If the PHA takes possession of any part of the work before final acceptance, this warranty shall continue for a period of (one year unless otherwise indicated) from the date that the PHA takes possession.
- (b) The Contractor shall remedy, at the Contractor's expense, any failure to conform, or any defect. In addition, the Contractor shall remedy, at the Contractor's expense, any damage to PHA-owned or controlled real or personal property when the damage is the result of— (1) The Contractor's failure to conform to contract requirements; or
 - (2) Any defects of equipment, material, workmanship or design furnished by the Contractor.
- (c) The Contractor shall restore any work damaged in fulfilling the terms and conditions of this clause. The Contractor's warranty with respect to work repaired or replaced will run for (one year unless otherwise indicated) from the date of repair or replacement.
- (d) The Contracting Officer shall notify the Contractor, in writing, within a reasonable time after the discovery of any failure, defect or damage.
- (e) If the Contractor fails to remedy any failure, defect, or damage within a reasonable time after receipt of notice, the PHA shall have the right to replace, repair or otherwise remedy the failure, defect, or damage at the Contractor's expense.
- (f) With respect to all warranties, express or implied, from subcontractors, manufacturers, or suppliers for work performed and materials furnished under this contract, the Contractor shall:
 - Obtain all warranties that would be given in normal commercial practice;
 - (2) Require all warranties to be executed in writing, for the benefit of the PHA; and.
 - (3) Enforce all warranties for the benefit of the PHA.
- (g) In the event the Contractor's warranty under paragraph (a) of this clause has expired, the PHA may bring suit at its own expense to enforce a subcontractor's, manufacturer's or supplier's warranty.

- (h) Unless a defect is caused by the negligence of the Contractor or subcontractor or supplier at any tier, the Contractor shall not be liable for the repair of any defect of material or design furnished by the PHA nor for the repair of any damage that results from any defect in PHA furnished material or design.
- (i) Notwithstanding any provisions herein to the contrary, the establishment of the time periods in paragraphs (a) and (c) above relate only to the specific obligation of the Contractor to correct the work, and have no relationship to the time within which its obligation to comply with the contract may be sought to be enforced, nor to the time within which proceedings may be commenced to establish the Contractor's liability with respect to its obligation other than specifically to correct the work.
- (j) This warranty shall not limit the PHA's rights under the Inspection and Acceptance of Construction clause of this contract with respect to latent defects, gross mistakes or fraud.

24. Prohibition Against Liens

The Contractor is prohibited from placing a lien on the PHA's property. This prohibition shall apply to all subcontractors at any tier and all materials suppliers.

Administrative Requirements

25. Contract Period

this contract within calendar days of the effective date of the contract, or within the time schedule established in the notice to proceed issued by the Contracting Officer.

26. Order of Provisions

accordance with the terms and conditions of the
In the event of a conflict between these General
Conditions and the Specifications, the General
Conditions shall prevail. In the event of a conflict between
the contract and any applicable state or local law or
regulation, the state or local law or regulation shall
prevail; provided that such state or local law or regulation
does not conflict with, or is less restrictive than applicable
federal law, regulation, or Executive Order. In the event of
such a conflict, applicable federal law, regulation, and
Executive Order shall prevail.

27. Payments

retain ten (10) percent of the amount of progress

- (a) The PHA shall pay the Contractor the price as provided in this contract
- (b) The PHA shall make progress payments approximately every 30 days as the work proceeds, on estimates of work accomplished which meets the standards of quality established under the contract, as approved by the Contracting Officer. The PHA may, subject to written determination and approval of the Contracting Officer, make more frequent payments to contractors which are qualified small businesses.
- (c) Before the first progress payment under this contract, the Contractor shall furnish, in such detail as requested by the Contracting Officer, a breakdown of the total contract price showing the amount included therein for each principal category of the work, which shall substantiate the payment amount requested in order to provide a

basis for determining progress payments. The breakdown shall be approved by the Contracting Officer and must be acceptable to HUD. If the contract covers more than one project, the Contractor shall furnish a separate breakdown for each. The values and quantities employed in making up this breakdown are for determining the amount of progress payments and shall not be construed as a basis for additions to or deductions from the contract price. The Contractor shall prorate its overhead and profit over the construction period of the contract.

(d) The Contractor shall submit, on forms provided by the PHA, periodic estimates showing the value of the work performed during each period based upon the approved

submitted not later than ______ days in advance of the date set for payment and are subject to correction and revision as required. The estimates must be approved by the Contracting Officer with the concurrence of the Architect prior to payment. If the contract covers more than one project, the Contractor shall furnish a separate progress payment estimate for each.

- (e) Along with each request for progress payments and the required estimates, the Contractor shall furnish the following certification, or payment shall not be made: I hereby certify, to the best of my knowledge and belief, that:
 - The amounts requested are only for performance in accordance with the specifications, terms, and conditions of the contract;
 - (2) Payments to subcontractors and suppliers have been made from previous payments received under the contract, and timely payments will be made from the proceeds of the payment covered by this certification, in accordance with subcontract agreements; and,
 - (3) This request for progress payments does not include any amounts which the prime contractor intends to withhold or retain from a subcontractor or supplier in

su	bco	ntr	ac	t.

Tit**l**e:

Name:

Date:

(f) Except as otherwise provided in State law, the PHA shall

payments until completion and acceptance of all work under the contract; except, that if upon completion of 50 percent of the work, the Contracting Officer, after consulting with the Architect, determines that the Contractor's performance and progress are satisfactory, the PHA may make the remaining payments in full for the work subsequently completed. If the Contracting Officer subsequently determines that the Contractor's performance and progress are unsatisfactory, the PHA shall reinstate the ten (10) percent (or other percentage as provided in State law) retainage until such time as the Contracting Officer determines that performance and progress are satisfactory.

(g) The Contracting Officer may authorize material delivered on the site and preparatory work done to be taken into consideration when computing progress payments.

- Material delivered to the Contractor at locations other than the site may also be taken into consideration if the Contractor furnishes satisfactory evidence that (1) it has acquired title to such material; (2) the material is properly stored in a bonded warehouse, storage yard, or similar suitable place as may be approved by the Contracting Officer; (3) the material is insured to cover its full value; and (4) the material will be used to perform this contract. Before any progress payment which includes delivered material is made, the Contractor shall furnish such documentation as the Contracting Officer may require to assure the protection of the PHA's interest in such materials. The Contractor shall remain responsible for such stored material notwithstanding the transfer of title to the PHA
- (h) All material and work covered by progress payments made shall, at the time of payment become the sole property of the PHA, but this shall not be construed as (1) relieving the Contractor from the sole responsibility for all material and work upon which payments have been made or the restoration of any damaged work; or, (2) waiving the right of the PHA to require the fulfillment of all of the terms of the contract. In the event the work of the Contractor has been damaged by other contractors or persons other than employees of the PHA in the course of their employment, the Contractor shall restore such damaged work without cost to the PHA and to seek redress for its damage only from those who directly caused it.
- (i) The PHA shall make the final payment due the Contractor under this contract after (1) completion and final acceptance of all work; and (2) presentation of release of all claims against the PHA arising by virtue of this contract, other than claims, in stated amounts, that the Contractor has specifically excepted from the operation of the release. Each such exception shall embrace no more than one claim, the basis and scope of which shall be clearly defined. The amounts for such excepted claims shall not be included in the request for final payment. A release may also be required of the assignee if the Contractor's claim to amounts payable under this contract has been assigned.
- (j) Prior to making any payment, the Contracting Officer may require the Contractor to furnish receipts or other evidence of payment from all persons performing work and supplying material to the Contractor, if the Contracting Officer determines such evidence is necessary to substantiate claimed costs.
- (k) The PHA shall not; (1) determine or adjust any claims for payment or disputes arising there under between the Contractor and its subcontractors or material suppliers; or, (2) withhold any moneys for the protection of the subcontractors or material suppliers. The failure or refusal of the PHA to withhold moneys from the Contractor shall in nowise impair the obligations of any surety or sureties under any bonds furnished under this contract.

28. Contract Modifications

- (a) Only the Contracting Officer has authority to modify any term or condition of this contract. Any contract modification shall be authorized in writing.
- (b) The Contracting Officer may modify the contract unilaterally (1) pursuant to a specific authorization stated in a contract clause (e.g., Changes); or (2) for administrative matters which do not change the rights or

- responsibilities of the parties (e.g., change in the PHA address). All other contract modifications shall be in the form of supplemental agreements signed by the Contractor and the Contracting Officer.
- (c) When a proposed modification requires the approval of HUD prior to its issuance (e.g., a change order that exceeds the PHA's approved threshold), such modification shall not be effective until the required approval is received by the PHA.

29. Changes

- (a) The Contracting Officer may, at any time, without notice to the sureties, by written order designated or indicated to be a change order, make changes in the work within the general scope of the contract including changes:
 - (1) In the specifications (including drawings and designs);
 - (2) In the method or manner of performance of the work;
 - (3) PHA-furnished facilities, equipment, materials, services or site: or
 - services, or site; or,
 (4) Directing the acceleration in the performance of the work.
- (b) Any other written order or oral order (which, as used in this paragraph (b), includes direction, instruction, interpretation, or determination) from the Contracting Officer that causes a change shall be treated as a change order under this clause; provided, that the Contractor gives the Contracting Officer written notice stating (1) the date, circumstances and source of the order and (2) that the Contractor regards the order as a change order.
- (c) Except as provided in this clause, no order, statement or conduct of the Contracting Officer shall be treated as a change under this clause or entitle the Contractor to an equitable adjustment.
- (d) If any change under this clause causes an increase or decrease in the Contractor's cost of, or the time required for the performance of any part of the work under this contract, whether or not changed by any such order, the Contracting Officer shall make an equitable adjustment and modify the contract in writing. However, except for a adjustment based on defective specifications, no proposal for any change under paragraph (b) above shall be allowed for any costs incurred more than 20 days (5 days for oral orders) before the Contractor gives written notice as required. In the case of defective specifications for which the PHA is responsible, the equitable adjustment shall include any increased cost reasonably incurred by the Contractor in attempting to comply with the defective specifications.
- (e) The Contractor must assert its right to an adjustment under this clause within 30 days after (1) receipt of a written change order under paragraph (a) of this clause, or (2) the furnishing of a written notice under paragraph (b) of this clause, by submitting a written statement describing the general nature and the amount of the proposal. If the facts justify it, the Contracting Officer may extend the period for submission. The proposal may be included in the notice required under paragraph (b) above. No proposal by the Contractor for an equitable adjustment shall be allowed if asserted after final payment under this contract.
- (f) The Contractor's written proposal for equitable adjustment shall be submitted in the form of a lump sum proposal supported with an itemized breakdown of all increases and decreases in the contract in at least the following details:

- (1) Direct Costs. Materials (list individual items, the quantity and unit cost of each, and the aggregate cost); Transportation and delivery costs associated with materials; Labor breakdowns by hours or unit costs (identified with specific work to be performed); Construction equipment exclusively necessary for the change; Costs of preparation and/ or revision to shop drawings resulting from the change; Worker's Compensation and Public Liability Insurance; Employment taxes under FICA and FUTA; and, Bond Costs when size of change warrants revision.
- (2) Indirect Costs. Indirect costs may include overhead, general and administrative expenses, and fringe benefits not normally treated as direct costs.
- (3) Profit. The amount of profit shall be negotiated and may vary according to the nature, extent, and complexity of the work required by the change. The allowability of the direct and indirect costs shall be determined in accordance with the Contract Cost Principles and Procedures for Commercial Firms in Part 31 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation (48 CFR 1-31), as implemented by HUD Handbook 2210.18, in effect on the date of this contract. The Contractor shall not be allowed a profit on the profit received by any subcontractor. Equitable adjustments for deleted work shall include a credit for profit and may include a credit for indirect costs. On proposals covering both increases and decreases in the amount of the contract, the application of indirect costs and profit shall be on the net-change in direct costs for the Contractor or subcontractor performing the work.
- (g) The Contractor shall include in the proposal its request for time extension (if any), and shall include sufficient information and dates to demonstrate whether and to what extent the change will delay the completion of the contract in its entirety.
- (h) The Contracting Officer shall act on proposals within 30 days after their receipt, or notify the Contractor of the date when such action will be taken.
- (i) Failure to reach an agreement on any proposal shall be a dispute under the clause entitled Disputes herein.
 Nothing in this clause, however, shall excuse the Contractor from proceeding with the contract as changed.
- (j) Except in an emergency endangering life or property, no change shall be made by the Contractor without a prior order from the Contracting Officer.

30. Suspension of Work

- (a) The Contracting Officer may order the Contractor in writing to suspend, delay, or interrupt all or any part of the work of this contract for the period of time that the
 - Contracting Officer determines appropriate for the convenience of the PHA.
- (b) If the performance of all or any part of the work is, for an unreasonable period of time, suspended, delayed, or interrupted (1) by an act of the Contracting Officer in the administration of this contract, or (2) by the Contracting Officer's failure to act within the time specified (or within a reasonable time if not specified) in this contract an adjustment shall be made for any increase in the cost of performance of the contract (excluding profit) necessarily caused by such unreasonable suspension, delay, or interruption and the contract modified in writing accordingly. However, no adjustment shall be made under this clause for any suspension, delay, or interruption to the extent that performance would have

- been so suspended, delayed, or interrupted by any other cause, including the fault or negligence of the Contractor or for which any equitable adjustment is provided for or
- excluded under any other provision of this contract.

 (c) A claim under this clause shall not be allowed (1) for any costs incurred more than 20 days before the Contractor shall have notified the Contracting Officer in writing of the act or failure to act involved (but this requirement shall not apply as to a claim resulting from a suspension order); and, (2) unless the claim, in an amount stated, is asserted in writing as soon as practicable after the termination of the suspension, delay, or interruption, but not later than the date of final payment under the contract.

31. Disputes

- (a) "Claim," as used in this clause, means a written demand or written assertion by one of the contracting parties seeking, as a matter of right, the payment of money in a sum certain, the adjustment or interpretation of contract terms, or other relief arising under or relating to the contract. A claim arising under the contract, unlike a claim relating to the contract, is a claim that can be resolved under a contract clause that provides for the relief sought by the claimant. A voucher, invoice, or other routine request for payment that is not in dispute when submitted is not a claim. The submission may be converted to a claim by complying with the requirements of this clause, if it is disputed either as to liability or amount or is not acted upon in a reasonable time.
- (b) Except for disputes arising under the clauses entitled Labor Standards - Davis Bacon and Related Acts, herein, all disputes arising under or relating to this contract, including any claims for damages for the alleged breach thereof which are not disposed of by agreement, shall be resolved under this clause.
- (c) All claims by the Contractor shall be made in writing and submitted to the Contracting Officer for a written decision. A claim by the PHA against the Contractor shall be subject to a written decision by the Contracting Officer.
- (d) The Contracting Officer shall, within 60 (unless otherwise indicated) days after receipt of the request, decide the claim or notify the Contractor of the date by which the decision will be made.
- (e) The Contracting Officer's decision shall be final unless the Contractor (1) appeals in writing to a higher level in the PHA in accordance with the PHA's policy and procedures, (2) refers the appeal to an independent mediator or arbitrator, or (3) files suit in a court of competent jurisdiction. Such appeal must be made within (30 unless otherwise indicated) days after receipt of the Contracting Officer's decision.
- (f) The Contractor shall proceed diligently with performance of this contract, pending final resolution of any request for relief, claim, appeal, or action arising under or relating to the contract, and comply with any decision of the Contracting Officer.

32. Default

(a) If the Contractor refuses or fails to prosecute the work, or any separable part thereof, with the diligence that will insure its completion within the time specified in this contract, or any extension thereof, or fails to complete said work within this time, the Contracting Officer may, by written notice to the Contractor, terminate the right to proceed with the work (or separable part of the work) that has been delayed. In this event, the PHA may take over the work and complete it, by contract or otherwise, and may take possession of and use any materials, equipment, and plant on the work site necessary for completing the work. The Contractor and its sureties shall be liable for any damage to the PHA resulting from the Convenience Contractor's refusal or failure to complete the work within the specified time, whether or not the Contractor's right to proceed with the work is terminated. This liability includes any increased costs incurred by the PHA in completing the work.

- (b) The Contractor's right to proceed shall not be terminated or the Contractor charged with damages under this clause if—
- (1) The delay in completing the work arises from unforeseeable causes beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of the Contractor. Examples of such causes include (i) acts of God, or of the public enemy, (ii) acts of the PHA or other governmental entity in either its sovereign or contractual capacity, (iii) acts of another contractor in the performance of a contract with the PHA, (iv) fires, (v) floods, (vi) epidemics, (vii) quarantine restrictions, (viii) strikes, (ix) freight embargoes, (x) unusually severe weather, or (xi) delays of subcontractors or suppliers at any tier arising from unforeseeable causes beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of both the Contractor and the subcontractors or suppliers; and
- (2) The Contractor, within days (10 days unless otherwise indicated) from the beginning of such delay (unless extended by the Contracting Officer) notifies the Contracting Officer in writing of the causes of delay. The Contracting Officer shall ascertain the facts and the extent of the delay. If, in the judgment of the Contracting Officer, the findings of fact warrant such action, time for completing the work shall be extended by written modification to the contract. The findings of the Contracting Officer shall be reduced to a written decision which shall be subject to the provisions of the Disputes clause of this contract.
- (c) If, after termination of the Contractor's right to proceed, it is determined that the Contractor was not in default, or that the delay was excusable, the rights and obligations of the parties will be the same as if the termination had been for convenience of the PHA.

33. Liquidated Damages

- (a) If the Contractor fails to complete the work within the time specified in the contract, or any extension, as specified in the clause entitled Default of this contract, the Contractor shall pay to the PHA as liquidated damages, the sum of \$ _____ Contracting Officer insert amount] for each day of delay. If different completion dates are specified in the contract for separate parts or stages of the work, the amount of liquidated damages shall be assessed on those parts or stages which are delayed. To the extent that the Contractor's delay or nonperformance is excused under another clause in this contract, liquidated damages shall not be due the PHA. The Contractor remains liable for damages caused other than by delay
- (b) If the PHA terminates the Contractor's right to proceed, the resulting damage will consist of liquidated damages until such reasonable time as may be required for final

- completion of the work together with any increased costs occasioned the PHA in completing the work.
- (c) If the PHA does not terminate the Contractor's right to proceed, the resulting damage will consist of liquidated damages until the work is completed or accepted.

34. Termination for

- (a) The Contracting Officer may terminate this contract in whole, or in part, whenever the Contracting Officer determines that such termination is in the best interest of the PHA. Any such termination shall be effected by delivery to the Contractor of a Notice of Termination specifying the extent to which the performance of the work under the contract is terminated, and the date upon which such termination becomes effective.
- (b) If the performance of the work is terminated, either in whole or in part, the PHA shall be liable to the Contractor for reasonable and proper costs resulting from such termination upon the receipt by the PHA of a properly presented claim setting out in detail: (1) the total cost of the work performed to date of termination less the total amount of contract payments made to the Contractor; (2) the cost (including reasonable profit) of settling and paying claims under subcontracts and material orders for work performed and materials and supplies delivered to the site, payment for which has not been made by the PHA to the Contractor or by the Contractor to the subcontractor or supplier; (3) the cost of preserving and protecting the work already performed until the PHA or assignee takes possession thereof or assumes responsibility therefore; (4) the actual or estimated cost of legal and accounting services reasonably necessary to prepare and present the termination claim to the PHA; and (5) an amount constituting a reasonable profit on the value of the work performed by the Contractor.
- (c) The Contracting Officer will act on the Contractor's claim within days (60 days unless otherwise indicated) of receipt of the Contractor's claim.
- (d) Any disputes with regard to this clause are expressly made subject to the provisions of the Disputes clause of this contract.

35. Assignment of Contract

The Contractor shall not assign or transfer any interest in this contract; except that claims for monies due or to become due from the PHA under the contract may be assigned to a bank, trust company, or other financial institution. Such assignments of claims shall only be made with the written concurrence of the Contracting Officer. If the Contractor is a partnership, this contract shall inure to the benefit of the surviving or remaining member(s) of such partnership as approved by the Contracting Officer.

36. Insurance

- (a) Before commencing work, the Contractor and each subcontractor shall furnish the PHA with certificates of insurance showing the following insurance is in force and will insure all operations under the Contract:
 - (1) Workers' Compensation, in accordance with state or Territorial Workers' Compensation laws.
 - (2) Commercial General Liability with a combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage of not less than \$ _____ [Contracting Officer insert amount]

- per occurrence to protect the Contractor and each subcontractor against claims for bodily injury or death and damage to the property of others. This shall cover the use of all equipment, hoists, and vehicles on the site(s) not covered by Automobile Liability under (3) below. If the Contractor has a "claims made" policy, then the following additional requirements apply: the policy must provide a "retroactive date" which must be on or before the execution date of the Contract; and the extended reporting period may not be less than five years following the completion date of the Contract.
- (3) Automobile Liability on owned and non -owned motor vehicles used on the site(s) or in connection therewith for a combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage of not less than \$ [Contracting Officer insert amount] per occurrence.
- (b) Before commencing work, the Contractor shall furnish the PHA with a certificate of insurance evidencing that Builder's Risk (fire and extended coverage) Insurance on all work in place and/or materials stored at the building site(s), including foundations and building equipment, is in force. The Builder's Risk Insurance shall be for the benefit of the Contractor and the PHA as their interests may appear and each shall be named in the policy or policies as an insured. The Contractor in installing equipment supplied by the PHA shall carry insurance on such equipment from the time the Contractor takes possession thereof until the Contract work is accepted by the PHA. The Builder's Risk Insurance need not be carried on excavations, piers, footings, or foundations until such time as work on the superstructure is started. It
 - need not be carried on landscape work. Policies shall furnish coverage at all times for the full cash value of all completed construction, as well as materials in place and/or stored at the site(s), whether or not partial payment has been made by the PHA. The Contractor may terminate this insurance on buildings as of the date taken over for occupancy by the PHA. The Contractor is not required to carry Builder's Risk Insurance for modernization work which does not involve structural alterations or additions and where the PHA's existing fire and extended coverage policy can be endorsed to include such work.
- (c) All insurance shall be carried with companies which are financially responsible and admitted to do business in the State in which the project is located. If any such insurance is due to expire during the construction period, the Contractor (including subcontractors, as applicable) shall not permit the coverage to lapse and shall furnish evidence of coverage to the Contracting Officer. All certificates of insurance, as evidence of coverage, shall provide that no coverage may be canceled or nonrenewed by the insurance company until at least 30 days prior written notice has been given to the Contracting Officer.

37. Subcontracts

- (a) Definitions. As used in this contract -
 - (1) "Subcontract" means any contract, purchase order, or other purchase agreement, including modifications and change orders to the foregoing, entered into by a subcontractor to furnish supplies, materials, equipment, and services for the performance of the prime contract or a subcontract.

- (2) "Subcontractor" means any supplier, vendor, or firm that furnishes supplies, materials, equipment, or services to or for the Contractor or another subcontractor.
- (b) The Contractor shall not enter into any subcontract with any subcontractor who has been temporarily denied participation in a HUD program or who has been suspended or debarred from participating in contracting programs by any agency of the United States Government or of the state in which the work under this contract is to be performed.
- (c) The Contractor shall be as fully responsible for the acts or omissions of its subcontractors, and of persons either directly or indirectly employed by them as for the acts or omissions of persons directly employed by the Contractor.
- (d) The Contractor shall insert appropriate clauses in all subcontracts to bind subcontractors to the terms and conditions of this contract insofar as they are applicable to the work of subcontractors.
- (e) Nothing contained in this contract shall create any contractual relationship between any subcontractor and the PHA or between the subcontractor and HUD.

38. Subcontracting with Small and Minority Firms, Women's Business Enterprise, and Labor Surplus Area Firms

The Contractor shall take the following steps to ensure that, whenever possible, subcontracts are awarded to small business firms, minority firms, women's business enterprises, and labor surplus area firms:

- (a) Placing qualified small and minority businesses and women's business enterprises on solicitation lists;
- (b) Ensuring that small and minority businesses and women's business enterprises are solicited whenever they are potential sources;
- (c) Dividing total requirements, when economically feasible, into smaller tasks or quantities to permit maximum participation by small and minority businesses and women's business enterprises:
- (d) Establishing delivery schedules, where the requirements of the contract permit, which encourage participation by small and minority businesses and women's business enterprises; and
- (e) Using the services and assistance of the U.S. Small Business Administration, the Minority Business Development Agency of the U.S. Department of Commerce, and State and local governmental small business agencies.

39. Equal Employment Opportunity

During the performance of this contract, the Contractor/ Seller agrees as follows:

- (a) The Contractor/Seller shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of of race color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, disability, or national origin.
- (b) The Contractor/Seller shall take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, disability, or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to, (1) employment, (2) upgrading demotion, (4) transfer, (5) recruitment or recruitment advertising, (6) layoff or termination, (7) rates of pay or other forms of compensation, and (8) selection for training,including apprenticeship

- (c) The Contractor/Seller agrees to post in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment the notices to be provided by the Contracting Officer setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.
- (d) The Contractor/Seller shall, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the Contractor/Seller, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.
- (e) The Contractor/Seller shall send, to each labor union or representative of workers with which it has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, the notice to be provided by the Contracting Officer advising the labor union or workers' representative of the Contractor's commitments under this clause, and post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment.
- (f) The Contractor/Seller shall comply with Executive Order 11246, as amended, and the rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor.
- (g) The Contractor/Seller shall furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246, as amended, Section 503 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto. The Contractor/Seller shall permit
 - access to its books, records, and accounts by the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders.
- (h) In the event of a that the Contractor/Seller is in noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this contract or with any of such rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be canceled, terminated or suspended in whole or in part and the contractor/seller may be declared ineligible for further Government contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.
- (i)The contractor/seller will include the provisions of paragraphs (a) through (h) in every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to section 204 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each sub[contractor/seller] or vendor. The [contractor/seller] will take such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as may be directed by the Secretary of Labor as a means of enforcing such provisions in cluding sanctions for noncompliance: Provided, however, that in the event the [contractor/seller] becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction, the [contractor/seller] may request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.
- (j) Compliance with the requirements of this clause shall be to the maximum extent consistent with, but not in derogation of, compliance with section 7(b) of the Indian Self-Determination and Education Assistance Act and the Indian Preference clause of this contract.
- Employment, Training, and Contracting Opportunities for Low-Income Persons, Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968.

- (a) The work to be performed under this contract is subject to the requirements of Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended, 12 U.S.C. 1701u (section 3). The purpose of section 3 is to ensure that employment and other economic opportunities generated by HUD assistance or HUD-assisted projects covered by Section 3, shall, to the greatest extent feasible, be directed to low- and very low-income persons, particularly persons who are recipients of HUD assistance for housing.
- (b) The parties to this contract agree to comply with HUD's regulations in 24 CFR Part 75, which implement Section 3. As evidenced by their execution of this contract, the parties to this contract certify that they are under no contractual or other impediment that would prevent them from complying with the Part 75 regulations.
- (c) The contractor agrees to send to each labor organization or representative of workers with which the contractor has a collective bargaining agreement or other understanding, if any, a notice advising the labor organization or workers' representative of the contractor's commitments under this section 3 clause and will post copies of the notice in conspicuous places at the work site where both employees and applicants for training and employment positions can see the notice. The notice shall describe the Section 3 prioritization requirements and shall state the minimum percentages of labor hour requirements established in the Benchmark Notice (FR-6085-N-04).
- (d) The contractor agrees to include this section 3 clause in every subcontract subject to compliance with regulations in 24 CFR Part 75, and agrees to take appropriate action, as provided in an applicable provision of the subcontract or in this section 3 clause, upon a finding that the subcontractor is in violation of the regulations in 24 CFR Part 75. The contractor will not subcontract with any subcontractor where the contractor has notice or knowledge that the subcontractor has been found in violation of the regulations in 24 CFR Part 75.
- (e) Noncompliance with HUD's regulations in 24 CFR Part 75 may result in sanctions, termination of this contract for default, and debarment or suspension from future HUD assisted contracts.
- (f) Contracts, subcontracts, grants, or subgrants subject to Section 7(b) of the Indian Self-Determination and Education Assistance Act (25 U.S.C. 5307(b)) or subject to tribal preference requirements as authorized under 101(k) of the Native American Housing Assistance and Self-Determination Act (25 U.S.C. 4111(k)) must provide preferences in employment, training, and business opportunities to Indians and Indian organizations, and are therefore not subject to the requirements of 24 CFR Part 75.

41. Interest of Members of Congress

No member of or delegate to the Congress of the United States of America shall be admitted to any share or part of this contract or to any benefit that may arise therefrom.

42. Interest of Members, Officers, or Employees and Former Members, Officers, or Employees

No member, officer, or employee of the PHA, no member of the governing body of the locality in which the project is situated, no member of the governing body of the locality in which the PHA was activated, and no other public official of such locality or localities who exercises any functions or responsibilities with respect to the project, shall, during his or her tenure, or for one year thereafter, have any interest, direct or indirect, in this contract or the proceeds thereof.

43. Limitations on Payments made to Influence Certain Federal Financial Transactions

- (a) The Contractor agrees to comply with Section 1352 of Title 31, United States Code which prohibits the use of Acts Federal appropriated funds to pay any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, and officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with any of the following covered Federal actions: the awarding of any Federal contract; the making of any Federal grant; the making of any Federal loan; the entering into of any cooperative agreement; or the modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.
- (b) The Contractor further agrees to comply with the requirement of the Act to furnish a disclosure (OMB Standard Form LLL, Disclosure of Lobbying Activities) if any funds other than Federal appropriated funds (including profit or fee received under a covered Federal transaction) have been paid, or will be paid, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with a Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

44. Royalties and Patents

The Contractor shall pay all royalties and license fees. It shall defend all suits or claims for infringement of any patent rights and shall save the PHA harmless from loss on account thereof; except that the PHA shall be responsible for all such loss when a particular design, process or the product of a particular manufacturer or manufacturers is specified and the Contractor has no reason to believe that the specified design, process, or product is an infringement. If, however, the Contractor has reason to believe that any design, process or product specified is an infringement of a patent, the Contractor shall promptly notify the Contracting Officer. Failure to give such notice shall make the Contractor responsible for resultant loss.

45. Examination and Retention of Contractor's Records

- (a) The PHA, HUD, or Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their duly authorized representatives shall, until 3 years after final payment under this contract, have access to and the right to examine any of the Contractor's directly pertinent books, documents, papers, or other records involving transactions related to this contract for the purpose of making audit, examination, excerpts, and transcriptions.
- (b) The Contractor agrees to include in first-tier subcontracts under this contract a clause substantially the same as paragraph (a) above. "Subcontract," as used in this clause, excludes purchase orders not exceeding \$10,000.
- (c) The periods of access and examination in paragraphs (a) and (b) above for records relating to (1) appeals under the Disputes clause of this contract, (2) litigation or settlement of claims arising from the performance of this contract, or (3) costs and expenses of this contract to which the PHA, HUD, or Comptroller General or any of their duly authorized representatives has taken exception shall continue until disposition of such appeals, litigation, claims, or exceptions.

46. Labor Standards - Davis-Bacon and Related

If the total amount of this contract exceeds \$2,000, the Federal labor standards set forth in the clause below shall apply to the development or construction work to be performed under the contract.

(a) Minimum Wages.

(1) All laborers and mechanics employed under this contract in the development or construction of the project(s) involved will be paid unconditionally and not less often than once a week, and without subsequent deduction or rebate on any account (except such payroll deductions as are permitted by regulations issued by the Secretary of Labor under the Copeland Act (29 CFR Part 3)), the full amount of wages and bona fide fringe benefits (or cash equivalents thereof) due at time of payment computed at rates not less than those contained in the wage determination of the Secretary of Labor which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, regardless of any contractual relationship which may be alleged to exist between the Contractor and such laborers and mechanics. Contributions made or costs reasonably anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits under Section 1(b)(2) of the Davis-Bacon Act on behalf of laborers or mechanics are considered wages paid to such laborers or mechanics, subject to the provisions of 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(iv); also, regular contributions made or costs incurred for more than a weekly period (but not less often than quarterly) under plans, funds, or programs which cover the regular weekly period, are deemed to be constructively made or incurred during such weekly period. Such laborers and mechanics shall be paid the appropriate wage rate and fringe benefits in the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed, without regard to skill, except as provided in 29 CFR 5.5(a)(4). Laborers or mechanics performing work in morè than one classification may be compensated at the rate specified for each classification for the time actually worked therein; provided, that the employer's payroll records accurately set forth the time spent in each classification in which work is performed. The wage determination (including any additional classification and wage rates conformed under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(ii) and the Davis-Bacon poster (WH-1321) shall

be posted at all times by the Contractor and its subcontractors at the site of the work in a prominent and accessible place where it can be easily seen by the workers.

- (2) (i) Any class of laborers or mechanics, including helpers, which is not listed in the wage determination and which is to be employed under the contract shall be classified in conformance with the wage determination. HUD shall approve an additional classification and wage rate and fringe benefits therefor only when all the following criteria have been met: (A) The work to be performed by the classification requested is not performed by a classification in the wage determination; and (B) The classification is utilized in the area by the construction industry; and (C) The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide fringe benefits, bears a reasonable relationship to the wage rates contained in the wage determination.
- (ii) If the Contractor and the laborers and mechanics to be employed in the classification (if known), or their representatives, and HUD or its designee agree on the classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits where appropriate), a report of the action taken shall be sent by HUD or its designee to the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division, Employee Standards Administration, U.S. Department of Labor, Washington, DC 20210. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will approve, modify, or disapprove every additional classification action within 30 days of receipt and so advise HUD or its designee or will notify HUD or its designee within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.
- (iii) In the event the Contractor, the laborers or mechanics to be employed in the classification or their representatives, and HUD or its designee do not agree on the proposed classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits, where appropriate), HUD or its designee shall refer the questions, including the views of all interested parties and the recommendation of HUD or its designee, to the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division for determination. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will issue a determination within 30 days of receipt and so advise HUD or its designee or will notify HUD or its designee within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.
- (iv) The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate) determined pursuant to subparagraphs (a)(2)(ii) or (iii) of this clause shall be paid to all workers performing work in the classification under this contract from the first day on which work is performed in classification.
 - (3) Whenever the minimum wage rate prescribed in the contract for a class of laborers or mechanics includes a fringe benefit which is not expressed as an hourly rate, the Contractor shall either pay the benefit as stated in the wage determination or shall pay another bona fide fringe benefit or an hourly cash equivalent thereof.
 - (4) If the Contractor does not make payments to a trustee or other third person, the Contractor may consider as part of the wages of any laborer or mechanic the

- amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing bona fide fringe benefits under a plan or program; provided, that the Secretary of Labor has found, upon the written request of the Contractor, that the applicable standards of the Davis-Bacon Act have been met. The Secretary of Labor may require the Contractor to set aside in a separate account assets for the meeting of obligations under the plan or program.
- (b) Withholding of funds. HUD or its designee shall, upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor, withhold or cause to be withheld from the Contractor under this contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime Contractor, or any other Federally-assisted contract subject to Davis-Bacon prevailing wage requirements, which is held by the same prime Contractor, so much of the accrued payments or advances as may be considered necessary to pay laborers and mechanics, including apprentices, trainees, and helpers, employed by the Contractor or any subcontractor the full amount of wages required by the contract. In the event of failure to pay any laborer or mechanic, including any apprentice, trainee, or helper, employed or working in the construction or development of the project, all or part of the wages required by the contract, HUD or its designee may, after written notice to the Contractor, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds until such violations have ceased. HUD or its designee may, after written notice to the Contractor, disburse such amounts withheld for and on account of the Contractor or subcontractor to the respective employees to whom they are due.
- (c) Payrolls and basic records.
 - (1) Payrolls and basic records relating thereto shall be maintained by the Contractor during the course of the work and preserved for a period of three years thereafter for all laborers and mechanics working in the construction or development of the project. Such records shall contain the name, address, and social security number of each such worker, his or her correct classification, hourly rates of wages paid (including rates of contributions or costs anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits or cash equivalents thereof of the types described in section 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act), daily and weekly number of hours worked, deductions made, and actual wages paid. Whenever the Secretary of Labor has found, under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(iv), that the wages of any laborer or mechanic include the amount of costs reasonably anticipated in providing benefits under a plan or program described in section 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act, the Contractor shall maintain records which show that the commitment to provide such benefits is enforceable, that the plan or program is financially responsible, and that the plan or program has been communicated in writing to the laborers or mechanics affected, and records which show the costs anticipated or the actual cost incurred in providing such benefits. Contractors employing apprentices or trainees under approved programs shall maintain written evidence of the registration of apprenticeship programs and certification of trainee programs, the registration of the apprentices and trainees, and the ratios and wage rates prescribed in the applicable programs.

- (2) (i) The Contractor shall submit weekly for each week in which any contract work is performed a copy of all payrolls to the Contracting Officer for transmission to HUD or its designee. The payrolls submitted shall set out accurately and completely all of the information required to be maintained under subparagraph (c)(1) of this clause. This information may be submitted in any form desired. Optional Form WH-347 (Federal Stock Number 029-005-00014-1) is available for this purpose and may be purchased from the Superintendent of Documents, U.S. Government Printing Office, Washington, D.C. 20402. The Contractor is responsible for the submission of copies of payrolls by all subcontractors. (Approved by the Office of Management and Budget under OMB Control Number 1214-0149.)
 - (ii) Each payroll submitted shall be accompanied by a "Statement of Compliance," signed by the Contractor or subcontractor or his or her agent who pays or supervises the payment of the persons employed under the contract and shall certify the following:
- certify the following:

 (A) That the payroll for the payroll period contains the information required to be maintained under paragraph (c) (1) of this clause and that such information is correct and complete;
- (B) That each laborer or mechanic (including each helper, apprentice, and trainee) employed on the contract during the payroll period has been paid the full weekly wages earned, without rebate, either directly or indirectly, and that no deductions have been made either directly or indirectly from the full wages earned, other than permissible deductions as set forth in 29 CFR Part 3; and
- (C) That each laborer or mechanic has been paid not less than the applicable wage rates and fringe benefits or cash equivalents for the classification of work performed, as specified in the applicable wage determination incorporated into the contract.
 - (iii) The weekly submission of a properly executed certification set forth on the reverse side of Optional Form WH-347 shall satisfy the requirements for submission of the "Statement of Compliance" required by subparagraph (c)(2)(ii) of this clause
 - (iv) The falsification of any of the above certifications may subject the Contractor or subcontractor to civil or criminal prosecution under Section 1001 of Title 18 and Section 3729 of Title 31 of the United States Code.
 - (3) The Contractor or subcontractor shall make the records required under subparagraph (c)(1) available for inspection, copying, or transcription by authorized representatives of HUD or its designee, the Contracting Officer, or the Department of Labor and shall permit such representatives to interview employees during working hours on the job. If the Contractor or subcontractor fails to submit the required records or to make them available, HUD or its designee may, after written notice to the Contractor, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds. Furthermore, failure to submit the required records upon request or to

- make such records available may be grounds for debarment action pursuant to 29 CFR 5.12.
- (d) (1) Apprentices. Apprentices will be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work they performed when they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a bona fide apprenticeship program registered with the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration, Office of Apprenticeship and Training, Employer and Labor Services (OATELS), or with a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by OATELS, or if a person is employed in his or her first 90 days of probationary employment as an apprentice in such an apprenticeship program, who is not individually registered in the program, but who has been certified by OATELS or a State Apprenticeship Agency (where appropriate) to be eligible for probationary employment as an apprentice. The allowable ratio of apprentices to journeymen on the job site in any craft classification shall not be greater than the ratio permitted to the Contractor as to the entire work force under the registered program. Any worker listed on a payroll at an apprentice wage rate, who is not registered or otherwise employed as stated in this paragraph, shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed. In addition, any apprentice performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. Where a contractor is performing construction on a project in a locality other than that in which its program is registered, the ratios and wage rates (expressed in percentages of the journeyman's hourly rate) specified in the Contractor's or subcontractor's registered program shall be observed. Every apprentice must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the registered program for the apprentice's level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeyman hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. Apprentices shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the apprenticeship program. If the apprenticeship program does not specify fringe benefits, apprentices must be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination for the applicable classification. If the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division determines that a different practice prevails for the applicable apprentice classification, fringes shall be paid in accordance with that determination. In the event OATELS, or a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by OATELS, withdraws approval of an apprenticeship program, the Contractor will no longer be permitted to utilize apprentices at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable
 - (2) Trainees. Except as provided in 29 CFR 5.16, trainees will not be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work performed unless they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a program which has received prior approval, evidenced by formal certification by the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration. The ratio of trainees to journeymen on the job site shall not be greater than permitted under

program is approved.

the plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration. Every trainee must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the approved program for the trainee's level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeyman hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. Trainees shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the trainee program. If the trainee program does not mention fringe benefits, trainees shall be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed in the wage determination unless the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division determines that there is an apprenticeship program associated with the corresponding journeyman wage rate in the wage determination which provides for less than full fringe benefits for apprentices. Any employee listed on the payroll at a trainee rate who is not registered and participating in a training plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate in the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed. In addition, any trainee performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate in the wage determination for the work actually performed. In the event the Employment and Training Administration withdraws approval of a training program, the Contractor will no longer be permitted to utilize trainees at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is approved.

- (3) Equal employment opportunity. The utilization of apprentices, trainees, and journeymen under this clause shall be in conformity with the equal employment opportunity requirements of Executive Order 11246, as amended, and 29 CFR Part 30.
- (e) Compliance with Copeland Act requirements. The Contractor shall comply with the requirements of 29 CFR Part 3, which are hereby incorporated by reference in this contract.
- (f) Contract termination; debarment. A breach of this contract clause may be grounds for termination of the contract and for debarment as a Contractor and a subcontractor as provided in 29 CFR 5.12.
- (g) Compliance with Davis-Bacon and related Act requirements. All rulings and interpretations of the Davis-Bacon and related Acts contained in 29 CFR Parts 1, 3, and 5 are herein incorporated by reference in this contract
- (h) Disputes concerning labor standards. Disputes arising out of the labor standards provisions of this clause shall not be subject to the general disputes clause of this contract. Such disputes shall be resolved in accordance with the procedures of the Department of Labor set forth in 29 CFR Parts 5, 6, and 7. Disputes within the meaning of this clause include disputes between the Contractor (or any of its subcontractors) and the PHA, HUD, the U.S. Department of Labor, or the employees or their representatives.
- (i) Certification of eligibility.
 - (1) By entering into this contract, the Contractor certifies that neither it (nor he or she) nor any person or firm who has an interest in the Contractor's firm is a person or firm ineligible to be awarded contracts by the United States Government by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1).

- (2) No part of this contract shall be subcontracted to any person or firm ineligible for award of a United States Government contract by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1).
- (3) The penalty for making false statements is prescribed in the U. S. Criminal Code, 18 U.S.C. 1001.
- (j) Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act. As used in this paragraph, the terms "laborers" and "mechanics" include watchmen and guards.
 - (1) Overtime requirements. No contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of the contract work which may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics, including watchmen and guards, shall require or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any workweek in which the individual is employed on such work to work in excess of 40 hours in such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 40 hours in such workweek.
 - (2) Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages. In the event of any violation of the provisions set forth in subparagraph (j)(1) of this clause, the Contractor and any subcontractor responsible therefor shall be liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, such Contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the United States (in the case of work done under contract for the District of Columbia or a territory, to such District or to such territory), for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic (including watchmen and guards) employed in violation of the provisions set forth in subparagraph (i)(1) of this clause, in the sum of \$27 for each calendar day on which such individual was required or permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of 40 hours without payment of the overtime wages required by provisions set forth in subparagraph (j)(1) of this clause. DOL posts current fines at: https://www.dol.gov/whd/ govcontracts/cwhssa.htm#cmp
 - (3) Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages. HUD or its designee shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable on account of work performed by the Contractor or subcontractor under any such contract or any Federal contract with the same prime Contractor, or any other Federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by the same prime Contractor, such sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such Contractor or subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in the provisions set forth in subparagraph (j)(2) of this clause.
- (k) Subcontracts. The Contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts all the provisions contained in this clause, and such other clauses as HUD or its designee may by appropriate instructions require, and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these provisions in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime Contractor shall be responsible for the compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with all these provisions.

47. Non-Federal Prevailing Wage Rates

- (a) Any prevailing wage rate (including basic hourly rate and any fringe benefits), determined under State or tribal law to be prevailing, with respect to any employee in any trade or position employed under the contract, is inapplicable to the contract and shall not be enforced against the Contractor or any subcontractor, with respect to employees engaged under the contract whenever such non-Federal prevailing wage rate exceeds:
- (1) The applicable wage rate determined by the Secretary of Labor pursuant to the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 3141 et seq.) to be prevailing in the locality with respect to such trade;
- (b) An applicable apprentice wage rate based thereon specified in an apprenticeship program registered with the U.S. Department of Labor (DOL) or a DOL-recognized State Apprenticeship Agency; or
 (c) An applicable trainee wage rate based thereon specified
- 48. Procurement of Recovered Materials.

in a DOL-certified trainee program.

(a) In accordance with Section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, the Contractor shall procure items designated in guidelines of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) at 40 CFR Part 247 that contain the highest percentage of recovered materials practicable, consistent with maintaining a satisfactory level of competition. The Contractor shall procure items designated in the EPA guidelines that contain the highest percentage of recovered materials practicable unless the Contractor determines that such items: (1) are not reasonably available in a reasonable period of time; (2) fail to meet reasonable performance standards, which shall be determined on the basis of the guidelines of the National Institute of Standards and Technology, if applicable to the item; or (3) are only available at an

unreasonable price.

() Paragraph (a) of this clause shall apply to items purchased under this contract where: (1) the

Contractor purchases in excess of \$10,000 of the item under this contract; or (2) during the preceding Federal fiscal year, the Contractor: (i) purchased any amount of the items for use under a contract that was funded with Federal appropriations and was with a Federal agency or a State agency or agency of a political subdivision of a State; and (ii) purchased a total of in excess of \$10,000 of the item both under and outside that contract.

DOCUMENT 00811

SPECIAL CONDITIONS

PROJECT SITE

The site of the Project is located within the city limits of Palatka, Putnam County, Florida, all shown as the "Reroofing at Northside Homes", and designated on the drawings as Site Plan.

TIME FOR COMPLETION

The Contractor shall prepare a schedule of completion. This schedule shall be prepared in conjunction with the Owner's representative. After said schedule is prepared and agreed upon, the work shall be prosecuted in accordance with that schedule. Each building will, if necessary, have a different completion date. Liquidated Damages as described hereinafter will accrue if the scheduled completion date (which is enumerated in the schedule) if not achieved. All of the work shall be completed in one hundred twenty (120) calendar days or less. There is no bonus for early completion.

3. LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

As actual damages for any delay in completion are impossible to determine, the Contractor shall be liable for and shall pay to the Palatka Housing Authority the sum of <u>Three Hundred Dollars</u> (\$300.00) per calendar day of delay until the work is completed and accepted.

4. PERMITS AND LICENSES

The Contractor shall obtain and pay for all permits, fees, licenses, etc., required to perform business transactions in the City of Palatka, Putnam County, Florida.

EXISTING CONDITIONS

The Contractor shall visit the project location and thoroughly familiarize himself with all of the existing conditions.

No extras will be allowed for items obviously necessary for the completion of the work but not specifically called out in the Specifications.

6. DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS

- a. Technical Specifications shall control over Plans, schedules shall control over general plans, large scale details over small scale and figure dimensions. Scaled dimensions shall not be allowed. Addenda and Change Orders supersede only affected portions of the Documents.
- b. The term "furnish" includes purchase and delivery to Project Site. The term "install" includes receiving, unloading, and storing at Project Site, installing in place, and placing in operation or finishing complete for intended use.
- c. The Drawings are intended to show the general arrangements, design and extent of the work, and are partly diagrammatic; they are not intended to be called for rough-in measurements, or to serve as Shop Drawings.
- d. Should the Drawings disagree in themselves or with the Specifications, the better quality or greater quantity of work or materials shall be furnished unless otherwise ordered in writing by the Architect.
- e. Where a typical or representative detail is shown on the Drawings, this detail shall constitute the standard in workmanship and materials throughout corresponding parts of the work; adaptation, however, shall be subject to the approval of the Architect.

7. JOB OFFICES

- a. The Contractor may, at his option, furnish and maintain, during construction of the project, office and storage facilities at the site.
- b. The Contractor shall furnish and maintain sanitary toilet facilities. Location to be determined by Owner.
- c. The Contractor and his subcontractors may maintain such office and storage facilities on the site as may be necessary in the proper conduct of the work. These shall be located so as to cause no interference to any work to be performed on the site. The Owner shall be consulted with regard to locations.

- d. Upon completion of the project, or as directed by the Palatka Housing Authority or Architect, the Contractor shall remove all such temporary structures and facilities from the site, same to become his property, and leave the premises in the condition required by the Contract.
- e. If the Contractor elects to store materials on the Project Site, the Contractor shall provide his own storage containers and maintain same during the term of the Contract. Contractor shall provide proper insurance for all stored materials.

8. MINIMUM RATES OF PAY

A schedule of the minimum rates of pay applicable to this Contract is attached.

COMMUNICATIONS

- a. All notices, demands, requests, instructions, approvals, proposals, and claims must be in writing.
- b. Any notice to or demand upon the Contractor shall be sufficiently given if delivered at the office of the Contractor stated on the signature page of the Contract or at such other office as he may from time to time designate in writing to the Palatka Housing Authority or deposited in the United States mail in a sealed, postage-prepaid envelope, or if delivered with charges prepaid to any telegraph company for transmission, in each case addressed to such office.
- c. All papers required to be delivered to the Palatka Housing Authority or Architect shall, unless otherwise specified in writing to the Contractor, be delivered to the Palatka Housing Authority at 400 North 15th Street Palatka, Florida 32177, and any notice to or demand upon the Palatka Housing Authority or Architect shall be sufficiently given if so delivered, or deposited in the United States mail in a sealed, postage-prepaid envelope, or delivered with charges prepaid to any telegraph company for transmission to said Authority or Architect at such address, or to such other representatives of the Palatka Housing Authority may subsequently specify in writing to the Contractor for such purpose.
- d. Any such notice shall be deemed to have been given as of the time of actual delivery; or, in the case of mailing, when the same should have been received in due course of post; or, in the case of telegrams, at the time of actual receipt.
- e. All day to day communication with the Owner shall be as follows:

Willie Mae Thomas

Tel: 386.329.0132, ext. 215

Fax: 386.329.0162

- f. If the Contractor defaults or neglects to carry out the work in accordance with the Contract Documents and fails within seventy-two (72) hours after receipt of written notice from the Owner to commence and continue correction of such default or neglect with diligence and promptness, the Owner may make good such deficiencies. In such case and appropriate Change Order shall be issued deducting from the payments then or thereafter due the Contractor at a cost of correcting such deficiencies including compensation for the Architect's additional services made necessary by such default, neglect, or failure. Such action by the Owner and the amount charged to the Contractor are both subject to prior approval of the Architect. If the payments then or thereafter due the Contractor are not sufficient to cover such amount, the Contractor shall pay the difference to the Owner.
- g. Should the Architect or Owner find any person(s) employed on the project to be incompetent, unfit, or otherwise objectionable for his duties and so certified the facts to the Contractor, the Contractor shall immediately cause the employee to be dismissed and said employee shall not be re-employed on this project without the written consent of the Architect and Owner.

10. SUBSTITUTIONS

Except where limitations on approved products pursuant to Florida Statute 255.04(1) appear elsewhere in the Contract, when reference is made in the Contract Documents to trade names or manufacturers, such references are made solely to indicated that products of the description may be furnished and are not intended to restrict competitive bidding. If it is desired to use products of trade or brand names or of manufacturer's names which are different from those mentioned in the Contract Documents, application for the approval of the use of such products must be in receipt of the Architect at least ten days prior to the opening of Bids. The latter provision is a restriction which applies only to the party making the submittal. Therefore, the aforesaid restriction does not inhibit the Architect from adding trade names or names, brand names or names, or manufacturers by addendum. The burden of proving acceptability of a proposed product for use in place of a product or products designated by trade name or names, brand name or names or by the name or names of manufacturers in the Contract Documents rests on the party submitting the request for approval. The written application for approval of a proposed product must be accompanied by technical data which the party requesting approval desires to submit in support of his application. The Architect will give consideration to reports from reputable independent testing laboratories, verified experience records showing the reputation of the proposed product with previous users, evidence of reputation of the manufacturer for prompt delivery, evidence of reputation of the manufacturer for efficiency in servicing its products, or any other written information that is helpful in the circumstances.

The application to the Architect for approval of a proposed product must be accompanied by a schedule setting forth in which respects the materials or equipment submitted for consideration differ from the materials or equipment designated in the Contract Documents. The degree of proof required for approval of a proposed product as acceptable for use in place of a named product or named products is that amount of proof necessary to convince a reasonable person beyond all doubt. To be approved, a proposed product must also meet or exceed all express requirements of the Contract Documents. If the submittal is approved by the Architect an addendum will be issued to all prospective Bidders. Issuance of and addendum is the representation to all Bidders that the Architect in the exercise of his professional discretion established the product submitted for approval is acceptable and meets or exceeds all express requirements. In order for the Architect to prepare an addendum intelligently, the application for approval of a product must be accompanied by a copy of the published recommendations of the manufacturer of the product in accordance with the recommendations of the manufacturer of the product. (See Article 3.14, AIA General Conditions which required that the Contractor do all cutting and fitting that may be required to make the several parts of his work come together properly and fit).

- b. Unless requests for approvals of other products have been received and approvals have been published by addendum in accordance with the above procedure, the successful Bidder may furnish no products of any trade names, brand names, or manufacturers' names except those designated in the Contract Documents with exception of changes or substitutions that may be affected via Change Order in accordance with Article 12 of the AIA General Conditions. Any party who alleges that rejection of a submittal is the result of bias, prejudice, caprice, or error on the part of the Architect/Engineer may request a conference with a representative of the Owner, provided: That the request for said conference, submitted in writing, shall have reached the Owner at least five days prior to the date set for opening Bids, time being of the essence. By making request for substitutions based on Clause 4.5.1 above, the Contractor:
 - 1. represents that he has personally investigated the proposed substitute and determined that it is equal or superior in all respects to that specified;
 - 2. represents that he will provide the same warranty for the substitution that he would for that specified;
 - certifies that the cost data presented is complete and includes all related cost under this
 Contract but excludes costs under separate contracts, and excludes the Architect's/Engineer's
 redesign costs, and waives all claims for additional costs related to the substitution which
 subsequently became apparent and;
 - 4. will coordinate the installation of the accepted substitute, making such changes as may be required for the work to be completed in all respects.

11. BUILDING PERMIT

a. The Contractor is required to secure all necessary permits from the City of Palatka Building and Zoning Departments.

12. SITE STORAGE

- a. The Contractor shall confine his equipment, storage of materials, and operations of his workmen to limits directed by the Architect. Materials shall not be brought onto the site until reasonably required for the progress of the work. Storage space will be confined to a designated area of the site. When the site is not in a condition to receive a material shipment, the Contractor shall have materials properly stored elsewhere at no additional cost to the Owner. No payment for materials shall be made unless material is stored on site.
- b. Material shall be arranged and maintained in an orderly manner with use of walks, drives, roads and entrances unencumbered. Store, place and handle material and equipment delivered to Project Site so as to preclude inclusion of foreign substances or causing discoloration. Pile neatly and completely and barricade to protect public from injury. Protect material as required to prevent damage from ground or weather. Should it be necessary to move material at any time, or move sheds or storage platforms, Contractor shall move them as and when required at no additional cost to the Owner. The Owner assumes no responsibility for stored materials in building or on site. The Contractor shall assume full responsibility for damage due to storing of materials. Repairing of areas used for the placing of sheds, offices, and storage of materials shall be done by Contractor.

13. ADMINISTRATION OF THE CONTRACT

- a. Communications Facilitating Contract Administration: Except as otherwise provided in the Contract Documents or when direct communications have been specially authorized, the Owner and the Contractor shall endeavor to communicate through the Architect. Communications by and with subcontractors and material suppliers shall be through the Contractor. Communications by and with separate contractors shall be through the Owner.
- b. The Contractor's attention is directed to Section 00700, Page 11, Section 27, Paragraph e. This form shall be completed at each request for payment and submitted to the Architect.

- c. Based on the Architect's observations and evaluations of the Contractor's Applications for Payment, the Architect will review and certify the amounts due the Contractor and will issue certificates for Payment in such amounts.
- d. The Architect will have the authority to reject work which does not conform to the Contract Documents. Whenever the Architect considers it necessary or advisable for implementation of the intent of the Contract Documents, the Architect will have authority to require additional inspection or testing of the work, whether or not such work is fabricated, installed, or completed. However, neither this authority of the Architect nor a decision made in good faith either to exercise or not to exercise such authority shall give rise to a duty or responsibility of the Architect to the Contractor, subcontractors, material and equipment suppliers, their agents or employees, or other persons performing portions of the work.
- e. The Architect will review and approve or take other appropriate action upon the Contractor's submittals such as shop drawings, product data and samples, but only for the limited purpose of checking for conformance with information given and the design concept expressed in the Contract Documents. The Architect's action will be taken with such reasonable promptness as to cause no delay in the Work or in the activities of the Owner, Contractor or separate contractors, while allowing sufficient time in the Architect's professional judgement to permit adequate review. Review of such submittals is not conducted for the purpose of determining the accuracy and completeness of other details such as dimensions and quantities, or for substantiating instructions for installation or performance of equipment or systems, all of which remain the responsibility of the Contractor as required by the Contract Documents. The Architect's review of the Contractor's submittals shall not relieve the Contractor of contractual obligations. The Architect's review shall not constitute approval of safety precautions or, unless otherwise specifically stated by the Architect, of any construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures. The Architect's approval of a specific item shall not indicate approval of an assembly of which the item is a component.
- f. The Architect will prepare Change Orders and Construction Change Directives and may authorize minor changes in the work.
- g. The Architect will conduct inspections to determine the date or dates of Substantial Completion and the date of final completion, will receive and forward to the Owner for review and records written warranties and related documents required by the Contract and assembled by the Contractor, and will issue a final Certificate for Payment upon compliance with the requirements of the Contract Documents.
- h. If the Owner and the Architect agree, the Architect will provide one or more project representatives to assist in carrying out the Architect's responsibilities at the site.
- i. The Architect will interpret and decide matters concerning performance under and requirements of the Contract Documents on written request of either the Owner or the Contractor. The Architect's response to such requests will be made with reasonable promptness and within any time limits agreed upon. If no agreement is made concerning the time within which interpretations required of the Architect shall be furnished in compliance with this Paragraph 16, then delay shall not be recognized on account of failure by the Architect to furnish such interpretations until 15 days after written request is made for them.
- j. Interpretations and decisions of the Architect will be consistent with the intent of and reasonably inferable from the Contract Documents and will be in writing or in the form of drawings. When making such interpretations and decisions, the Architect will endeavor to secure faithful performance by both Owner and Contractor, will not show partiality to either and will not be liable for results or interpretations or decisions so rendered in good faith.
- k. The Architect's decisions on matters relating to aesthetic effect will be final if consistent with the intent expressed in the Contract Documents.

14. PROJECT MEETINGS

a. Project meetings will be held at times designated by the Architect after conference with the Contractor. Contractor and designated Subcontractors must attend these meetings. If the principal of the firm does not attend meetings, the individual representing the firm must be a responsible representative of the company who can bind the company to a decision at the meeting.

15. CHANGES IN THE WORK

- a. The cost of all changes in the work shall be substantiated by complete itemized statements showing quantities and unit prices for material, labor (including all fringe benefits), equipment and other items of cost. Costs of labor (including all applicable fringe benefits) and materials shall be actual costs to the Contractor. The Contractor shall submit receipts or other evidences, as the Architect may direct, showing his actual costs and his rights to the payment claims.
- b. The maximum percentage of profit and overhead which may be added to actual costs of changes in the work shall be as follows:
- c. For work done by his own organization, the Contractor may add ten percent (10%) of his actual costs.

- d. For work done by Subcontractors, the respective Subcontractor may add ten percent (10%) of their costs and the Contractor may add (5%) of the above Subcontractor's total.
- e. Overhead shall include the following: Supervision, wages or time-keepers, watchmen and clerks, hand tools, incidentals, general office expense, and all other expenses not included in "cost".
- f. Authorization for changes in the work shall be made in writing by the Architect and the Owner, and no claim for a revision of the Contract Sum shall be valid unless so authorized.
- g. Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, cost shall be limited to the following: cost of material at the trade discount cost, including sales tax and cost of delivery; cost of labor, including Social Security, old age and unemployment insurance, and fringe benefits required by agreement of custom; workers' compensation insurance; bond premium not exceed one percent (1%); rental value of equipment and machinery at trade discount cost plus sales tax and the additional cost of supervision directly attributable to the change only if the change (or total time extension of all changes) results in an extension of the contract time for more than thirty days. The bond premium of all credit amounts shall be added to the total credit allowed the Owner. No bond cost shall be allowed for a Subcontractor's bond cost.

16. TIME:

- a. The Contractor shall furnish sufficient forces, construction plant and equipment, and shall work such hours as may be necessary to insure prosecution of the work in accordance with the approved progress schedule. In no case, however, shall any work be allowed after 7:00 p.m. (local time) until 7:00 a.m. (local time) any day. No work shall be performed after 7:00 p.m. on Saturday until 7:00 a.m. the following Monday. If the Contractor falls behind the progress schedule, he shall take such steps as may be necessary or as may be directed by the Owner to improve his progress by increasing the number of shifts, overtime operations, days of work, and the amount of construction plant, as may be required, at no additional cost to the Owner.
- b. Failure of the Contractor to comply with the requirements under this provision shall be grounds for determination that the Contractor is not prosecuting the work with such diligence as will ensure completion within the time specified and such failure constitutes a substantial violation of the conditions of the Agreement.

17. PAYMENTS AND COMPLETION

- a. The Contractor shall, within ten (10) days from the date of Notice of Award and prior to first application for payment, submit to the Architect three (3) copies of a correct and completely itemized schedule of contract values which will reflect the cost of each subdivision of work each specification section. The value of each item shall include a true proportionate amount of the Contractor's overhead and profit. The sum of all such scheduled values shall equal the Contract sum as evidenced by the Agreement. If requested, the Contractor shall submit substantiating data for schedule of contract values will accompany and support the Contractor's periodic applications for payment and shall indicate the value of suitable stored material as well as labor performed and materials incorporated into the work for each subdivision of the schedule during the period for which the requisition is prepared.
- b. Ten percent (10%) of each payment will be retained until the Contract, including Change Orders, is complete. Payments of the amounts retained will be due ten (10) days after final acceptance by the Owner and issuance of certificates by the State as described in Paragraph 9.9.1
- c. Final payment shall be made to the Contractor as provided by the Agreement between the Owner and Contractor. Application for final payment shall be in the same form as application for progress payments as described in Paragraph 9.3.1 and shall be accompanied by the following additional items:
- d. Completed and notarized waivers and releases of lien in a form acceptable to the Architect and Owner.
- e. Such other data and substantiating information as may be required elsewhere in these Contract Documents including but not limited to all required guarantees, warranties, operating and maintenance manuals, As-Built Drawings, or as may be required by the Owner or Architect and as described in DIVISION 1, SECTION 1701 CONTRACT CLOSEOUT PROCEDURES
- f. Consent of Surety.

18. INSURANCE

- a. Builder's Risk Insurance: Contractor shall purchase, maintain, and pay for the costs of Builder's Risk Insurance (fire, extended coverage, vandalism, theft, and malicious mischief) on all construction materials and the buildings or structures in the course of construction. Said Builder's Risk insurance shall inure to the benefit of Owner and Owner's interests. Contractor shall be responsible for paying for any and all losses, excluding any loss which is the result of natural causes. Contractor shall be responsible for the loss of, or damage to, any and all of Contractor's personal property; such as tools, equipment, mobile office, etc.
- b. Extended Coverage: The usual form currently available and covering perils of windstorm, hail, explosive, riot and civil commotion, damage from aircraft and vehicles and smoke damage.

- c. Liability Insurance: The Contractor will purchase and maintain during the entire time of this Agreement comprehensive general liability and comprehensive automobile liability insurance as shall protect him from claims for property damages which may arise from operations under this Agreement whether such operations be by himself or by anyone directly or indirectly employed by him, and the amounts of such insurance shall be the minimum limits as follows:
- d. Comprehensive General Liability including Personal Injury, Products Completed Operations Coverage, Independent Contractor's Protective, and Contractual Liability.

Bodily Injury and Property Damage:

\$1,000,000 General Aggregate \$1,000,000 Each Occurrence

\$1,000,000 Products/Completed Operations

Personal Injury Liability: \$1,000,000

Products and Completed Operations to be maintained for one (1) year after final payment.

Property Damage Liability Insurance will provide X, C, and U coverage when such contracts are affected. Owner shall be named as additional insured on all liability insurance.

e. Comprehensive Automobile Liability:

Bodily Injury: \$1,000,000 Each Occurrence Property Damage: \$1,000,000 Each Occurrence

f. Worker's Compensation Insurance: Contractor shall take out and maintain, during the life of this Agreement, Worker's Compensation Insurance in compliance with Chapter 440, Florida Statutes, for all of his employees connected with the work of this project and further, the Contractor shall require his Subcontractors similarly to provide Worker's Compensation Insurance. In case any class of employee engaged in hazardous work under this Contract at the site of project is not protected under the Workmen's Compensation Statute, the Contractor shall provide, adequate insurance satisfactory to the Owner for the protection of his employees not otherwise protected.

Required Limits:

- 1. Worker's Compensation Statutory Benefits
- 2. Employer's Liability

\$1,000,000 each employee Bodily Injury by accident Bodily Injury by disease \$1,000,000 policy limit Bodily Injury by disease

- g. Anything in the Contract Documents to the contrary notwithstanding and in addition to the insurance required to be maintained by the Contractor as hereinabove set forth, Contractor agrees to indemnify, hold harmless and defend Owner and Architect against any and all claims, loss, damage to or destruction of property including, without limitation, property and employees of Owner, occurring wholly or in part, as the result of work done or omitted to be done by, or contracted to be done but not done by, Contractor or his Subcontractors or the employees or agents or invites either arising from injury to or death of persons or damage to or destruction of property due or claimed to be due, in whole or in part, to any negligence or fault of Owner or its employees, agents, or invites, except claims, loss, damage, costs or expense resulting from risks as are hereinabove required to be insured by Owner.
- h. Contractor shall submit to Owner before commencement of work, evidence of the above require insurance, which shall contain certification by the insurance companies that such insurance shall not be cancelled or materially changed until at least ten (10) days prior to written notification being given to the Owner. The Form of Certificate shall be the standard "Accord" form, Certificate of Insurance. The Contractor shall furnish the Owner copies of any endorsements that are subsequently issued amending coverage or limits.

19. UNCOVERING AND CORRECTION OF WORK

a. If, after the approval of final payments and prior to expiration of one (1) year thereafter, or such longer period of time as may be prescribed by law or by the terms of any applicable special guarantee required by the Contract Documents, any work is found to be defective, it shall be repaired by the Contractor. In the case of an emergency, brought about by defective work of the Contractor, the

Owner may proceed immediately to make the necessary repairs and charge the cost of same to the Contractor without giving any notice to the Contractor.

20. TERMINATION OF THE CONTRACT

TERMINATION BY THE OWNER

- a. If the Contractor is adjudged a bankrupt, or makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors, or if a receiver is appointed on account of the Contractor's insolvency, or if the Contractor persistently or repeatedly refuses or fails, except in cases for which extension of time is provided, to supply enough properly skilled workers or proper materials, or fails to make prompt payment to Subcontractors for materials or labor, or persistently disregards laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, or orders of any public authority having jurisdiction, or if the Contractor:
 - 1. Fails to correct, replace and/or re-execute faulty or defective work and/or materials furnished under this Agreement; or
 - 2. Fails to complete or diligently proceed with the Work required by this Agreement, within the time constraints of the construction schedule maintained by the Architect; or
 - 3. Fails to correct or repair any damage to Work caused by him or his failure to protect his Work or the work of others; or
 - 4. Fails to provide safe and sufficient facilities, orderly premises and the cleanup of the Work required under this Agreement; or
 - 5. Is unable to proceed with the Work because of any action by one or more employees of the Trade Contractor or by a person or labor organization supporting or attempting to represent any employees of the Trade Contractor; or otherwise is guilty of a substantial violation of the provision of the Contract Documents, and fails within 72 hours after receipt of written notice to commence and continue correction of such default, neglect or violation with diligence and promptness, the Owner, upon certification by the Architect that sufficient cause exists to justify such action, may without prejudice to any other remedy the Owner may have, terminate the employment of the Contractor and take possession of the site and all materials, equipment, tools, construction equipment and machinery thereon owned by the Contractor and may finish the Work by whatever methods the Owner may deem expedient. In such case, the Contractor shall not be entitled to receive any further payment until the Work is finished.

21. SCHEDULE OF DRAWINGS:

CS	Cover Sheet
Architectural	
A-0.1	Abbreviations and Legends and Site Plans
A-1.0	Northside Homes Site Plan, Roof Plan, and Elevations
A-1.1	Northside Homes Roof Plans and Elevations
A-1.2	Northside Homes Roof Plans and Elevations
A-2.0	Details and Notes

END OF DOCUMENT

A. APPLICABILITY

The Project or Program to which the construction work covered by this Contract pertains is being assisted by the United States of America, and the following Federal Labor Standards Provisions are included in this Contract pursuant to the provisions applicable to such Federal assistance.

1. Minimum wages and fringe benefits

i. All laborers and mechanics employed or working upon the site of the work (or otherwise working in construction or development of the project under a development statute), will be paid unconditionally and not less often than once a week, and without subsequent deduction or rebate on any account (except such payroll deductions as are permitted by regulations issued by the Secretary of Labor under the Copeland Act (29 CFR part 3)), the full amount of basic hourly wages and bona fide fringe benefits (or cash equivalents thereof) due at time of payment computed at rates not less than those contained in the wage determination of the Secretary of Labor which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, regardless of any contractual relationship which may be alleged to exist between the contractor and such laborers and mechanics. As provided in 29 CFR 5.5(d) and (e), the appropriate wage determinations are effective by operation of law even if they have not been attached to the contract. Contributions made or costs reasonably anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits under the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 3141(2)(B)) on behalf of laborers or mechanics are considered wages paid to such laborers or mechanics, subject to the provisions of paragraph (a)(1)(v) of these contract clauses; also, regular contributions made or costs incurred for more than a weekly period (but not less often than quarterly) under plans, funds, or programs which cover the particular weekly period, are deemed to be constructively made or incurred during such weekly period. Such laborers and mechanics must be paid the appropriate wage rate and fringe benefits on the wage determination for the classification(s) of work actually performed, without regard to skill, except as provided in 29 CFR 5.5(a)(4). Laborers or mechanics performing work in more than one classification may be compensated at the rate specified for each classification for the time actually worked therein: Provided, That the employer's payroll records accurately set forth the time spent in each classification in which work is performed. The wage determination (including any additional classifications and wage rates conformed under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(iii)) and the Davis-Bacon poster (WH-1321) must be posted at all times by the contractor and its subcontractors at the site of the work in a prominent and accessible place where it can be easily seen by the workers.

ii. Frequently recurring classifications

A. In addition to wage and fringe benefit rates that have been determined to be prevailing under the procedures set forth in 29 CFR part 1, a wage determination may contain, pursuant to § 1.3(f), wage and fringe benefit rates for classifications of laborers and mechanics for which conformance requests are regularly submitted pursuant to 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(iii), provided that:

- 1. The work performed by the classification is not performed by a classification in the wage determination for which a prevailing wage rate has been determined;
- 2. The classification is used in the area by the construction industry; and
- **3.** The wage rate for the classification bears a reasonable relationship to the prevailing wage rates contained in the wage determination.
- **B.** The Administrator will establish wage rates for such classifications in accordance with 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(iii)(A)(3). Work performed in such a classification must be paid at no less than the wage and fringe benefit rate listed on the wage determination for such classification.

iii. Conformance

A. The contracting officer must require that any class of laborers or mechanics, including helpers, which is not listed in the wage determination and which is to be employed under the contract be

classified in conformance with the wage determination. Conformance of an additional classification and wage rate and fringe benefits is appropriate only when the following criteria have been met:

- 1. The work to be performed by the classification requested is not performed by a classification in the wage determination; and
- 2. The classification is used in the area by the construction industry; and
- **3.** The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide fringe benefits, bears a reasonable relationship to the wage rates contained in the wage determination.
- **B.** The conformance process may not be used to split, subdivide, or otherwise avoid application of classifications listed in the wage determination.
- C. If the contractor and the laborers and mechanics to be employed in the classification (if known), or their representatives, and the contracting officer agree on the classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits where appropriate), a report of the action taken will be sent by the contracting officer by email to DBAconformance@dol.gov. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will approve, modify, or disapprove every additional classification action within 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.
- **D.** In the event the contractor, the laborers or mechanics to be employed in the classification or their representatives, and the contracting officer do not agree on the proposed classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits, where appropriate), the contracting officer will, by email to DBAconformance@dol.gov, refer the questions, including the views of all interested parties and the recommendation of the contracting officer, to the Administrator for determination. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will issue a determination within 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30–day period that additional time is necessary.
- E. The contracting officer must promptly notify the contractor of the action taken by the Wage and Hour Division under 29 CFR 5.5 (a)(1)(iii)(C) and (D). The contractor must furnish a written copy of such determination to each affected worker or it must be posted as a part of the wage determination. The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate) determined pursuant to 29 CFR 5.5 (a)(1)(iii)(C) or (D) must be paid to all workers performing work in the classification under this contract from the first day on which work is performed in the classification.

iv. Fringe benefits not expressed as an hourly rate

Whenever the minimum wage rate prescribed in the contract for a class of laborers or mechanics includes a fringe benefit which is not expressed as an hourly rate, the contractor may either pay the benefit as stated in the wage determination or may pay another bona fide fringe benefit or an hourly cash equivalent thereof.

v. Unfunded plans

If the contractor does not make payments to a trustee or other third person, the contractor may consider as part of the wages of any laborer or mechanic the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing bona fide fringe benefits under a plan or program, *Provided*, That the Secretary of Labor has found, upon the written request of the contractor, in accordance with the criteria set forth in 29 CFR 5.28, that the applicable standards of the Davis-Bacon Act have been met. The Secretary of Labor may require the contractor to set aside in a separate account assets for the meeting of obligations under the plan or program.

vi. Interest In the event of a failure to pay all or part of the wages required by the contract, the contractor will be required to pay interest on any underpayment of wages.

2. Withholding

i. Withholding requirements

The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development may, upon its own action, or must, upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor, withhold or cause to be withheld from the contractor so much of the accrued payments or advances as may be considered necessary to satisfy the liabilities of the prime contractor or any subcontractor for the full amount of wages and monetary relief, including interest, required by the clauses set forth in 29 CFR 5.5(a) for violations of this contract, or to satisfy any such liabilities required by any other Federal contract, or federally assisted contract subject to Davis-Bacon labor standards, that is held by the same prime contractor (as defined in 29 CFR 5.2). The necessary funds may be withheld from the contractor under this contract, any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other federally assisted contract that is subject to Davis-Bacon labor standards requirements and is held by the same prime contractor, regardless of whether the other contract was awarded or assisted by the same agency, and such funds may be used to satisfy the contractor liability for which the funds were withheld. In the event of a contractor's failure to pay any laborer or mechanic, including any apprentice or helper working on the site of the work (or otherwise working in construction or development of the project under a development statute) all or part of the wages required by the contract, or upon the contractor's failure to submit the required records as discussed in 29 CFR 5.5(a)(3)(iv), HUD may on its own initiative and after written notice to the contractor, sponsor, applicant, owner, or other entity, as the case may be, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds until such violations have ceased.

ii. Priority to withheld funds

The Department has priority to funds withheld or to be withheld in accordance with 29 CFR 5.5(a)(2)(i) or (b)(3)(i), or both, over claims to those funds by:

- **A.** A contractor's surety(ies), including without limitation performance bond sureties and payment bond sureties;
- **B.** A contracting agency for its reprocurement costs;
- **C.** A trustee(s) (either a court-appointed trustee or a U.S. trustee, or both) in bankruptcy of a contractor, or a contractor's bankruptcy estate;
- **D.** A contractor's assignee(s);
- **E.** A contractor's successor(s); or
- F. A claim asserted under the Prompt Payment Act, 31 U.S.C. 3901-3907.

3. Records and certified payrolls

i. Basic record requirements

- **A.** Length of record retention. All regular payrolls and other basic records must be maintained by the contractor and any subcontractor during the course of the work and preserved for all laborers and mechanics working at the site of the work (or otherwise working in construction or development of the project under a development statute) for a period of at least 3 years after all the work on the prime contract is completed.
- **B.** Information required Such records must contain the name; Social Security number; last known address, telephone number, and email address of each such worker; each worker's correct classification(s) of work actually performed; hourly rates of wages paid (including rates of contributions or costs anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits or cash equivalents thereof of the types described in 40 U.S.C. 3141(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act); daily and weekly number of hours actually worked in total and on each covered contract; deductions made; and actual wages paid.
- **C.** Additional records relating to fringe benefits. Whenever the Secretary of Labor has found under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(v) that the wages of any laborer or mechanic include the amount of any

costs reasonably anticipated in providing benefits under a plan or program described in 40 U.S.C. 3141(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act, the contractor must maintain records which show that the commitment to provide such benefits is enforceable, that the plan or program is financially responsible, and that the plan or program has been communicated in writing to the laborers or mechanics affected, and records which show the costs anticipated or the actual cost incurred in providing such benefits.

D. Additional records relating to apprenticeship Contractors with apprentices working under approved programs must maintain written evidence of the registration of apprenticeship programs, the registration of the apprentices, and the ratios and wage rates prescribed in the applicable programs.

ii. Certified payroll requirements

- A. Frequency and method of submission The contractor or subcontractor must submit weekly, for each week in which any DBA- or Related Acts-covered work is performed, certified payrolls to HUD if the agency is a party to the contract, but if the agency is not such a party, the contractor will submit the certified payrolls to the applicant, sponsor, owner, or other entity, as the case may be, that maintains such records, for transmission to HUD. The prime contractor is responsible for the submission of all certified payrolls by all subcontractors. A contracting agency or prime contractor may permit or require contractors to submit certified payrolls through an electronic system, as long as the electronic system requires a legally valid electronic signature; the system allows the contractor, the contracting agency, and the Department of Labor to access the certified payrolls upon request for at least 3 years after the work on the prime contract has been completed; and the contracting agency or prime contractor permits other methods of submission in situations where the contractor is unable or limited in its ability to use or access the electronic system
- B. Information required The certified payrolls submitted must set out accurately and completely all of the information required to be maintained under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(3)(i)(B), except that full Social Security numbers and last known addresses, telephone numbers, and email addresses must not be included on weekly transmittals. Instead, the certified payrolls need only include an individually identifying number for each worker (e.g., the last four digits of the worker's Social Security number). The required weekly certified payroll information may be submitted using Optional Form WH-347 or in any other format desired. Optional Form WH-347 is available for this purpose from the Wage and Hour Division Web site at https://www.dol.gov/sites/dolgov/files/WHD/legacy/files/wh347.pdf or its successor website. It is not a violation of this section for a prime contractor to require a subcontractor to provide full Social Security numbers and last known addresses, telephone numbers, and email addresses to the prime contractor for its own records, without weekly submission by the subcontractor to the sponsoring government agency (or the applicant, sponsor, owner, or other entity, as the case may be, that maintains such records).
- **C. Statement of Compliance** Each certified payroll submitted must be accompanied by a "Statement of Compliance," signed by the contractor or subcontractor, or the contractor's or subcontractor's agent who pays or supervises the payment of the persons working on the contract, and must certify the following:
- 1. That the certified payroll for the payroll period contains the information required to be provided under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(3)(ii), the appropriate information and basic records are being maintained under 29 CFR 5.5 (a)(3)(i), and such information and records are correct and complete;
- 2. That each laborer or mechanic (including each helper and apprentice) working on the contract during the payroll period has been paid the full weekly wages earned, without rebate, either directly or indirectly, and that no deductions have been made either directly or indirectly

- from the full wages earned, other than permissible deductions as set forth in 29 CFR part 3; and
- **3.** That each laborer or mechanic has been paid not less than the applicable wage rates and fringe benefits or cash equivalents for the classification(s) of work actually performed, as specified in the applicable wage determination incorporated into the contract.
- **D.** Use of Optional Form WH-347 The weekly submission of a properly executed certification set forth on the reverse side of Optional Form WH-347 will satisfy the requirement for submission of the "Statement of Compliance" required by 29 CFR 5.5(a)(3)(ii)(C).
- **E. Signature** The signature by the contractor, subcontractor, or the contractor's or subcontractor's agent must be an original handwritten signature or a legally valid electronic signature.
- **F. Falsification** The falsification of any of the above certifications may subject the contractor or subcontractor to civil or criminal prosecution under 18 U.S.C. 1001 and 31 U.S.C. 3729.
- **G.** Length of certified payroll retention The contractor or subcontractor must preserve all certified payrolls during the course of the work and for a period of 3 years after all the work on the prime contract is completed.
- **iii. Contracts, subcontracts, and related documents** The contractor or subcontractor must maintain this contract or subcontract and related documents including, without limitation, bids, proposals, amendments, modifications, and extensions. The contractor or subcontractor must preserve these contracts, subcontracts, and related documents during the course of the work and for a period of 3 years after all the work on the prime contract is completed.

iv Required disclosures and access

- A. Required record disclosures and access to workers The contractor or subcontractor must make the records required under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(3)(i)–(iii), and any other documents that HUD or the Department of Labor deems necessary to determine compliance with the labor standards provisions of any of the applicable statutes referenced by 29 CFR 5.1, available for inspection, copying, or transcription by authorized representatives of HUD or the Department of Labor, and must permit such representatives to interview workers during working hours on the job.
- В. Sanctions for non-compliance with records and worker access requirements If the contractor or subcontractor fails to submit the required records or to make them available, or refuses to permit worker interviews during working hours on the job, the Federal agency may, after written notice to the contractor, sponsor, applicant, owner, or other entity, as the case may be, that maintains such records or that employs such workers, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds. Furthermore, failure to submit the required records upon request or to make such records available, or to permit worker interviews during working hours on the job, may be grounds for debarment action pursuant to 29 CFR 5.12. In addition, any contractor or other person that fails to submit the required records or make those records available to WHD within the time WHD requests that the records be produced will be precluded from introducing as evidence in an administrative proceeding under 29 CFR part 6 any of the required records that were not provided or made available to WHD. WHD will take into consideration a reasonable request from the contractor or person for an extension of the time for submission of records. WHD will determine the reasonableness of the request and may consider, among other things, the location of the records and the volume of production.
- C. Required information disclosures Contractors and subcontractors must maintain the full Social Security number and last known address, telephone number, and email address of each covered worker, and must provide them upon request to HUD if the agency is a party to

the contract, or to the Wage and Hour Division of the Department of Labor. If the Federal agency is not such a party to the contract, the contractor, subcontractor, or both, must, upon request, provide the full Social Security number and last known address, telephone number, and email address of each covered worker to the applicant, sponsor, owner, or other entity, as the case may be, that maintains such records, for transmission to HUD, the contractor, or the Wage and Hour Division of the Department of Labor for purposes of an investigation or other compliance action.

4. Apprentices and equal employment opportunity

i. Apprentices

- A. Rate of pay Apprentices will be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work they perform when they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a bona fide apprenticeship program registered with the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration, Office of Apprenticeship (OA), or with a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the OA. A person who is not individually registered in the program, but who has been certified by the OA or a State Apprenticeship Agency (where appropriate) to be eligible for probationary employment as an apprentice, will be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work they perform in the first 90 days of probationary employment as an apprentice in such a program. In the event the OA or a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the OA withdraws approval of an apprenticeship program, the contractor will no longer be permitted to use apprentices at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is approved.
- **B. Fringe benefits** Apprentices must be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the apprenticeship program. If the apprenticeship program does not specify fringe benefits, apprentices must be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination for the applicable classification. If the Administrator determines that a different practice prevails for the applicable apprentice classification, fringe benefits must be paid in accordance with that determination.
- C. Apprenticeship ratio The allowable ratio of apprentices to journeyworkers on the job site in any craft classification must not be greater than the ratio permitted to the contractor as to the entire work force under the registered program or the ratio applicable to the locality of the project pursuant to 29 CFR 5.5(a)(4)(i)(D). Any worker listed on a payroll at an apprentice wage rate, who is not registered or otherwise employed as stated in 29 CFR 5.5(a)(4)(i)(A), must be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed. In addition, any apprentice performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under this section must be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed.
- D. Reciprocity of ratios and wage rates Where a contractor is performing construction on a project in a locality other than the locality in which its program is registered, the ratios and wage rates (expressed in percentages of the journeyworker's hourly rate) applicable within the locality in which the construction is being performed must be observed. If there is no applicable ratio or wage rate for the locality of the project, the ratio and wage rate specified in the contractor's registered program must be observed.
- ii Equal employment opportunity The use of apprentices and journeyworkers under this part must be in conformity with the equal employment opportunity requirements of Executive Order 11246, as amended, and 29 CFR part 30.
- **5 Compliance with Copeland Act requirements.** The contractor shall comply with the requirements of 29 CFR part 3, which are incorporated by reference in this contract.

- **6 Subcontracts.** The contractor or subcontractor must insert in any subcontracts the clauses contained in 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1) through (11), along with the applicable wage determination(s) and such other clauses or contract modifications as the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development may by appropriate instructions require, and a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses and wage determination(s) in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor is responsible for the compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with all the contract clauses in this section. In the event of any violations of these clauses, the prime contractor and any subcontractor(s) responsible will be liable for any unpaid wages and monetary relief, including interest from the date of the underpayment or loss, due to any workers of lower-tier subcontractors, and may be subject to debarment, as appropriate.
 - **7 Contract termination: debarment.** A breach of the contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5 may be grounds for termination of the contract, and for debarment as a contractor and a subcontractor as provided in 29 CFR 5.12.
 - **8** Compliance with Davis-Bacon and Related Act requirements. All rulings and interpretations of the Davis-Bacon and Related Acts contained in 29 CFR parts 1, 3, and 5 are herein incorporated by reference in this contract.
 - **9 Disputes concerning labor standards.** Disputes arising out of the labor standards provisions of this contract shall not be subject to the general disputes clause of this contract. Such disputes shall be resolved in accordance with the procedures of the Department of Labor set forth in 29 CFR parts 5, 6, and 7. Disputes within the meaning of this clause include disputes between the contractor (or any of its subcontractors) and the contracting agency, the U.S. Department of Labor, or the employees or their representatives.

10. Certification of eligibility.

- i. By entering into this contract, the contractor certifies that neither it nor any person or firm who has an interest in the contractor's firm is a person or firm ineligible to be awarded Government contracts by virtue of 40 U.S.C. 3144(b) or 29 CFR 5.12(a).
- **ii.** No part of this contract shall be subcontracted to any person or firm ineligible for award of a Government contract by virtue of 40 U.S.C. 3144(b) or 29 CFR 5.12(a).
- **iii.** The penalty for making false statements is prescribed in the U.S. Code, Title 18 Crimes and Criminal Procedure, 18 U.S.C. 1001.
- 11 Anti-retaliation It is unlawful for any person to discharge, demote, intimidate, threaten, restrain, coerce, blacklist, harass, or in any other manner discriminate against, or to cause any person to discharge, demote, intimidate, threaten, restrain, coerce, blacklist, harass, or in any other manner discriminate against, any worker or job applicant for:
 - i. Notifying any contractor of any conduct which the worker reasonably believes constitutes a violation of the DBA, Related Acts, or 29 CFR parts 1, 3, or 5;
 - ii. Filing any complaint, initiating or causing to be initiated any proceeding, or otherwise asserting or seeking to assert on behalf of themselves or others any right or protection under the DBA, Related Acts, or 29 CFR parts 1, 3, or 5;
 - iii. Cooperating in any investigation or other compliance action, or testifying in any proceeding under the DBA, Related Acts, or 29 CFR parts 1, 3, or 5; or
 - iv. Informing any other person about their rights under the DBA, Related Acts, or 29 CFR parts 1, 3, or 5.

B. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (CWHSSA)

The Agency Head must cause or require the contracting officer to insert the following clauses set forth in 29 CFR 5.5(b)(1), (2), (3), (4), and (5) in full, or (for contracts covered by the Federal Acquisition Regulation) by reference, in any contract in an amount in excess of \$100,000 and subject to the overtime provisions of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act. These clauses must

be inserted in addition to the clauses required by 29 CFR 5.5(a) or 4.6. As used in this paragraph, the terms "laborers and mechanics" include watchpersons and guards.

- 1. Overtime requirements. No contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of the contract work which may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any workweek in which he or she is employed on such work to work in excess of forty hours in such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of forty hours in such workweek.
- 2. Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages. In the event of any violation of the clause set forth in 29 CFR 5.5(b)(1) the contractor and any subcontractor responsible therefor shall be liable for the unpaid wages and interest from the date of the underpayment. In addition, such contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the United States (in the case of work done under contract for the District of Columbia or a territory, to such District or to such territory), for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchpersons and guards, employed in violation of the clause set forth in 29 CFR 5.5(b)(1), in the sum of \$31 for each calendar day on which such individual was required or permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without payment of the overtime wages required by the clause set forth in 29 CFR 5.5(b)(1).
- 3. Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages
- i. Withholding process The U.S Department of Housing and Urban Development or the recipient of Federal assistance may, upon its own action, or must, upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor, withhold or cause to be withheld from the contractor so much of the accrued payments or advances as may be considered necessary to satisfy the liabilities of the prime contractor or any subcontractor for any unpaid wages; monetary relief, including interest; and liquidated damages required by the clauses set forth in 29 CFR 5.5(b) on this contract, any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other federally assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act that is held by the same prime contractor (as defined in 29 CFR 5.2). The necessary funds may be withheld from the contractor under this contract, any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other federally assisted contract that is subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act and is held by the same prime contractor, regardless of whether the other contract was awarded or assisted by the same agency, and such funds may be used to satisfy the contractor liability for which the funds were withheld.
 - ii Priority to withheld funds The Department has priority to funds withheld or to be withheld in accordance with 29 CFR 5.5(a)(2)(i) or (b)(3)(i), or both, over claims to those funds by:
 - **A.** A contractor's surety(ies), including without limitation performance bond sureties and payment bond sureties;
 - **B.** A contracting agency for its reprocurement costs;
 - **C.** A trustee(s) (either a court-appointed trustee or a U.S. trustee, or both) in bankruptcy of a contractor, or a contractor's bankruptcy estate;
 - **D.** A contractor's assignee(s);
 - **E.** A contractor's successor(s); or
 - F. A claim asserted under the Prompt Payment Act, 31 U.S.C. 3901-3907.
- **4. Subcontracts**. The contractor or subcontractor must insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in 29 CFR 5.5(b)(1) through (5) and a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor is responsible for compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with the clauses set forth in 29 CFR 5.5(b)(1) through (5). In the event of any violations of these clauses, the prime contractor and any subcontractor(s) responsible will be liable for any unpaid wages and monetary relief, including interest from the date of the underpayment or loss,

- due to any workers of lower-tier subcontractors, and associated liquidated damages and may be subject to debarment, as appropriate.
- 5 Anti-retaliation It is unlawful for any person to discharge, demote, intimidate, threaten, restrain, coerce, blacklist, harass, or in any other manner discriminate against, or to cause any person to discharge, demote, intimidate, threaten, restrain, coerce, blacklist, harass, or in any other manner discriminate against, any worker or job applicant for:
 - i. Notifying any contractor of any conduct which the worker reasonably believes constitutes a violation of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (CWHSSA) or its implementing regulations in 29 CFR part 5;
 - **ii.** Filing any complaint, initiating or causing to be initiated any proceeding, or otherwise asserting or seeking to assert on behalf of themselves or others any right or protection under CWHSSA or 29 CFR part 5;
 - **iii.** Cooperating in any investigation or other compliance action, or testifying in any proceeding under CWHSSA or 29 CFR part 5; or
 - iv. Informing any other person about their rights under CWHSSA or 29 CFR part 5.
- C. CWHSSA required records clause In addition to the clauses contained in 29 CFR 5.5(b), in any contract subject only to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act and not to any of the other laws referenced by 29 CFR 5.1, the Agency Head must cause or require the contracting officer to insert a clause requiring that the contractor or subcontractor must maintain regular payrolls and other basic records during the course of the work and must preserve them for a period of 3 years after all the work on the prime contract is completed for all laborers and mechanics, including guards and watchpersons, working on the contract. Such records must contain the name; last known address, telephone number, and email address; and social security number of each such worker; each worker's correct classification(s) of work actually performed; hourly rates of wages paid; daily and weekly number of hours actually worked; deductions made and actual wages paid. Further, the Agency Head must cause or require the contracting officer to insert in any such contract a clause providing that the records to be maintained under this paragraph must be made available by the contractor or subcontractor for inspection, copying, or transcription by authorized representatives of the (write the name of agency) and the Department of Labor, and the contractor or subcontractor will permit such representatives to interview workers during working hours on the job.
- D. Incorporation of contract clauses and wage determinations by reference Although agencies are required to insert the contract clauses set forth in this section, along with appropriate wage determinations, in full into covered contracts, and contractors and subcontractors are required to insert them in any lower-tier subcontracts, the incorporation by reference of the required contract clauses and appropriate wage determinations will be given the same force and effect as if they were inserted in full text.
- E. Incorporation by operation of law The contract clauses set forth in this section (or their equivalent under the Federal Acquisition Regulation), along with the correct wage determinations, will be considered to be a part of every prime contract required by the applicable statutes referenced by 29 CFR 5.1 to include such clauses, and will be effective by operation of law, whether or not they are included or incorporated by reference into such contract, unless the Administrator grants a variance, tolerance, or exemption from the application of this paragraph. Where the clauses and applicable wage determinations are effective by operation of law under this paragraph, the prime contractor must be compensated for any resulting increase in wages in accordance with applicable law.

F. HEALTH AND SAFETY

The provisions of this paragraph (F) are applicable where the amount of the prime contract exceeds **\$100,000**.

- 1. No laborer or mechanic shall be required to work in surroundings or under working conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous, or dangerous to his or her health and safety, as determined under construction safety and health standards promulgated by the Secretary of Labor by regulation.
- 2. The contractor shall comply with all regulations issued by the Secretary of Labor pursuant to 29 CFR Part 1926 and failure to comply may result in imposition of sanctions pursuant to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, (Public Law 91-54, 83 Stat 96), 40 U.S.C. § 3701 et seq.
- **3.** The contractor shall include the provisions of this paragraph in every subcontract, so that such provisions will be binding on each subcontractor. The contractor shall take such action with respect to any subcontractor as the Secretary of Housing and Urban Development or the Secretary of Labor shall direct as a means of enforcing such provisions.

DOCUMENT 00820

Davis-Bacon Wage Determination

(Prevailing Wage Rate)

General Decision Number: FL20240047 01/05/2024 FL90 Superseded General Decision Number: FL20230047

State: Florida

Construction Type: Residential County: Putnam County in Florida.

RESIDENTIAL CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS (consisting of single-family homes and apartments up to and including 4 stories).

Note: Contracts subject to the Davis-Bacon Act are generally required to pay at least the applicable minimum wage rate required under Executive Order 14026 or Executive Order 13658. Please note that these Executive Orders apply to covered contracts entered into by the federal government that are subject to the Davis-Bacon Act itself, but do not apply to contracts subject only to the Davis-Bacon Related Acts, including those set forth at 29 CFR 5.1(a)(1).

If the contract is entered into on or before or after January 30, 2022, or the contract is renewed or extended (e.g., an option is exercised) on or after January 30, 2022: Executive Order 14026 generally applies to the contract. The contractor must pay all covered workers at least \$17.20 per hour (or the applicable wage rate listed on this wage determination, if it is higher) for all hours spent performing on the contract in 2024.

If the contract was awarded on or between January 1, 2015 and January 29, 2022, and the contract is not renewed or extended on or after January 30, 2022: Executive Order 13658 generally applies to the contract. The contractor must pay all covered workers at least \$12.90 per hour (or the applicable wage rate listed on this wage determination, if it is higher) for all hours spent performing on that contract in 2024.

The applicable Executive Order minimum wage rate will be adjusted annually. If this contract is covered by one of the Executive Orders and a classification considered necessary for performance of work on the contract does not appear on this wage determination, the contractor must still submit a conformance request.

Additional information on contractor requirements and worker protections under the Executive Orders is available at www.dol.gov/whd/govcontracts.

Modification Number	Publication Date
0	01/05/2024

* PAIN0078-001 07/01/2023

	Rates	Fringes
GLAZIER	\$26.56	\$13.67
SUFL2009-086 06/08/2009		
CARPENTER, Excludes Drywall Hanging	\$13.29	0.00
CEMENT MASON/CONCRETE FINISHER	\$10.89	0.00
DRYWALL FINISHER/TAPER	\$10.00	0.00
DRYWALL HANGER	\$12.35	0.00
ELECTRICIAN	\$10.89	0.00
HVAC MECHANIC (HVAC Duct Installation Only)	\$10.30	0.00
INSULATOR: Batt and Blown	\$14.70	0.00
LABORER: Common or General	\$10.31	0.00

LABORER: Mason Tender - Cement/Concrete\$9.00	0.00
LABORER: Pipelayer\$14.19	0.00
OPERATOR: Backhoe\$13.92	0.00
OPERATOR: Loader\$12.00	0.00
PAINTER, Includes Brush, Roller and Spray (Excludes Drywall Finishing/Taping)\$10.35	0.00
PLUMBER\$13.00	0.00
ROOFER, Includes Built Up, and Shake & Shingle Roofs\$11.64	0.00
TRUCK DRIVER\$10.00	0.00
WELDERS - Receive rate prescribed for craft performing operation to which welding is incidental.	

Note: Executive Order (EO) 13706, Establishing Paid Sick Leave for Federal Contractors applies to all contracts subject to the Davis-Bacon Act for which the contract is awarded (and any solicitation was issued) on or after January 1, 2017. If this contract is covered by the EO, the contractor must provide employees with 1 hour of paid sick leave for every 30 hours they work, up to 56 hours of paid sick leave each year. Employees must be permitted to use paid sick leave for their own illness, injury or other health-related needs, including preventive care; to assist a family member (or person who is like family to the employee) who is ill, injured, or has other health-related needs, including preventive care; or for reasons resulting from, or to assist a family member (or person who is like family to the employee) who is a victim of, domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking. Additional information on contractor requirements and worker protections under the EO is available at www.dol.gov/whd/govcontracts.

Unlisted classifications needed for work not included within the scope of the classifications listed may be added after award only as provided in the labor standards contract clauses (29CFR 5.5 (a) (1) (iii)).

The body of each wage determination lists the classification and wage rates that have been found to be prevailing for the cited type(s) of construction in the area covered by the wage determination. The classifications are listed in alphabetical order of "identifiers" that indicate whether the particular rate is a union rate (current union negotiated rate for local), a survey rate (weighted average rate) or a union average rate (weighted union average rate).

Union Rate Identifiers

A four-letter classification abbreviation identifier enclosed in dotted lines beginning with characters other than "SU" or "UAVG" denotes that the union classification and rate were prevailing for that classification in the survey. Example: PLUM0198-005 07/01/2014. PLUM is an abbreviation identifier of the union which prevailed in the survey for this classification, which in this example would be Plumbers. 0198 indicates the local union number or district council number where applicable, i.e., Plumbers Local 0198. The next number, 005 in the example, is an internal number used in processing the wage determination. 07/01/2014 is the effective date of the most current negotiated rate, which in this example is July 1, 2014.

Union prevailing wage rates are updated to reflect all rate changes in the collective bargaining agreement (CBA) governing this classification and rate.

Survey Rate Identifiers

Classifications listed under the "SU" identifier indicate that no one rate prevailed for this classification in the survey and the published rate is derived by computing a weighted average rate based on all the rates reported in the survey for that classification. As this weighted average rate includes all rates reported in the survey, it may include both union and non-union rates. Example: SULA2012-007 5/13/2014. SU indicates the rates are survey rates based on a weighted average calculation of rates and are not majority rates. LA indicates the State of Louisiana. 2012 is the year of survey on which these classifications and rates are based. The next number, 007 in the example, is an internal number used in producing the wage determination. 5/13/2014 indicates the survey completion date for the classifications and rates under that identifier.

Survey wage rates are not updated and remain in effect until a new survey is conducted.

Union Average Rate Identifiers

Classification(s) listed under the UAVG identifier indicate that no single majority rate prevailed for those classifications; however, 100% of the data reported for the classifications was union data. EXAMPLE: UAVG-OH-0010 08/29/2014. UAVG indicates that the rate is a weighted union average rate. OH indicates the state. The next number, 0010 in the example, is an internal number used in producing the wage determination. 08/29/2014 indicates the survey completion date for the classifications and rates under that identifier.

A UAVG rate will be updated once a year, usually in January of each year, to reflect a weighted average of the current negotiated/CBA rate of the union locals from which the rate is based.

WAGE DETERMINATION APPEALS PROCESS

- 1.) Has there been an initial decision in the matter? This can be:
- * an existing published wage determination
- * a survey underlying a wage determination
- * a Wage and Hour Division letter setting forth a position on
- * a wage determination matter
- * a conformance (additional classification and rate) ruling

On survey related matters, initial contact, including requests for summaries of surveys, should be with the Wage and Hour Regional Office for the area in which the survey was conducted because those Regional Offices have responsibility for the Davis-Bacon survey program. If the response from this initial contact is not satisfactory, then the process described in 2.) and 3.) should be followed.

With regard to any other matter not yet ripe for the formal process described here, initial contact should be with the Branch of Construction Wage Determinations. Write to:

Branch of Construction Wage Determinations Wage and Hour Division U.S. Department of Labor 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. Washington, DC 20210

2.) If the answer to the question in 1.) is yes, then an interested party (those affected by the action) can request review and reconsideration from the Wage and Hour Administrator (See 29 CFR Part 1.8 and 29 CFR Part 7). Write to:

Wage and Hour Administrator U.S. Department of Labor 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. Washington, DC 20210

The request should be accompanied by a full statement of the interested party's position and by any information (wage payment data, project description, area practice material, etc.) that the requestor considers relevant to the issue.

3.) If the decision of the Administrator is not favorable, an interested party may appeal directly to the Administrative Review Board (formerly the Wage Appeals Board). Write to:

Administrative Review Board U.S. Department of Labor 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. Washington, DC 20210

4.) All decisions by the Administrative Review Board are final.

END OF GENERAL DECISION

US Department of Housing and Urban Development

Office of Housing/Federal Housing Commissioner

US Department of Agriculture

Farmers Home Administration

Part I to be completed by Controlling Participant(s) of Covered Projects For		For HUD HQ/FmHA use only			
(See instructions)					
Reason for submission:					
1. Agency name and City where the application is filed		2. Project Name, Project Number, City and Zip Code			
3. Loan or Contract amount \$	4. Number of Units or Beds	5. Section of Act 6. Type of Project			
				☐ Existing	☐ Rehabilitation ☐ Proposed (New)
List all proposed Controlling Participant	ts and attach complete organization chart t	for all orga	nizations showing ow	nership %	
Name and address (Last, First, Middle Initial) of con	trolling participant(s) proposing to participate		8 Role of Each Principa	l in Project	9. SSN or IRS Employer Number (TIN)
	<u> </u>			·	

- 1. Schedule A contains a listing, for the last ten years, of every project assisted or insured by HUD, USDA FmHA and/or State and local government housing finance agencies in which the controlling participant(s) have participated or are now participating.
- 2. For the period beginning 10 years prior to the date of this certification, and except as shown on the certification:
- a. No mortgage on a project listed has ever been in default, assigned to the Government or foreclosed, nor has it received mortgage relief from the mortgagee;
- b. The controlling participants have no defaults or noncompliance under any Conventional Contract or Turnkey Contract of Sale in connection with a public housing project;
- c. There are no known unresolved findings as a result of HUD audits, management reviews or other Governmental investigations concerning the controlling participants or their projects;
- d. There has not been a suspension or termination of payments under any HUD assistance contract due to the controlling participant's fault or negligence;
- e. The controlling participants have not been convicted of a felony and are not presently the subject of a complaint or indictment charging a felony. (A felony is defined as any offense punishable by imprisonment for a term exceeding one year, but does not include any offense classified as a misdemeanor under the laws of a State and punishable by imprisonment of two years or less);
- f. The controlling participants have not been suspended, debarred or otherwise restricted by any Department or Agency of the Federal Government or of a State Government from doing business with such Department or Agency;
- g. The controlling participants have not defaulted on an obligation covered by a surety or performance bond and have not been the subject of a claim under an employee fidelity bond;
- 3. All the names of the controlling participants who propose to participate in this project are listed above.
- 4. None of the controlling participants is a HUD/FmHA employee or a member of a HUD/FmHA employee's immediate household as defined in Standards of Ethical Conduct for Employees of the Executive Branch in 5 C.F.R. Part 2635 (57 FR 35006) and HUD's Standard of Conduct in 24 C.F.R. Part 0 Subpart B.
- 5. None of the controlling participants is a participant in an assisted or insured project as of this date on which construction has stopped for a period in excess of 20 days or which has been substantially completed for more than 90 days and documents for closing, including final cost certification, have not been filled with HUD or FmHA.
- 6. None of the controlling participants have been found by HUD or FmHA to be in noncompliance with any applicable fair housing and civil rights requirements in 24 CFR 5.105(a). (If any controlling participants have been found to be in noncompliance with any requirements, attach a signed statement explaining the relevant facts, circumstances, and resolution, if any).
- 7. None of the controlling participants is a Member of Congress or a Resident Commissioner nor otherwise prohibited or limited by law from contracting with the Government of the United States of America.
- 8.Statements above (if any) to which the controlling participant(s) cannot certify have been deleted by striking through the words with a pen, and the controlling participant(s) have initialed each deletion (if any) and have attached a true and accurate signed statement (if applicable) to explain the facts and circumstances.

I/We, the undersigned, certify under penalty of perjury that the information provided above is true and correct. WARNING: Anyone who knowingly submits a false claim or makes a false statement is subject to criminal and/or civil penalties, including confinement for up to 5 years, fines, and civil and administrative penalties. (18 U.S.C. §§ 287, 1001, 1010, 1012, 1014; 31 U.S.C. §3729, 3802).

Name of Controlling Participant	Signature of Controlling Participant	Certification Date (mm/dd/yyyy)	Area Code and Tel. No.
This form prepared by (print name)	Area C	ode and Tel. No.	

SECTION 01005

ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.1 REQUIREMENTS INCLUDED

- A. Work covered by Contract Documents.
- B. Contract method.
- C. Alternates.
- D. Applications for payment and close out.
- E. Coordination.
- F. Progress Cleaning.

1.2 WORK COVERED BY CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

A. The Contract Documents were prepared to reflect work for this Project.

1.3 CONTRACT METHOD

A. Work to be constructed by the Contractor will be contracted under lump sum Contracts.

1.4 APPLICATIONS FOR PAYMENT

A. Contractor shall be required to submit his own applications for payment and closeout material in accordance with Sections 01019 and 01701.

1.5 COORDINATION

- A. Contractor shall be required to coordinate the Work of his own trade to special and functional requirements in accordance with Section 01040.
- B. The Owner's Modernization Officer will coordinate scheduling and interrelation between Work of Contractor and that by PHA's forces, if any.

1.6 PROGRESS CLEANING

A. Contractor shall be responsible for progress cleaning behind his own forces in accordance with Section 01500.

END OF SECTION

SUMMARY OF WORK

PART 1 - GENERAL

- 1.1 SECTION INCLUDES
 - A. Work Covered by Contract Documents.
 - 1. Reroofing at Northside Homes.
 - B. Work by PHA.
 - 1. None
 - C. PHA-Furnished Items.
 - 1. None
 - D. Contractor use of site.
 - 1. A site area for staging and storage will be provided by the Owner. This area will be determined at the Pre-Construction Meeting.
 - E. Work Sequence and Scheduling.
 - 1. Contractor shall schedule all work in advance with PHA.
 - F. PHA Occupancy.
 - 1. Residential units will remain occupied during this project.
 - G. Partial PHA Occupancy.
 - Units occupied shall remain occupied during all phases of this project.

1.2 WORK COVERED BY CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

- A. Work of this Contract comprises the replacement of roofing systems at the Madison Court, Lemon Heights, and Westover Manor Communities located in Palatka, Florida, for the Palatka Housing Authority (PHA). The Work includes:
 - 1. Items broadly identified in the Bid Form Section 00310.
 - 2. Refer to Project Manual of the Specifications for specific details.
 - 3. Drawings
- 1.3 WORK BY PHA: None
- 1.4 PHA-FURNISHED ITEMS: None
- 1.5 CONTRACTOR USE OF SITE
 - A. Limit use of site to allow:
 - 1. PHA occupancy.
 - 2. Work by Others and work by PHA.
 - 3. Use of site by tenants.
 - 4. Emergency traffic throughout the Project.
 - B. Coordinate access and use of premises under direction of PHA's Modernization Officer.
 - Obtain and pay for use of additional storage and work areas needed for operations under this Contract.
- 1.6 WORK SEQUENCE AND SCHEDULING
 - A. Construct Work in stages to accommodate PHA's occupancy requirements during the construction period, coordinate construction schedule and operations with PHA:
 - 1. Stage construction with PHA approval so Work will be completed and accepted by the PHA for occupancy.

1.7 PHA OCCUPANCY

- A. With the exception of any vacated dwellings, the PHA will occupy site dwelling units during the entire construction period. Coordinate scheduling of operations with PHA to minimize conflict and to allow PHA usage.
 - 1. Coordinate with the PHA interruption of utility service to the existing facilities.
 - 2. The Contractor will be held responsible for damage resulting from a lack of Coordination.

1.8 PARTIAL PHA OCCUPANCY

- A. Schedule with PHA and substantially complete appointed portions of Work for PHA's occupancy.
- B. Immediately after completion of work on any building, PHA and HUD representatives, Architect, and Contractor will jointly examine the work completed. The Architect will document the condition to itemize the Contractor's remaining obligation to those areas.
- C. Unless otherwise agreed upon, partial occupancy or use of a portion or portions of the Work shall not constitute acceptance of Work not meeting requirements of the Contract Documents. Contractor shall allow:
 - 1. Access for residents.
 - 2. Use of parking facilities.

CONTRACT CONSIDERATIONS

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.1 SECTION INCLUDES:

- A. Schedule of Amounts for Contract Payments.
- B. Periodical Estimate for Partial Payments.
- C. Subcontractors.
- D. Change Procedures.
- E. Insurance Requirements.
- F. Prevailing Wage Rates.
- G. Affirmative Action Program.

1.2 RELATED SECTIONS

- A. Document 00510 Form of Contract: Contract Price.
- B. Document 00700 General Conditions:
- C. Document 00700 General Conditions: Requirement for Worker's Compensation, Commercial General Liability, Automobile Liability, and Builder's Risk Insurance.
- D. Section 01200 Project Meetings: Job Visitor's Log.
- E. Section 01300 Submittals: Construction Photographs.
- F. Section 01600 Material and Equipment: Product substitutions.

1.3 SCHEDULE OF AMOUNTS FOR CONTRACT PAYMENTS

- A. Submit typed schedule on HUD Forms 51000 (2 pages) and 51001 (2 pages) -Schedule of Amounts for Contract Payments and Periodic Estimate for Partial Payment. Computer generated simulation, bearing the required original signatures, in a corresponding format against which no exception is taken by the Architect and which is acceptable to the PHA and HUD, may be substituted for the above forms.
- B. Submit three copies of Schedule of Amounts for Contract Payments, each copy bearing original signature, within 15 days after date established in Notice to Proceed and at least 7 working days before submission first Periodical Estimate for Partial Payment.
- C. Format: Contractor may use divisions of work appropriate to the scope of the Project, with the concurrence of the Architect, instead of Master List of Items on HUD Form 51000a. Site mobilization, bonds, insurance, and punch list may be listed separately.
- D. Include within each line item, a directly proportional amount of contractor's overhead and profit.

1.4 PERIODICAL ESTIMATE FOR PARTIAL PAYMENT

A. Submit to Architect three copies, each copy bearing original signatures, of each estimate on HUD Form 51001 - Periodical Estimate for Partial Payment. Divide the required forms and attachments comprising the complete Periodical Estimate for Partial Payment into three distinct submittal packages, individually secured by staples or clips. Additionally submit one complete copy to Clerk-of-the-Works simultaneously with submittal to Architect.

- B. Content and Format: Use Schedule of Amounts for Contract Payments for listing items in Periodical Estimate for Partial Payment. Payments will be allowed for completed line items only if they bear an identifiable relationship to the description and unit of measure breakdown on the PHA approved Schedule of Amounts for Contract payments, e.g., rough-in must be separately listed on the Schedule of Amounts for Contract payments if payment is desired before work item is completely finished. List on Periodical Estimate for Partial Payment columns clearly showing item number, description, unit price, and total quantity for each line item from Schedule of Amounts for Contract Payments, as well as amount of Work completed to date and extended amount due.
- C. Materials Stored on Site: Include, with each copy of estimate, HUD Form No. 51003 Schedule of Materials Stored and HUD Form No. 51004 Summary of Materials Stored. Reference attached invoices by invoice number next to each item listed on the Schedule of Materials Stored. An insurance certificate for the value of the materials listed must be included with the initial estimate to which this is an attachment.
- D. Materials Stored Off-Site: Under the provisions of this Contract, no compensation will be made to the Contractor for materials stored off-site.
- E. Documentation: Include, with each copy of estimate, copies of materials invoices for materials stored to substantiate the request for partial payment. Invoices must be legible and bear signature showing material was received to be honored. Delete any materials listed in invoices which is not for this Contract. Reference line-item number listed on the Schedule of Materials Stored by clearly marking on each invoice. As work progresses, organize documentation to show plainly the additions to materials stored and deletion for materials used for work in place, and clearly correlate to work in place occurring since preceding estimate. Do not mark up invoices for this purpose but attach a separate sheet clearly showing the additions to and deletions from materials stored.
- F. Change Orders: Include, with each copy of estimate, HUD Form 51002 Schedule of Change Orders showing all changes to the Contract Price accepted by the PHA at the date of submittal.
- G. Construction Progress Schedule: Include, with each copy of estimate, HUD Form 5372 Construction Progress Schedule, and also a bar chart, updated to show the relationship between actual and anticipated progress.
- H. Computer generated simulation, bearing the required original signatures, in a corresponding format against which no exception is taken by the Architect and which is acceptable to the PHA and HUD, may be substituted for the above forms. Facsimile or electronic transmission of this material is not permitted.
- I. Job Visitor's Log: Include with submittal of each Periodical Estimate for Partial Payment five copies of Visitor's Log for the period covered by this estimate.
- J. Include Contractor's Certification that all invoices from subcontractors and material suppliers represented in Periodical Estimate for partial payment will be paid within five working days of Contractor's receipt of payment.
- K. Payment Period: As set forth in Document 00700.
- L. Payment Processing: Each Periodical Estimate for Partial Payment must be received by the Architect no later than the last day of each month. The omission if any required attachments; the failure to clearly organize, cross-reference, and correlate submittal; or other nonconformance with the requirements of this Article may delay processing or cause Periodical Estimate for partial Payment to be returned without review. If the Contractor requests payment for items which have not been acceptably completed, those items will be deleted, and the payment adjusted accordingly. Payment may be withheld if Contractor has not submitted all required reports, such as payroll reports, to the PHA.

1.5 SUBCONTRACTORS

- A. All Contracts between the Contractor and subcontractors shall contain the equal opportunity employment requirements and the prevailing wage rate requirements.
- B. The Contractor is responsible for determining that potential subcontractors and suppliers are not on the HUD Consolidated List of Debarred, Suspended or Ineligible Contractors and Grantees under

- provisions of Document 00700. Submittal of HUD Form 5371, Request for Acceptance of subcontractor, is not required.
- C. Before a particular subcontractor begins work on this Project, his required insurance certificates must be received by the Architect and by PHA.

1.6 CHANGE PROCEDURES

- A. The Architect will advise of minor changes in the work not involving an adjustment to the Contract Price or Contract Time as authorized by Document 00700, by issuing Field Orders. Should the Contractor consider any such change to involve the need for adjustment to the Contract Price or to the Contract Time, he shall inform the Architect before proceeding with that change.
- B. The Architect may issue a Proposal Request which includes a detailed description of a proposed change with supplementary or revised drawings and Specifications, a change in Contract Time for executing the change, with a stipulation of any overtime work required. Contractor will prepare and submit under provisions of Document 00700.
- C. The Contractor may propose a change by submitting a request for change to the Architect, describing the proposed change and its full effect on the work. Include a statement describing the reason for the change and the effect on the Contract Price and Contract Time with full documentation, and a statement describing the effect on work by separate or other contractors where applicable. Document any requested substitutions as described in Section 01600. Submit requests for substitutions under provisions of Section 01300. Proposal request initiated by the Contractor may not be on a preprinted "Change Order" form, nor include a place for authorizing signature.
- D. Stipulated Price Change Order: Based on Proposal Request and Contractor's fixed price quotation or Contractor's request for a Change Order, as prepared by the Architect into the form of a Change Order, and as approved by the PHA and HUD. Any work related to a pending Stipulated Price Change Order before receipt by the Contractor of a fully executed copy is at his own risk.
- E. Direct Cost Change Order: For predetermined unit cost and quantities, the Change Order will be executed in a fixed price basis and a Stipulated Price Change Order executed. For quantities of units of work which are not predetermined, changes in Contract Price or Contract Time will be computed based in submittal of an itemized account and supporting data to establish direct cost prices by occurrence before undertaking changes. The Contracting Officer will determine the change allowable in the Contract documents and authorize the Contractor to proceed based on incorporating the work in a Change Order at such time as the quantities are known. Any work related to a pending Direct Cost Change Order before receipt by the Contracting Officer is at his own risk.
- F. Execution of Change Orders: Architect will issue Change Orders for signatures of parties as provided in the Conditions of the Contract.

1.7 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

- A. The following Subparagraphs amend the last sentence of Section 36, Insurance, Part b, Section 00700 General Conditions of the Contract for Construction Public Housing Program, HUD, 5370 (4/02).
 - 1. The two parts of the provision (minimal modernization work and the ability to endorse existing fire and extended coverage insurance) would have to be met before the exemption to purchasing Builder's Risk Insurance would apply.
 - 2. The criteria for determining which modernization activities would <u>not</u> involve structural alterations shall be, whether such activities cause any modifications, whatsoever, to the structure/fabric of the housing unit.
 - 3. The criteria for determining the viability of endorsing a PHA's existing fire and extended coverage to include Builder's Risk Insurance for limited modernization work, shall be whether such endorsement could be accomplished at no additional cost to the PHA.
 - 4. Where the modernization work is insured under the PHA's existing policy, the PHA will notify the Contractor of this coverage.
 - 5. If the existing policy cannot be endorsed to include the modernization activities, the Contractor shall obtain a Builder's Risk Policy on a "100% Completed Value". This policy shall remain in effect through substantial completion of the modernization work, at which time the coverage will be transferred to the PHA's existing policy.
- B. The following Subparagraph extends requirements of Section 36, Insurance, Part c, Section 00700 General Conditions of the Contract for Construction Public Housing Program, HUD 5370 (4/02).

- 1. The PHA will monitor the insurance policies obtained by the Contractor and all subcontractors to ensure that coverage required by the Contract is kept in force until the Contractor's work is accepted by the PHA. The PHA will notify the Contractor to stop work if the required insurance coverage is not in force at the time the work begins or if the coverage expires before the work is accepted. The PHA also will notify the Contractor that any such work stoppage is an infraction of the Contract and that the Contractor is liable for any losses or delays.
- C. The following Subparagraphs amend and extend Insurance, Section 00700 General Conditions of the Contract for Construction Public Housing Program, HUD 5370 (4/02).
 - 1. Workers Compensation: Coverage to apply for all employees for statutory limits in compliance with the applicable state and federal laws. The policy must include employers' liability with a limit of \$100,000 each accident, \$100,000 bodily injury by disease each employee and \$500,000 bodily injury by disease policy limit.
 - 2. Comprehensive General Liability: Shall have minimum limits of \$2,000,000 per occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury liability and property damage liability. This shall include premises and/or operations, independent contractors, products and/or completed operations, broad form property damage, extended coverage umbrella (XCU) coverage, and contractual liability endorsement.
 - 3. Business Auto Policy: Shall have minimum limits of \$1,000,000 per occurrence combined single limit from bodily injury liability. This shall include: owned vehicles, hired and non-owned vehicles, and employee non-ownership.
 - 4. The PHA is to be included as an additional insured on both the comprehensive general liability and business auto liability policies.
 - 5. Current, valid insurance policies meeting the requirements herein identified shall be maintenance during the duration of the Project. Renewal certificates shall be sent to the PHA 30 days prior to any expiration date. There shall also be a 30-day notification to the PHA in the event of a cancellation or modification of any stipulated insurance coverage. Certificate of insurance meeting the required insurance provisions shall be forwarded to the PHA. Wording on the certificate which states that no liability shall be imposed on the company for failure to provide such notice is not acceptable.
 - 6. It shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to ensure that all subcontractors comply with the same insurance requirements that he is required to meet.

1.8 PREVAILING WAGE RATES

- A. Any prevailing wage rate (including basic hourly rate and any fringe benefits) determined under State law to be prevailing with respect to an employee in any trade or portion under the Contract is inapplicable to the Contract and shall not be enforced against the Contractor or any subcontractor with respect to employees engaged under the Contract whenever either of the following occurs:
 - 1. Such nonfederal prevailing wage rate exceeds: (A) The applicable wage rate determined by the Secretary of Labor pursuant to the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 276a et seq.) to be prevailing in the locality with respect to such trade; (B) an applicable apprentice wage rate based thereon specified in an apprenticeship program registered with the Department of Labor or a DOL-recognized State Apprenticeship Agency or (C) an applicable trainee wage rate based thereon specified in a DOL-certified trainee program; or
 - 2. Such nonfederal prevailing wage rate, exclusive of any fringe benefits, exceeds the applicable wage rate determined by the Secretary of HUD to be prevailing in the locality with respect to such trade or program.

1.9 AFFIRMATIVE ACTION PROGRAM

- A. Under Executive Order 11246, as amended, Contractor is advised that construction-related contractors with contracts over \$10,000.00 are to document affirmative actions taken to assure equal opportunity in employment. This documentation is subject to review by the Regional Office of the Department of Labor. All modernization contractors and subcontractors are required to take affirmative action to comply with the equal employment opportunity provisions of Executive Order 11426, as amended.
- B. Submit, when requested by the PHA, contractor's affirmative action policy and report on minority and women's or Indian enterprise participation to date on the project in both the Contractor's employ and among subcontractor forces.

COORDINATION

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.1 SECTION INCLUDES

A. Coordination of work of the Contract.

1.2 RELATED SECTIONS

- A. Document 00700 General Conditions: Contractor's Responsibility for Field Verifications.
- B. Section 01010 Summary of Work: Sequence of Construction.
- C. Section 01041 Project Coordination: Coordination
- D. Section 01045 Cutting and Patching.
- E. Section 01060 Regulatory Requirements: Applicable Code Requirements, Including Electrical and Mechanical Codes.
- F. Section 01200 Project Meetings.
- G. Section 01600 Material and Equipment: Product Options and Substitutions.
- H. Section 01701 Contract Closeout Procedures: Closeout Submittals.

1.3 DESCRIPTION

A. Coordinate scheduling, submittals, and work of the various Sections of Specifications to assure efficient and orderly sequence of installation of construction elements, with provisions for accommodating items to be installed later.

1.4 MEETINGS

A. In addition to Progress Meetings specified in Section 01200, hold coordination meetings and Pre-Installation Conferences with personnel and subcontractors to assure coordination of the work.

1.5 COORDINATION OF SUBMITTALS

- A. Schedule and coordinate submittals specified in Section 01300.
- B. Coordinate work of various sections having interdependent responsibilities for installing, connecting to, and placing in service, such equipment.
- C. Coordinate requests for substitutions to assure compatibility of space, of operating elements, and affect on work of others.

1.6 COORDINATION OF EQUIPMENT AND SPACE

- A. Verify the dimensions and quantities indicated on the drawings and in the Specifications under the provisions of Document 00700. Notify Architect of apparent discrepancies under the provisions of Document 00700, Article 19. The drawings are diagrammatically representational and not intended to be scaled where drawn at less than 1/4 full size (3'' = 1' 0'').
- B. Verify that utility requirements of operating equipment are compatible with building utilities.

 Coordinate work of various sections having interdependent responsibilities for installing, connecting to, and placing such equipment.

- C. Coordinate space requirements and installation of mechanical and electrical work which are shown diagrammatically on drawings. Follow routing shown from pipes, ducts, and conduits as closely as practicable; place runs parallel with lines of building. Install to maximize space for other installations, for maintenance, for repairs, and to provide required clearances to conform to referenced mechanical and electrical codes.
- D. In finished areas, except where otherwise shown, conceal new pipes, ducts, and wiring within the construction. Coordinate locations of fixtures and outlets with finish elements.

1.7 COORDINATION OF CONTRACT CLOSEOUT

- A. Coordinate completion and cleanup of work of separate Sections in preparation for Substantial Completion of portions of work identified for PHA partial occupancy specified in Section 01010.
- B. After PHA occupancy of premises, coordinate access to site for correction of defective work and work not conforming to Contract Documents, to minimize disruption of PHA's activities.
- C. Assemble and coordinate closeout submittals specified in Section 01701.

PROJECT COORDINATION

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.1 SECTION INCLUDES

- A. Project coordination.
- B. Construction mobilization.
- C. Schedules.
- D. Submittals.
- E. Coordination Drawings.
- F. Closeout procedures.

1.2 RELATED SECTIONS

- A. Section 01010 Summary of Work: Work sequence.
- B. Section 01200 Project Meetings.
- C. Section 01701 Contract Closeout: Contract Closeout Procedures.

1.3 PROJECT COORDINATION

A. Project Coordination Modernization Officer: PHA Director of Maintenance Cleveland Hobbs, Telephone 386.329.0132, ext. 222.

1.4 CONSTRUCTION MOBILIZATION

- A. Cooperate with the Modernization Officer in allocation of mobilization areas of site, for field offices and sheds, for unit access, traffic, and parking facilities.
- B. During construction, coordinate use of site and facilities through Modernization Officer.
- C. Comply with Architect's procedures for intra-project communications; submittals, reports and records, schedules, coordination drawings, and recommendations; and resolution of ambiguities and conflicts.
- D. Comply with instructions of the Modernization Officer's for use of temporary utilities and construction facilities.
- E. Coordinate field engineering and layout work under instructions of the Architect.

1.5 SCHEDULES

- A. Submit preliminary progress schedule (in accordance with Section 01300) coordinated with Project construction schedule.
- B. After review, revise and resubmit schedule to comply with revised Project schedule.
- C. During progress of work, revise and resubmit (as directed) with Applications for Payment.

1.6 SUBMITTALS

- A. Submit product data and samples in accordance with Section 01300 for review and compliance with Contract Documents, for field dimensions and clearances, for relation to available space, and for relation to work of separate contracts. Revise and resubmit as required.
- B. Submit applications for payment to Architect.

- C. Submit requests for interpretations of Contract Documents and obtain instructions through Architect.
- D. Process requests for substitutions and change orders through Architect.
- E. Deliver closeout submittals for review to Architect.

1.7 CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS

- A. Provide information required by Architect for preparation of coordination drawings.
- B. Review drawings prior to submission to Architect.

1.8 CLOSEOUT PROCEDURES

- A. Notify Architect when work is considered ready for Substantial Completion. Accompany Architect on preliminary inspection to determine items to be listed for completion or correction in Contractor's notice of Substantial Completion.
- B. Comply with Architect's instructions to correct items of work listed in executed Certificates of Substantial Completion and for access to PHA occupied areas.
- C. Notify Architect when work is considered finally complete. Accompany Architect on preliminary Final Inspection.

CUTTING AND PATCHING

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.1 SECTION INCLUDES

A. Requirements and limitations for cutting and patching of Work.

1.2 RELATED SECTIONS

- A. Section 01010 Summary of Work: Work by PHA
- B. Section 01060 Regulatory Requirements: Applicable code requirements, including mechanical and electrical codes.
- C. Section 01120 Alteration Project Procedures: Cutting and patching for alterations work.
- D. Section 01300 Submittals.
- E. Section 01600 Materials and Equipment: Product options and substitutions.
- F. Individual Project Specification Sections:
 - 1. Cutting and patching incidental to Work of the Section.
 - 2. Advance notification to other Sections of openings required in Work of those Sections.
 - 3. Limitations on cutting structural members.

1.3 SUBMITTALS

- A. Submit written request in advance of cutting or alteration which affects:
 - 1. Structural integrity of element.
 - 2. Integrity of weather exposed or moisture resistant element.
 - 3. Efficiency, maintenance, or safety of element.
 - 4. Visual qualities of sight exposed elements.
 - 5. Work of PHA or separate contractor, where applicable.
- B. Include in request:
 - 1. Identification of Project.
 - 2. Location and description of affected work.
 - 3. Necessity for cutting or alteration.
 - 4. Description of proposed work, and products to be used.
 - 5. Alternatives to cutting and patching.
 - 6. Effect on work of PHA or separate contractor, where applicable.
 - 7. Written permission of affected separate contractor, where applicable.
 - 8. Date and time work will be executed.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

2.1 MATERIALS

- A. Primary products: Those required for original installation.
- B. Product Substitution: For any proposed change in materials, submit request for substitution under provisions of Section 01600.

PART 3 - EXECUTION

3.1 EXAMINATION

- A. Inspect existing conditions before beginning work, including elements subject to damage or movement during cutting and patching.
- B. After uncovering existing work, inspect conditions affecting performance of work.

- C. Identify any dangerous concealed conditions exposed during the work to the Architect for decision and remedy.
- D. Inform Architect immediately upon cutting of concealed piping, conduit, or other utilities.
- E. Correct defects before proceeding with the work of this Section.

3.2 PREPARATION

- A. Provide temporary supports to maintain structural integrity of the work. Provide devices and methods to protect other portions of the Project from damage.
- B. Provide protection from elements for areas which may be exposed by uncovering work.
- C. Maintain excavations free of water.

3.3 CUTTING AND PATCHING

- A. Execute cutting, fitting, and patching, including excavation and fill, to complete work.
- B. Fit products together to integrate with other work.
- C. Uncover work to install ill-timed work.
- D. Remove and replace defective or non-conforming work.
- E. Remove samples of installed work for testing where specified or approved.
- F. Provide openings in the work for penetration of mechanical and electrical work.

3.4 PERFORMANCE

- A. Execute work by other methods which will avoid damage to other work and provide proper surfaces to receive patching and finishing.
- B. Where cutting and patching work installed under this contract, employ original installer to perform cutting and patching; for existing construction, use personnel qualified in the applicable trade.
- C. Cut rigid materials using proper power saw or drill.
- D. Restore work with new products to meet requirements of Contract Documents.
- E. Fit work airtight to pipes, sleeves, ducts, conduit, and other penetrations through surfaces.
- F. At penetrations of fire-rated walls, partitions, ceiling, or floor construction, completely seal voids with fire-rated, fire resistant material in accordance with Section 07270 to full thickness of penetrated element.
- G. Refinish surfaces to match adjoining finish. For continuous surfaces, refinish to nearest intersection or natural break. For an assembly, refinish entire unit.

REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

PART 1 - GENERAL

- 1.1 SECTION INCLUDES
 - A. Quality Assurance.
 - B. Schedule of regulatory requirements.
- 1.2 RELATED SECTIONS
 - A. Document 00700 General Conditions: Permits and Codes
- 1.3 QUALITY ASSURANCE
 - A. Work performed under this contract shall be accomplished in accordance with, but not limited to, the applicable sections of the codes, laws, and regulations listed. The attention of the Contractor is specifically directed to Article 25 of the General Conditions. In executing the Contract, the Contractor stipulates that he is cognizant of the requirements of the several codes, laws, and regulations applicable to the work of this Project as set forth herein.
- 1.4 SCHEDULE OF REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
 - A. Florida Building Code with local amendments.
 - B. National Fire Prevention Code.
 - C. Life Safety Code
 - D. Standard Plumbing Code with local amendments.
 - E. Standard Mechanical Code.
 - F. National Electrical Code with local amendments.
 - G. HUD Indian and Public Housing (PIH) Publication 88-27 Amended Lead Based Paint Requirements, issued September 21, 1988.
 - H. Federal Register Document 49 FR 31528 Uniform Federal Accessibility Standards, published August 7, 1984.
 - I. Architectural Barriers Act of 1968, as amended (42 USC 4151); HUD implementing Documents 24 CFR Part 8, Non-discrimination Based on Handicap, published June 2, 1988, and Part 40, Standards for Design, Construction, and Alteration of Publicly Owned Residential Structures; and PIH 89-4, Implementation of 24 CFR Part 8, Non-discrimination Based on Handicap in Federally Assisted Programs and Activities, issued January 13, 1989; Americans with Disabilities Act, 1990.
 - J. Occupational Safety and Health Act of September, 2007, with amendments.
 - K. Applicable State laws and codes.

UNIT PRICES

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.1 REQUIREMENTS

- A. Unit prices for Work described in this Section shall be used for additions and/or deletions to the Contract.
- B. The cost of this Work shall include all labor and materials, delivery to site, handling at site, protection from elements, and Contractor's overhead and profit.
- C. Unit prices shall be listed in Bid Proposal form.

1.2 SCHEDULE OF UNIT PRICES

- A. Unit Price "A"
 - 1. Removal and Replacement of deteriorated and/or damaged kitchen wall and base cabinets and countertops. Cabinets will be HUD Severe Use Cabinets and bear the KCMA Certification Seal and additional label indicating conformance to HUD Severe Use specifications. Quartz HUD countertops should be in sound and sanitary condition, free of holes, cracks, water penetration, or material deterioration. Minium counter spaces should be present in kitchens. Cabinets and countertops shall be installed in conformance with the 2023 Florida Building Code. Owner shall very and approve quantity of work to be done.

Price per Linear Foot.

- B. Unit Price "B"
 - 1. Removal and Replacement of deteriorated and/or damaged kitchen wall and base cabinets and countertops. Cabinets will be HUD Severe Use Cabinets and bear the KCMA Certification Seal and additional label indicating conformance to HUD Severe Use specifications. Quartz HUD countertops should be in sound and sanitary condition, free of holes, cracks, water penetration, or material deterioration. Minium counter spaces should be present in kitchens. Cabinets and countertops shall be installed in conformance with the 2023 Florida Building Code. Owner shall very and approve quantity of work to be done.

Price per Linear Foot.

PROJECT ADMINISTRATION

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.1 RELATED REQUIREMENTS

A. Schedule of Values: 01300

B. Shop Drawings and Submittals: 01300

C. Quality Control: 1400

D. Construction Facilities and Temporary Control: 01500

E. Material and Equipment 01600

F. Project Close-Out: 01700

1.2 PROJECT MEETING - GENERAL

A. Schedule and administer progress meetings:

- 1. Agenda items: To the maximum extent practicable, advise the Architect at least 24 hours in advance of project meetings regarding all items to be added to the agenda.
- 2. Minutes: The Contractor will compile minutes of each project meeting and will furnish three copies to the Architect. The Contractor may make and distribute such other copies as he wishes.
- B. The Architect will attend meetings to ascertain that work is expedited consistent with construction schedule and with Contract Documents.
- C. Work Included: To enable orderly review during progress of the work, and to provide for systematic discussion of problems, the Contractor will conduct project meeting throughout the construction period.
- D. Related Work Described Elsewhere: The Contractor's relations with his subcontractors and materials suppliers, and discussions relative thereto, are the Contractor's responsibility and are not part of the project meetings content.
- E. Persons designated by the Contractor to attend and participate in the project meetings shall have all required authority to commit the Contractor solutions agreed upon in the project meetings.

1.3 PRE-CONSTRUCTION MEETING

- A. A preconstruction meeting will be scheduled by the Owner within fifteen (15) days after date of written Notice to Proceed. Owner will set the date, time, and place of meeting prior to start of any construction. Authorized representatives of the Contractor, the job superintendent and major subcontractors shall attend. Purpose of the meeting will be to verify general construction procedures, expedite the handling of shop drawings and scheduling, and establish a working understanding among the parties involved in project.
- B. Minimum Agenda: Contractor shall distribute data on, and discuss:
 - 1. Organizational arrangement of Contractor's forces and personnel, and those of subcontractors, materials suppliers, and Architect.
 - 2. Channels and procedures for communications.
 - 3. Construction schedule, including sequence of critical work.
 - 4. Contract Documents, including distribution of required copies of original Documents and revisions.
 - 5. Processing of Shop Drawings and other data submitted to the Architect for review.
 - 6. Processing of field decisions and Change Orders.
 - 7. Rules and regulations governing performance of the work.
 - 8. Procedures for safety and first aid, security, quality control, housekeeping, and other related matters.

1.4 PROGRESS MEETINGS

- A. Schedule regular monthly meetings prior to submitting each Request for Payment at a time agreed upon by the Architect. Subcontractors, materials suppliers, and others may be invited to attend those project meetings in which their aspects of the work involved.
- B. Hold called meetings as progress of work dictates.
- C. Locations of Meetings: Construction office, at the job site, or other location acceptable to Architect. Indicate in notice.
- D. Minimum Agenda:
 - 1. Review, revise as necessary, and approve minute of previous meeting.
 - 2. Review progress of the work since last meeting, including status of submittals for approval.
 - 3. Identify problems which impede planned progress.
 - 4. Develop corrective measures and procedures to regain planned schedule.
 - 5. Complete other current business.

1.5 CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULES - GENERAL

- A. PHA and Contractor will jointly develop a projected construction schedules for entire work; revise periodically.
- B. Prepare schedule in form of horizontal bar chart, with horizontal bars representing project breakdown by various units of work. Superimpose on bar chart vertical lines representing months of year and weeks of each month.
- C. Minimum sheet size: As required to fit all information rendered in a legible manner on one (1) sheet.
- D. Provide complete sequence of construction by activity.
- E. Provide sub-schedules to define critical portions and housing unit address for the entire schedule.
- F. Update schedule as required. Show all changes occurring since previous submission of updated schedule.
- G. Indicate progress of each activity; show start and completion dates. Review with each update.

1.6 SUBMITTALS AND DISTRIBUTION OF SCHEDULES

- A. Submit initial schedule within fifteen (15) days after date of Notice to Proceed.
- B. Architect will review schedules and return reviewed copy within ten (10) days after receipt.
- C. If required, resubmit within seven (7) days after return of reviewed copy.
- D. Submit periodically updated schedules accurately depicting progress to first day of each month.
- E. Submit the number of copies required, plus three (3) copies to be retained by Architect.
- F. Instruct recipients to report any inability to comply, and provide detailed explanation, with suggested remedies.

1.7 PROJECT INSPECTIONS

- A. Where inspections of in-place work are specified and Architect's approval is required before further work can take place, or where records of procedures are specified, schedule inspection:
 - 1. With Architect or his designated Consultant.
 - 2. Give no less than twenty-four (24) hours notice.
 - 3. On Mondays through Thursdays between the hours of 7:30 a.m. and 5:15 p.m.
- B. Where daylight or installed project lighting at areas to be inspected is less than 30 candle power, provide this same level by artificial illumination with portable lighting.

1.8 PROJECT RECORD DOCUMENTS (PRINTS)

- A. Store record documents apart from documents used for construction.
- B. File documents in accordance with Table of Contents of Specifications.
- C. Maintain documents in clean, dry, legible condition.
- D. Do not use record documents for construction purposes.
- E. Make documents available at all times for inspection by Architect and Owner.
- F. Provide legible, indelible marking instruments for marking.
- G. Label each document "PROJECT RECORD".
- H. Specifications and Addenda: Legibly mark up each section to record:
 - 1. Manufacturer, trade name, catalog number, and supplier of each product and item of equipment actually installed.
 - 2. Changes made by Change Order or Field Order.

1.9 PROJECT PERMANENT RECORD DOCUMENTS

- A. Contractor shall mark all changes to the contract documents and upon completion of the project he shall deliver the revised record set to the Architect.
- B. Contractor shall review the revised record set for accuracy and conformity and shall transfer all revised data from the record set to the original drawings. He shall make the set of documents "As-Built" and deliver two sets of prints of same to the Palatka Housing Authority.
- C. The Palatka Housing Authority shall review the "As-Built" documents for accuracy and conformity. After which the Palatka Housing Authority shall receive from the Architect the original drawings from which reproducibles will be made for the permanent record of the Palatka Housing Authority. This permanent record printing shall be at the expense of the Palatka Housing Authority. At the completion of this permanent record printing, the original tracing shall be returned to the Architect.

SUBMITTALS

- A. Progress Schedule: Within 15 days of the date established for "commencement of the work," submit a comprehensive progress schedule indicating a time bar for each significant category of work to be performed. Arrange schedule to indicated required sequencing and to show time allowances for submittals, inspections and similar time margins.
 - 1. Submittal: Provide at least three (3) copies of the schedule to the Architect. Post in the temporary office. Revise at intervals matching payment requests and redistribute.
- B. Project Meetings: Contractor to conduct monthly progress and coordination meetings attended by representative of each entity engaged for performance of work. Contractor shall record discussions and decisions. Distribute copies to those attending and others affected, including the Architect and the Owner.
- C. Schedule of Values: Prepare a schedule of values to show breakdown of Contract Sum corresponding with payment request breakdown and progress schedule line items. Show dollar value and percent of total for each unit of work scheduled. Submit not less than 7 days prior to first payment request. Revise each time schedule is affected by change order or other revision.
- D. Payment Request: Submit a request each calendar month. Use AIA form G702, fully completed and executed. Submit at least three (3) originals.
 - 1. Prior to the initial payment request, submit the schedule of values, a list of principal subcontractors and suppliers, the progress schedule and copies of building permits and similar start-up authorization.
- E. Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples:
 - 1. General: Coordinate submittals with the progress schedule and actual work progress. Allow 2 weeks for the Architect's review. Provide additional copies as required by governing authorities. Contractor shall review all shop drawings for conformity and completeness prior to submission to the Architect. Shop drawings that are incomplete will be returned for corrections.
 - 2. Shop Drawings:
 - a. Initial Submittal: Submit a minimum of three opaque blue/black line prints and a minimum of three copies of other data required for approval. One of the submitted copies will be retained by the Architect.
 - 3. Product Data: Mark each copy to indicate the actual product to be provided; show selections from among options in the manufacturer's printed product data. Submit 2 copies to Architect, submittal if for information and record purposes only. Where the product data is required for maintenance manuals, submit additional copies, which will be returned.
 - a. Maintain one additional copy at the project site for reference purpose.
 - b. Do not proceed with the installation of manufactured products until a copy of related product data is in the installer's possession at the project site.
 - 4. Samples: Submit 3 sets of samples. Provide 3 or more samples in each set where variations in color, pattern or texture are observable; show average condition and extreme range of variations. Submit full documentation with each set. Sample submittals are for Architect's observation of color, texture, pattern and "kind". Maintain returned set at project site for purposes of quality control comparisons.
- F. Miscellaneous Submittals: Provide copies, plus additional copies as required for maintenance manual.
 - 1. Warranties: Submit 2 executed copies, and additional copies as required for maintenance manual.
 - 2. Field Records: 4 copies, including one copy that will be returned for inclusion in the submittal of record documents.
 - 3. Maintenance Manuals: Submit 2 bound copies.
 - 4. Record Drawings: Submit original maintained marked-up prints.
- G. Architect's Action:
 - 1. Stamp: The Architect will stamp each submittal to be returned with a uniform, self-explanatory action stamp, appropriately marked and executed to indicate the status of the submittal.

QUALITY CONTROL

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.1 PERFORMANCE OF WORK

A. Except where specifically required otherwise in the technical specifications the Contractor shall be responsible for all construction quality control and shall perform or coordinate all tests and inspections in accordance with Article 13.5 of the AIA General Conditions. See SECTION 01300 – SUBMITTALS

1.2 DEFINITIONS

- A. Certified Test Reports: Certified test reports are reports of tests signed by a qualified professional attesting that the results reported are accurate and that items tested either meet or fail to meet the stated minimum requirements. These test reports include those performed by Factory Mutual, Underwriters Laboratories, Inc., and others.
- B. Certified Inspection Reports: Certified inspection reports are those signed by approved inspectors attesting that the items inspected meet the specification requirements other than those exceptions included in the report.
- C. Manufacturer's Certificate of Conformance or Compliance: A certificate signed by an authorized manufacturer's official attesting that the material or equipment delivered meets the specification requirements.
- 1.3 TESTS All testing shall be divided into three categories as follows:
 - A. Field Tests made at, or in the vicinity of the job site in connection with the actual construction including, but not limited to, concrete batch plants, and similar establishments directly involved in the construction process.
 - B. Factory Tests, made at the point of manufacture of various products which are shipped to the job site as a unit, including but not limited to such items as transformers, boilers, air conditioning equipment, and electrical equipment.
 - C. Certified Tests, made by approved testing agencies on material and equipment which are to be incorporated into the structure under the Contract. These are tests such as those performed by Factory Mutual, Underwriters Laboratories, Inc., and others.

1.4 FIELD TESTS

- A. Field Tests by the Contractor: The Contractor shall perform certain field testing specifically required of him in the contract specifications. In those cases, he shall furnish all equipment, instruments, qualified personnel, and facilities necessary to perform all tests required by the Contract Documents. Testing services shall be performed by the Contractor or acquired by the Contractor through qualified commercial testing laboratory. If a commercial testing laboratory is retained to perform tests under this contract, all test reports shall be certified by a representative of the testing laboratory who is authorized to sign certified test reports for the laboratory. Test reports shall include the acceptable value for each specification item, the actual test results obtained, and the test methods used. Each report shall be conspicuously stamped on the cover sheet in large red letters "CONFORMS" or "DOES NOT CONFORM" to the specification requirements as the case maybe. The Contractor shall arrange for immediate and direct delivery of the signed original of all reports, certifications, and other documentation to the Architect.
- B. Factory Tests: The Contractor will arrange for factory tests when such tests are required.
- C. Manufacturer's Certified Tests: Certified tests on materials to be incorporated into the work will be acceptable, provided they are performed by the manufacturer or by Government approved agencies or laboratories, show that the materials conform to the specification, and that the tests and certifications meet the requirements of the paragraph entitled "Certificates and Certifications" below.

- D. Approval of Laboratories: All laboratory work performed under this contract shall be done by a laboratory approved by the Architect. The basis of approval includes the following:
 - Laboratories performing work in connection with concrete, steel and bituminous materials must conform to American Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM) Designation # 329-77.
 - 2. Laboratories performing work not in connection with concrete, steel and bituminous materials must conform to Sections 3 and 4 of ASTM Designation E 329-77.
- 1.5 INSPECTION: All inspections shall be divided into two categories as follows:
 - A. Contractor Field Inspection: Field Inspection is that inspection in the vicinity of the job site which, when performed properly, will result in the complete compliance of all work-in-place with the contract drawings and specifications. The Contractor or his designated representative shall inspect all work under this contract.
 - B. Factory Inspection is that inspection at the point of manufacture of the various products which are shipped to the job site, including but not limited to such items as transformers, boilers, air conditioning equipment, and electrical equipment.

1.6 SUBMITTALS

- A. Submittals shall be prepared in accordance with SECTION 01300 SUBMITTALS. Each submittal shall be accompanied by a cover letter signed by the Contractor. Each item proposed to be incorporated into the Contract shall be clearly marked and identified in the submittals, and shall be cross-referenced to the contract drawings and specifications so as to identify clearly the use for which it is intended. Each sheet of submittal shall be stamped with the Contractor's certification stamp. Data submitted in a bound volume or on one sheet printed on two sides may be stamped on the front of the first sheet only. The Contractor's certification stamp shall be worded as follows:
- C. The person signing the certification shall be one designated in writing by the Contractor as having that authority. The signature shall be in original ink. Stamped signatures are not acceptable.
- D. Submittal Status Logs: The Contractor shall maintain at the job site an up-to-date submittal status log showing the status of submittals required by the contract.
- E. Shop drawings, manufacturer's data and samples shall be identified clearly and submitted in accordance with the General Conditions.
- F. Certified Test Reports: Before delivery of materials and equipment, certified copies of the reports of all tests listed in the technical sections shall be submitted and approved. The testing shall have been performed in a laboratory meeting the requirements specified herein. Test reports shall be accompanied by certificates from the manufacturer certifying that the material and equipment proposed to be supplied is of the same type, quality, manufacture, and make as that tested.
- G. Formwork, Falsework and Erection Procedures Certification: When the Contractor is required to submit a design or certification for formwork, falsework, or erection procedures, daily inspection report must indicate that the work has been inspected for conformance to the design or certification. A specific statement for these items rather than a general statement is required.

1.7 CERTIFICATES AND CERTIFICATIONS

A. Manufacturer's certification may be furnished by the Contractor, on items of materials and equipment incorporated into the work, only when this method will assure full compliance with the provisions of the Contract, as determined by the Architect. Pre-printed certifications will not be acceptable. All certifications shall be in the original. The original of all manufacturers' certifications shall name the appropriate item of equipment or material, standard or other document specified as controlling the quality of that item and shall have attached thereto certified copies of test reports upon which the certifications are based.

1.8 RECORD OF INSPECTIONS

A. Pursuant to the Contractor's Inspection, the Contractor shall maintain, on a day-to-day basis, a record of all inspections and field tests performed that day.

1.9 REPEATED TESTS AND INSPECTIONS

A. The Contractor shall repeat tests and inspections after each correction made to nonconforming materials and workmanship until tests and inspections indicate the materials, equipment, and workmanship conform to the Contract requirements. The retesting and re-inspections shall be performed at no cost to the Owner.

CONSTRUCTION FACILITIES AND TEMPORARY CONTROL

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.1 SECTION INCLUDES

- A. Temporary Utilities: Electricity, lighting, heat, ventilation, telephone services, water, and sanitary facilities.
- B. Temporary Controls: Protection of the work, and water control, and dust control.
- C. Construction Facilities: Access roads, parking, progress cleaning, temporary buildings and field office, and Project bulletin board.

1.2 TEMPORARY ELECTRICITY

- A. Contractor shall provide his own temporary power source(s) through the use of portable generator(s).
- B. Contractor shall not attempt to use any existing convenience outlets anywhere on the site. $\underline{\text{NO}}$ EXCEPTIONS
- 1.3 TEMPORARY TELEPHONE SERVICE (OPTIONAL)
- 1.4 TEMPORARY WATER SERVICE (OPTIONAL)
- 1.5 TEMPORARY SANITARY FACILITIES (MANDATORY)
 - A. Contractor shall provide and maintain temporary facilities for this Project. Location(s) as approved by the Owner.

1.6 ACCESS ROADS

A. Provide and maintain access to fire hydrants.

1.7 PARKING

- A. Coordinate with PHA parking areas to accommodate construction personnel.
- B. When site space is not adequate, provide additional off-site parking.

1.8 PROGRESS CLEANING

- A. Maintain areas cleaned of waste materials, debris, and rubbish. Maintain site in a clean and orderly condition. Contractor shall provide and pay for disposal containers in this Contract. **All discarded material shall be disposed of at an approved landfill. Burning is not allowed.**
- B. At the end of <u>each</u> work day, all debris shall be collected and deposited in the disposal containers furnished by the Contractor.
- C. Remove waste materials, debris and rubbish from each building daily and dispose of it. Contractor shall either remove debris from the project site daily or provide a dumpster on site in which to deposit debris. Cost of removal shall be included in the Contractor's lump sum proposal.

1.9 FIELD OFFICE, SHEDS AND STORAGE

- A. Contractor's Field Office, if used, shall be provided by the Contractor and located as directed by the PHA.
- B. Locate sheds at a minimum distance of 30 feet from existing structures.

1.10 PROJECT BULLETIN BOARD

A. Contractor will provide a bulletin board to display a copy of the Wage Determination and other required documents on or near the exterior of the Contractor's Field Office, protected from the weather.

MATERIAL AND EQUIPMENT

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.1 SECTION INCLUDES

- A. Products
- B. Transportation and Handling
- C. Storage and Protection
- D. Product Options
- E. Substitutions

1.2 RELATED SECTIONS

- A. Document 00700 General Conditions: Product Options and Substitution Procedures
- B. Section 01400 Quality Control: Product Quality Monitoring

1.3 PRODUCTS

- A. Definition: Products means new material, machinery, parts, equipment, fixtures, and systems forming the work. Does not include machinery and equipment used for preparation, fabrication, conveying and erection of the work. Products may also include existing items appointed for re-use.
- B. Do not use materials and equipment removed from existing premises, except as specifically permitted by the Contract Documents.
- C. Provide interchangeable parts of the same manufacturer for similar items.

1.4 TRANSPORTATION AND HANDLING

- A. Transport and handle products by manufacturer's instructions.
- B. Promptly inspect shipments to assure that products meet requirements, quantities are correct, and products are undamaged.
- C. Handle products by methods to prevent soiling, disfigurement, and damage.

1.5 STORAGE AND PROTECTION

- A. Store and protect products by manufacturer's instructions. Keep seals and labels intact and legible. Store sensitive products in weathertight climate regulated enclosures.
- B. For exterior storage of products, place on inclined supports, above ground.
- C. When site does not permit on-site storage or protection, provide for materials to be stored off-site. Section 01019 specifies that off-site storage is not subject to consideration in Contractor's Periodical Estimate for Partial Payment.
- D. Cover products subject to deterioration with impervious sheet covering. Provide ventilation to avoid condensation.
- E. Store loose granular material on solid flat surfaces in a well drained area. Prevent mixing with foreign matter.
- F. Store products by methods to prevent soiling, disfigurement and damage.

G. Arrange storage of products to permit access for inspection and observation. Periodically inspect to assure products are undamaged and are maintained under specified conditions.

1.6 PRODUCT OPTIONS

- A. Products Specified by Reference Standards or by Description Only: Any product shown to meet those standards or description.
- B. Products Specified by Naming One or More Manufacturer's with a Provision for Substitutions: Submit a request for substitution for any manufacturer not named.
- C. See Document 00700 for product options and substitution procedures.

1.7 SUBSTITUTIONS

- A. Substitutions may be proposed at least ten days before the bid opening as written requests for prior approval. If the Architect has no objection to the Substitution, he will incorporate the change in an Addendum. Where brand names and specific catalog numbers are specified, they shall be the basis for the bid. Substitutions will be allowed only where no exception is taken by the Architect. No consideration will be given for errors in bidding resulting from the assumption that a particular item will be allowed as a Substitution for that which is specified where the change is not specifically permitted by Addenda.
- B. Architect will consider request for Substitutions after the bid opening only if received within 15 days after date established in Notice to Proceed.
- C. Substitutions may be considered when:
 - 1. A product becomes unavailable through no fault of the Contractor.
 - 2. Extended delivery time might seriously delay the project.
 - 3. A significant monetary savings to the PHA is offered without a significant change in scope or quality.
- D. Document each request with complete data substantiating compliance of proposed substitution with Contract Documents.
- E. A request constitutes a representation that the Contractor:
 - 1. Has investigated proposed product and determined that it meets or exceeds the quality level of the specified product.
 - 2. Will provide the same warranty for the Substitution as for the specified product.
 - 3. Will coordinate installation and make changes for the work to be completed with no additional cost to the PHA.
 - Waives claims for additional costs or time extension which may subsequently become apparent.
- F. Substitutions will not be considered when they are shown or implied on shop drawings or product data submittals, without separate written request, or when substitution will require revision to the Contract Documents.
- G. Substitution Submittal Procedure:
 - Submit four copies of each request for Substitution for consideration. Submit each proposed Substitution separately. Each request must be accompanied by a Substitution Request Form in the format provided by the Architect.
 - 2. Submit shop drawings, product data, and certified test results attesting to the proposed product equivalence.
 - 3. The Architect will inform Contractor, in writing, of the decision on each request.
- H. Do not purchase materials or install work until the necessary submittals have been returned without objection from the Architect.

CONTRACT CLOSEOUT PROCEDURES

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.1 SECTION INCLUDES

A. Administrative provisions for Substantial Completion and for final acceptance.

1.2 RELATED SECTIONS

- A. Document 00700 General Conditions: Fiscal provisions and additional administrative requirements.
- B. Section 01010 Summary of Work: PHA Occupancy.
- C. Section 01710 Final Cleaning.
- D. Section 01720 Project Record Documents.

1.3 SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION

- A. When work or assigned portion of work is substantially complete, submit written notice to the Architect with list of items to be completed or corrected.
- B. Should Architect find work is not substantially complete, he will notify Contractor in writing of observed deficiencies.
- C. Contractor shall remedy deficiencies and send a second written Notice of Substantial Completion.
- D. When Architect, or his designated representative, concurs that work is substantially complete, he will document Substantial Completion under provisions of General Conditions. Architect and PHA will inspect substantially completed units on a weekly basis.
- E. PHA will occupy portions of the Project as specified in Section 01010 before final acceptance of the remainder of the Project.

1.4 FINAL COMPLETION

- A. When work is complete, submit written certification of the following:
 - 1. Contract Documents have been reviewed.
 - 2. Work has been inspected for compliance with Contract Documents.
 - 3. Work has been completed in accordance with Contract Documents and deficiencies listed with Certificate of Substantial Completion have been corrected.
 - 4. Equipment and systems have been tested, adjusted, and balanced, and are fully operational.
 - 5. Work is complete and ready for final inspection.
- B. Until the final inspection has been made, and all required Closeout Documents and materials have been received, the PHA will not advance any of the retainage or make the final payment to the Contractor.
 - 1. Upon receipt of the Contractor's Notification of the date when the work has been completed, the PHA will conduct a final inspection within 10 calendar days.
 - 2. The final inspection will be conducted by a PHA representative, the Architect, and a HUD representative, where necessary; Contractor's representative, and representatives of major subcontractors where applicable, are required to attend.
 - 3. The inspection will determine if the work has been completed in conformance to the intent of the Contract Documents, whether there are any minor items of such incomplete or unsatisfactory (or seasonal work such as planting remaining), what items are to be included in the final punch list, or if there are major deficiencies which must be corrected by the Contractor before another final inspection can be made in preparation for Contract Settlement.
- C. Should Architect find work incomplete, he will notify Contractor in writing of observed deficiencies.
- D. Contractor shall remedy deficiencies and send a second certification of final completion.

E. When Architect finds work to be complete, he will consider closeout submittals.

1.5 RE-INSPECTION FEES

A. Should work require re-inspection by the Architect due to failure of work to coincide with the Contractor's request for completion inspection, PHA will deduct Architect's compensation for re-inspection for final payment to Contractor.

1.6 CLOSEOUT SUBMITTALS

- A. Submit one notarized original and two copies of the Contractor's release and certification which indicates:
 - 1. The work was completed in conformance to the construction documents, including change orders, except any minor items identified in the PHA's or its Architect's proposed Certificate of Completion;
 - 2. The total amount due the Contractor and a separately stated amount for each unsettled claim against the PHA;
 - 3. The PHA is released from all claims, other than those stated in the Contractor's release; and
 - 4. Wages paid to laborers or mechanics were consistent with the wage rate requirements of the Contract and there are no outstanding claims for unpaid wages.
- B. Evidence of Compliance with the Labor Relations Handbook, 1344.1:
 - 1. Any payroll records not previously submitted to the PHA.
 - 2. Documentation of adjustments to employee compensation where necessary to conform to wage rate requirements.
- C. Evidence of Compliance with Requirements of Governing Authorities:
 - Certificate of Occupancy, where applicable.
- D. Project Record Documents, under provision of Section 01720.
- E. Evidence of Payment and Release of Liens: Conform to the Conditions of the Contract.
- F. Consent of Surety to Final Payment.
- G. Certificates of Insurance for Products and Completed Operations: Conform to Supplementary Conditions.
- H. Failure to comply with the requirements of this Section, or those of Sections 01710 and 01720, where applicable, may significantly delay Contract Closeout and final payment.

1.7 STATEMENT OF ADJUSTMENT OF ACCOUNTS

- A. Submit final statement reflecting adjustments to Contract Sum indicating:
 - 1. Original Contract Sum
 - 2. Previous Change Orders
 - 3. Deductions for un-corrected work
 - 4. Deductions for liquidated damages
 - 5. Deductions for re-inspection fees
 - 6. Other adjustments to Contract Sum
 - 7. Total Contract Sum as adjusted
 - 8. Previous payments
 - 9. Sum remaining due
- B. Architect will issue a Final Change Order reflecting approved adjustments to Contract Sum not previously made by change orders.

1.8 APPLICATION FOR FINAL PAYMENT

A. Submit final Periodical Estimate for Partial Payment marked "FINAL", identifying total adjusted Contract Price, previous payments, and balance due.

FINAL CLEANING

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.1 SECTION INCLUDES

A. Final Cleaning of the Project.

1.2 RELATED SECTIONS

- A. Document 00700 General Conditions: Cleaning Up.
- B. Section 01500 Construction Facilities and Temporary Controls: Cleaning during construction.
- C. Section 01701 Contract Closeout Procedures.

1.3 DESCRIPTION

A. Execute site cleaning. Provide access and coordinate with PHA's personnel.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

NOT USED

PART 3 - EXECUTION

3.1 CLEANING

A. The Contractor and Modernization Officer shall walk and inspect the buildings and building site at the end of the project. The Modernization Officer will make a list of all areas not sufficiently clean. The Contractor will then re-clean and remove all debris so identified. The Contractor shall take special care to pick up all roofing nails and roofing debris from the site area.

DEMOLITION

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.1 DESCRIPTION OF WORK

A. Demolition includes the complete demolition, removal and disposal of kitchen cabinets and countertops shown to be replaced, as shown on the drawings and specified. Replaced HVAC units shall be securely stored and protected for turnover to PHA at the completion of the project.

1.2 JOB CONDITIONS

- A. Condition of Structures:
 - 1. Demolition drawings are made from record drawings and are provided for general information.

 The Contractor shall field verify the conditions to be encountered in the work to be performed.
- B. Salvage:
 - 1. Items of salvageable value to the Owner shall be removed from the structure as the work progresses. Salvaged items must be stored and turned over to the Owner at completion of the project.
- C. Explosives:
 - 1. The use of explosives will not be permitted.
- D. Traffic:
 - 1. Conduct demolition operations and the removal of debris to ensure minimum interference with roads, streets, walks and other adjacent occupied or used facilities.
- E. Protections:
 - 1. Ensure the safe passage of persons around the area of demolition. Conduct operations to prevent injury to adjacent buildings, structures, other facilities, and persons.
- F. Damages:
 - 1. Promptly repair damages caused to adjacent facilities by demolition operations at no cost to the Owner.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

(Not Applicable)

PART 3 - EXECUTION

3.1 DEMOLITION

- A. Pollution Controls:
 - 1. Use water sprinkling, temporary enclosures, and other suitable methods to limit the amount of dust and dirt rising and scattering in the air to the lowest practical level.
 - 2. Comply with governing regulations pertaining to environmental protection.
 - 3. Clean adjacent structures and improvements of dust, dirt, and debris caused by demolition operations, as directed by the Engineer/Architect. Return adjacent areas to condition existing prior to the start of the work.
 - 4. Demolish concrete and masonry in small sections.

3.2 DISPOSAL OF DEMOLISHED MATERIALS

- A. General:
 - 1. Remove from the site debris, rubbish, and other materials resulting from demolition operations.

SELECTIVE DEMOLITION

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.1 RELATED DOCUMENTS:

A. Drawings and General Provisions of the Contract, including General and Supplementary Conditions and Division 1 Specification Sections, apply to this section.

1.2 SUMMARY

- A. This section includes the following:
 - Demolition and removal of selected site and building elements.

1.3 DEFINITIONS

- A. Remove: Remove and legally dispose of items except those indicated to be reinstalled, salvaged, or to remain the Owner's property.
- B. Remove and Salvage: Items indicated to be removed and salvaged remain the Owner's property. Remove, clean and protect against damage. Deliver items as directed by Owner.
- C. Existing to Remain: Protect construction indicated to remain against damage and soiling during selective demolition. All site landscaping damaged during the construction phase shall be restored by the Contractor at the close-out of the job.

1.4 MATERIALS OWNERSHIP

A. Except for items or materials indicated to be reused, salvaged, reinstalled, or otherwise indicated to remain the Owner's property, demolished materials shall become the Contractor's property and shall be removed from the site with further disposition at the Contractor's option.

1.5 SUBMITTALS

- A. General: Submit each item in this Article according to the Conditions of the Contract and Division 1 Specification Sections, for information only, unless otherwise indicated.
- B. Photographs or videotape, sufficiently detailed, of existing conditions of adjoining construction and site improvements that might be misconstrued as damage caused by selective demolition operations.
- C. Record drawings at Project Closeout according to Division 1 Section "Project Closeout"
 - Identify and accurately locate capped utilities and other subsurface structural, electrical, or mechanical conditions.

1.6 QUALITY ASSURANCE

A. Regulatory Requirements: Comply with governing EPA notification regulations before starting selective demolition. Comply with hauling and disposal regulations of authorities having jurisdiction.

1.7 PROJECT CONDITIONS

- A. Owner will occupy portions of the building immediately adjacent to selective demolition area. Conduct selective demolition so that Owner's operations will not be disrupted. Provide not less than 72 hours' notice to Owner of activities that will affect Owner's operations. Owner's building access will be limited as agreed between the Owner and the Contractor.
- B. Storage or sale or removed items or materials on-site will not be permitted.

1.8 SCHEDULING

A. Arrange selective demolition schedule so as not to interfere with Owner's on-site operations. Coordinate with the owner for any events planned during the construction period.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

2.1 REPAIR MATERIALS

- A. Use repair materials identical to existing materials.
 - 1. Where identical materials are unavailable or cannot be used for exposed surfaces, use materials that visually match existing adjacent surfaces to the fullest extent possible.
 - 2. Use materials whose installed performance equal or surpasses that of existing materials.

PART 3 - EXECUTION

3.1 EXAMINATION

- A. Survey existing conditions and correlate with requirements indicated to determine extent of selective demolition required.
- B. When unanticipated mechanical, electrical or structural elements that conflict with the intended function or design are encountered, investigate and measure the nature and extent of the conflict. Promptly submit a written report to the Architect.
- C. Perform surveys as the Work progresses to detect hazards resulting from selective demolition activities.

3.2 UTILITY SERVICES

- A. Maintain existing utilities indicated to remain in service and protect them against damage during selective demolition operations.
 - 1. Do not interrupt existing utilities serving occupied or operating facilities, except when authorized in writing by Owner and authorities having jurisdiction.
 - a. Provide not less than 72 hours' notice to Owner if shutdown of service is required during changeover.
- B. Utility Requirements: Locate, identify, disconnect and seal or cap off indicated utility services serving building to be selectively demolished.
 - 1. Arrange to shut off indicated utilities with utility companies.
 - 2. Where utility services are required to be removed, relocated, or abandoned, provide bypass connections to maintain continuity of service to other parts of the building before proceeding with selective demolition.
- C. Utility Requirements: Refer to owner's facilities department for shutting off, disconnecting, removing and sealing or capping utility services. Do not start selective demolition work until utility disconnecting and sealing have been completed and verified in writing.
- D. Conduct demolition operations with extreme care and planning to prevent injury to people and damage to adjacent buildings, landscaping, and facilities to remain. Ensure safe passage of people around selective demolition area. Maintain a chain link security fencing in place to provide a minimum of 50 feet of protected space around all demolition areas.
 - 1. Protect existing site improvements, appurtenances, and landscaping to remain.
 - 2. Protect walls, ceilings, floors and other existing finish work that are to remain and are exposed during selective demolition operations.

3.3 POLLUTION CONTROLS

- A. Remove and transport debris in a manner that will prevent spillage on adjacent surfaces and areas.
- B. Clean adjacent surfaces and improvements of dust, dirt and debris caused by selective demolition operations. Return adjacent areas to condition existing before start of selective demolition.
- C. Provide dust control for the affected portion of the Buildings included in this project.

3.4 SELECTIVE DEMOLITION

A. Demolish and remove existing construction only to the extent required by new construction as indicated. Use methods required to complete Work within limitations of governing regulations and as follows:

- 1. Neatly cut openings and holes, plumb, square and true to dimensions required. Use cutting methods least likely to damage construction to remain or adjoining construction.
- 2. Do not use cutting torches until work area is cleared of flammable materials. At concealed spaces, such as duct and pipe interiors, verify condition and contents of hidden space before starting flame-cutting operations. Maintain portable fire-suppression devices during flame-cutting operations.
- 3. Dispose of demolished items and materials promptly. On-site storage or sale of removed items is prohibited.
- 4. Return elements of construction and surfaces to remain to condition existing before start of selective demolition operations.
- B. Break up and remove concrete slabs on grade, unless otherwise shown to remain.

3.5 PATCHING AND REPAIRS

- A. Promptly patch and repair holes and damaged surfaces caused to adjacent construction by selective demolition operations.
- B. Patching is specified in Division 1 Section "Cutting and Patching"
- C. Restore exposed finishes of patched areas and extend finish restoration into adjoining construction to remain in a manner that eliminates evidence of patching and refinishing.

3.6 DISPOSAL OF DEMOLISHED MATERIALS

- A. General: Promptly dispose of demolished materials. Do not allow materials to accumulate on site.
- B. Burning: Do not burn demolished materials.
- C. Disposal: Transport demolished materials off Owner's property and legally dispose of them.

3.7 CLEANING

- A. Sweep the building, covered walkways, sidewalks and paved areas broom clean on completion of selective demolition operation.
- B. Owner will change filters on air-handling equipment on completion of selective demolition operations.

FINISH CARPENTRY

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.1 RELATED DOCUMENTS

A. Drawings and general provisions of Contract, including General and Supplementary Conditions and Division 1 Specification Section, apply to the work of this section.

1.2 DESCRIPTION OF WORK

- A. Definition: Finish carpentry includes carpentry work which is exposed to view, in non-structural, and which is not specified as part of other sections.
- B. Types of finish carpentry work in this section include:
 - Interior running and standing trim

1.3 QUALITY ASSURANCE

A. Factory mark each piece of lumber and plywood with type, grade, mill and grading agency identification; except omit marking from surfaces to receive transparent finish, and submit mill certificate that material has been inspected and graded in accordance with requirements if it cannot be marked on a concealed surface.

1.4 SUBMITTALS

- A. Product Data: For each type of process and factory-fabricated product. Indicate component materials, dimensions, profiles, textures, and colors, and include construction and application details.
- B. Samples for Initial Selection: For each type of exterior finish carpentry indicated.
- C. Samples for Verification: For each product with half of exposed surface finished; 50 sq. inches minimum for ornamental product and 8" x 10" for standing and running trim.
- D. Maintenance Data: For exterior finish carpentry trim and accessories to include in maintenance manuals.

1.5 PRODUCT DELIVERY, STORAGE AND HANDLING

- A. Protect finish carpentry materials during transit, delivery, storage and handling to prevent damage, soiling and discoloration.
- B. Do not deliver finish carpentry materials until painting, wet work, grinding and similar operations which could cause damage, soil or deteriorate woodwork have been completed in installation areas.

1.6 JOB CONDITIONS

A. Conditioning: Installer shall advise Construction Manager of temperature and humidity requirements for finish carpentry and installation areas. Do not install finish carpentry until required temperature and relative humidity have been stabilized and will be maintained in installation areas.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

2.1 WOOD PRODUCTS QUALITY STANDARDS

- A. Softwood Lumber Standards: Comply with PS 20 and with applicable grading rules of the respective grading and inspecting agency for the species and product indicated.
- B. Plywood Standard: Comply with PS/1 ANSI A199.1.
- C. Hardwood Lumber Standard: Comply with NHLA rules.
- D Hardwood Plywood Standard: Comply with PS 51.

E. Woodworking Standard: Where indicated for a specific product, comply with specified provision of:

Architectural Woodwork Institute (AWI) "Quality Standards".

2.2 MATERIALS

A. General:

- Nominal sizes are indicated, except as shown by detailed dimension. Provide dressed or worked and dressed lumber, as applicable, manufactured to the actual sizes as required by PS 20.
- 2. Moisture Content of Harwood Lumber: Provide seasoned (KD) lumber having a moisture content from the time of manufacture until the time of installation within the ranges required in the referenced woodworking standard.
- 3. Lumber for Transparent Finish (Stained or Clear): Use pieces made of solid lumber stock.
- 4. Lumber for Painted Finish: Use pieces which are made of solid lumber stock.

B. Interior Finish Carpentry:

- 1. Standing and Running Trim for Painted Finish: Any Western softwood species graded and inspected by WWPA complying with the following requirements:
 - a. Grade for Standard Sizes and Patterns: "C Select" or "Choice" for Idaho White Pine, "C" for Southern Yellow Pine, Clear for Poplar and Red Oak.
 - b. Grade for Special (custom) Sizes and Patterns: Custom for quality of materials and manufacture as required in referenced woodworking standard. Pattern mouldings shall be equal to moulding manufactured by S & S Craftsmen, Inc. 1-800-922-9663.
- 2. Standing and Running Trim for Painted Finish: Manufactured to sizes and patterns (profile) shown from selected First Grade Lumber (NHLA); complying with the following grade requirements of referenced woodworking standard, for quality materials and manufacture:
 - a. Grade: Custom, clear

D. Miscellaneous Materials:

1. Fasteners and Anchorages: Provide nails, screws and other anchoring devices of the type, size, material and finish required for application indicated to provide secure attachment, concealed where possible, and complying with applicable Federal Specifications.

PART 3 - EXECUTION

3.1 PREPARATION

A. Condition wood materials to average prevailing humidity conditions in installation areas prior to installing.

3.2 INSTALLATION

- A. Discard units of material which are unsound, warped, bowed, twisted, improperly treated or finished, inadequately seasoned, or too small to fabricate work with proper jointing arrangements. Do not use manufactured units with defective surfaces, sizes or patterns.
- B. Install the work plumb, level, true and straight with no distortions. Shim as required using concealed shims. Install to a tolerance of 1/8" in 8'0" for plumb and level countertops; and with 1/16" maximum offset in flush adjoining 1/8" maximum offsets in revealed adjoining surfaces.
- C. Scribe and cut work to fit adjoining work and refinish cut surfaces or repair damaged finish at cuts.
- D. Anchor finish carpentry work to anchorage devices or blocking built-in directly attached to substrates. Secure to grounds, stripping and blocking with countersunk, concealed fasteners and blind nailing as required for a complete installation. Except where prefinished matching fastener heads are required, use fine finishing nails for exposed nailings, countersunk and filled flush with finished surface, and matching final finish where transparent is indicated.

3.3 ADJUSTMENT, CLEANING, FINISHING AND PROTECTION

A. Repair damaged and defective finish carpentry work wherever possible to eliminate defects functionally and visually; where not possible to repair properly, replace woodwork. Adjust joinery for uniform appearance.

- B. Refer to Division 9 Sections for final finishing of installed finish carpentry work.
- C. Protection: Installer of finish carpentry work shall advise Construction Manager of final protection and maintained conditions necessary to ensure that work will be without damage at time of acceptance.

RESILIENT TILE FLOORING AND BASE

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.1 SCOPE:

A. This section includes the furnishing and installation of new resilient flooring and base for installation in areas of building where scheduled on the drawings.

1.2 APPLICABLE PUBLICATIONS

- A. The publications listed below form a part of this specification to the extent referenced. The publications are referred to in the text by the basic designation only:
 - 1. American Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM) Publications:
 - E-84-81a: Test Method for Surface Burning Characteristics of Building Materials.
 - b. E-648-78: Test Method for Critical Radiant Flux of Floor Covering Systems Using a Radiant Heat Energy Source
 - E-662-79: Test Method for Specific Optical Density of Smoke Generated by Solid Materials.
 - d. E-97: Test Method for Determining Light Reflectivity.
 - 2. National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) Publications:
 - a. 56A-80: Standard for the Use of Inhalation Anesthetics (Flammable and Nonflammable)
 - b. 253: Flooring Radiant Panel Test (Similar to ASTM E648)
 - c. 258: Smoke Obscuration NBS Smoke (Similar to ASTM E662)
- 1.3 SUBMITTALS: See SECTION 01300 SUBMITTALS.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

2.1 MATERIALS

- A. Shall conform to the respective specifications and standards and to the requirement specified herein below:
- B. Color and Pattern: The color and pattern of tile shall be uniformly distributed throughout the thickness of the tile. Resilient flooring materials of the same type, pattern, and color shall be of the same production run and shall be so marked. Variations in shades and off-pattern matches between containers will not be acceptable. Flooring in any one continuous area shall be from the same lot and have the same shade and pattern.
- C. Vinyl Composition Tile: Shall be 12" x 12' by 1/8" thick. Flame spread rating shall be 75 or less (Class B) when tested in accordance with ASTM E84. Smoke density factor shall be 450 or less when tested in accordance with ASTM E662 NBS smoke. Critical radiant flux shall be 0.45 watts/CM² or more when tested in accordance with ASTM E648. Light reflectivity shall be not less than 35" when tested in accordance with ASTM E97.

D. Approved manufacturers' products for vinyl composition tile are as follows:

1. Armstrong: Standard Excelon Series – Imperial Texture

- 2. Kentile: Architectural Series
- 3. Tarkett: Architectural
- 4. Azrock: Architectural Collection Custom Cortina
- E. Wall Base: Shall be flexible vinyl cove, 6" high, 0.025" thick. Cove base shall be used with resilient flooring only.
- F. Approved manufacturers' products for wall base are as follows:

1. Armstrong: Standard Vinyl Wall Base

Azrock: Vinyl Cove/ Base 2. Vinyl Cove/ Base 3. Flexco: 4. Johnsonite: Vinyl Wall Base 5. Kentile: Vinvl Wall Base Mercer Plastics: Vinyl Wall Base 6. 7. Roppe: Vinyl Wall Base

- G. Resilient Edge Strips shall be 1/8" thick by 1" (min.) wide of solid vinyl of color as selected by Architect.
- H. Approved manufacturers' products for reducer strips are as follows:

Mercer Plastics: Tile Reducer Strip #63
 Flexco: Tile Reducer Strip
 Johnsonite: Vinyl Reducer Strip
 Roppe: Reducer Strip

- I. Cork tile floor shall be 12" x 12" x ⁵/₁₆" thick, sanded, unfinished, natural cork floor tile meeting Federal specifications LL-T-431 b. Type II, Class I as manufactured by: Dodge-Regupol Inc. (717-295-3400) or "Ceres" by CBC (America) Corp. (888-377-8801). Prep of floor slab, cork tile installation and finishing shall be in accordance with the manufacturer's written instructions. See Section 09900, "Painting" for required job applied urethane finish.
- J. Adhesive
 - 1. For vinyl composition tile, vinyl stair treads, cork floor tile, wall base and edge strips shall be as recommended by the product manufacturer.

PART 3 - EXECUTION

- 3.1 DELIVERY AND STORAGE
- A. Deliver materials to the job in the manufacturer's original unopened containers with the brands, names, and production runs clearly marked thereon. Handle materials carefully and store them in their original containers at not less than 70° F for at least 48 hours before work is started. Do not open containers until inspected and accepted.
- 3.2 ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS
- A. Maintain spaces in which flooring work is to be performed at not less than 65° F at the floor level for at least 48 hours prior to starting the work, during the time the work is performed and for at least 48 hours after work is completed. Maintain a minimum temperature of 55° F thereafter. Provide adequate ventilation to remove moisture and fumes from the area.
- 3.3 CONDITION OF SURFACES

A. Flooring shall not be installed on surfaces that are unsuitable and will prevent a proper installation. Floor surfaces that are to receive flooring shall be clean, thoroughly dry, smooth, firm and sound, and free from springiness, oil, paint, wax, dirt, and any other damaging material.

B. Preparation of Surfaces:

- 1. Concrete Floor Surfaces: Grind all ridges and other uneven surfaces smooth. Concrete curing compounds, other than the type that does not adversely affect adhesive, shall be entirely removed from the slabs. Cut out and fill cracks 1/16" wide and wider with a crack filler as specified for this application.
- Provide latex underlayment to fill the remaining holes, cracks and depressions, and for smoothing, leveling, and feather edging the concrete. Remove loose particles, vacuum chalky, dusty surfaces and prime the cleaned surfaces if recommended by the flooring manufacturer.
- Moisture Test for Concrete Floors: As recommended by flooring manufacturer.

3.4 APPLICATION

- A. Install flooring after work of other trades that might damage flooring has been completed. Apply flooring and accessories in accordance with the manufacturer's installation procedure. Work shall be performed by workmen experienced in the application of such flooring. Detailed requirements are as follows:
 - Adhesives: Apply adhesives in accordance with the adhesive manufacturer's printed directions, unless specified or directed otherwise. Smoking, the use of open flames, and other immediate sources of ignition are strictly prohibited in the area where solvent-containing adhesives are being used or spread. Post conspicuous signs reading "NO SMOKING OR OPEN FLAME" in the area of spread adhesive.
 - 2. Flooring: Apply tile flooring in approved patterns. Start in the center of the room or area, and work from the center towards the edges. Keep tile lines and joints square, symmetrical, tight and even; and keep floor in a true and level plane, except where indicated as sloped. Vary edge width as necessary to maintain full-size tiles in the field but no edge tile shall be less than one half the field tile size, except where irregular shaped rooms make it impossible. Apply floor covering in accordance with manufacturer's instructions.
 - 3. Cutting: Cut flooring to fit around all permanent fixtures, built-in furniture and cabinets, pipes, and outlets. Cut edges, fit, and scribe to walls and partitions after field flooring has been applied.
 - 4. Reducer Strips: Provide edging (reducer) strips where flooring terminates at points higher than the contiguous finished flooring, except at doorways where thresholds are provided. Secure strips with adhesive.
- B. Application of Vinyl Composition Tile, Cork Tile and Vinyl Stair Treads: Prime concrete slabs in contact with the ground and over unventilated crawl spaces with cut-back type primer if recommended by the flooring manufacturer.
- C. Work primer with a nonabsorptive base completely into the surface. Allow primer to become thoroughly dry before applying adhesive. Apply only cut-back adhesive to primed concrete surfaces. Apply recommended adhesives to suspended concrete surfaces.
- D. Application of Vinyl Base: Vinyl base shall be applied after resilient flooring is completed, and the wall surface, to which the base is to be applied, is approved crack filler. Special base adhesive, as recommended by the floor covering manufacturer, shall be applied to the back of the base with a special gun manufactured for the purpose, leaving approximately ½" bare space along the top edge of base. The base shall immediately be pressed firmly against the wall and moved gently into place, making sure that the toe is in contact with the floor and the wall. The entire surface of the base shall

be rolled with a hand roller, and then the toe of the base shall be pressed firmly against the wall. Straight base for installation in carpeted areas shall be installed prior to installation of direct glue down carpet.

- E. Cleaning: Immediately upon completion of the installation in a room or area, floors and adjacent surfaces shall be dry cleaned with an approved cleaner to remove surplus adhesive. No sooner than 5 days after installation, floors shall be washed with an approved non-alkaline cleaning solution, rinsed thoroughly with clean, cold, water and waxed with one coat of water-emulsion wax, buffed to an even luster with an electric polishing machine.
- F. Provide one box of each color of vinyl-composition tile and cork tile for Owner's use in maintenance.

3.5 PROTECTION

A. Cleaned flooring shall be covered with clean building paper before traffic is permitted. Board or plywood walkways shall be placed on floors used as passageways by workmen and where directed. Scratched or damaged flooring will not be acceptable and will be replaced at no additional cost to the owner.

PAINTING

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.1 RELATED DOCUMENTS

A. Drawings and general provisions of the Contract, including General and Supplementary Conditions and Division 01 Specification Sections, apply to this Section.

1.2 SUMMARY

- A. This section includes surface preparation and the application of paint systems on exterior surfaces damaged or exposed during the re-roofing work of this Project.
- B. This section does not include:
 - 1. Painting specified under other sections.
 - Painting of metal surfaces that are pre-finished and are intended to remain as factory finished and all plated metals intended to remain unfinished, except where specifically required herein or as noted on the drawings.
 - 3. Painting of any moving parts of operating units, hinges, valves, operators, linkages, sensing devices, motor shafts, etc., unless specifically noted otherwise.
 - 4. Painting over labels or equipment identification, performance rating, name or nomenclature plates.
 - 5. Painting of any pre-finished wall plates or outlet covers unless specifically noted to match interior or exterior color schemes.
- C. This section includes surface preparation and the application of paint systems on the following substrates:
 - 1. Concrete
 - 2. Concrete masonry units (CMU)
 - 3. Steel (including all exposed-to-view steel framing)
 - 4. Galvanized metal (including all exposed-to-view metal deck and steel roof framing)
 - 5. Wood
 - 6. Gypsum Board

1.3 SUBMITTALS

- A. Product Data: For each type of product indicated.
- B. Samples for Initial Selection: For each type of product indicated.
- C. Samples for Verification: For each type of paint system and each color and gloss of topcoat indicated.
 - 1. Submit samples on rigid backing, 8 inches (200 mm) square.
 - 2. Step coats on samples to show each coat required for system.
 - 3. Label each coat of each sample.
 - 4. Label each sample for location and application area.
- D. Product List: For each product indicated, include the following:
 - 1. Cross-reference to paint system and locations of application areas. Use same designations indicated on Drawings and in schedules.
 - 2. Printout of current Master Painters Institute "MPI Approved Products List" for each product category specified in Part 2, with the proposed product highlighted.

1.4 QUALITY ASSURANCE

- A. MPI Standards:
 - 1. Products: Complying with MPUI standards indicated and listed in "MPI Approved Products List."
 - 2. Preparation and Workmanship: Comply with requirements in "MPI Architectural Painting Specification Manual" for products and paint systems indicated.
- B. Mockups: Apply benchmark samples of each paint system indicated and each color and finish selected to verify preliminary selections made under sample submittals and to demonstrate aesthetic effects and set quality standards for materials and execution.

- 1. Architect will select one surface to represent surfaces and conditions for application of each paint system specified in Part 3.
 - a. Wall and Ceiling Surfaces: Provide samples of at least 100 sq. ft.
 - b. Vertical and Horizontal Surfaces: Provide samples of at least 100 sq. ft.
 - c. Other Items: Architect will designate items or areas required.
- 2. Apply each benchmark samples after permanent lighting and other environmental services have been activated.
- 3. Final approval of color selection will be based on benchmark samples.
 - a. If preliminary color selections are not approved, apply up to four (4) additional benchmark samples of additional colors selected by Architect at no added cost to Owner.

C. Qualifications of Workmen:

- Provide at least one person who shall be present at all times during the execution of the work of this Section, who shall be thoroughly familiar with the specified requirements and the materials and methods needed for their execution, and who shall direct all work performed under them.
- Provide adequate numbers of workmen skilled in the necessary crafts and informed of the methods and materials to be used.
- 3. In acceptance or rejection of the work of this Section, the Architect will make no exception for the lack of skill on the part of the workmen.

1.5 DELIVERY, STORAGE AND HANDLING

- A. Store materials not in use in tightly covered containers in well-ventilated area with ambient temperatures continuously maintained at not less than 45° F.
 - 1. Maintain containers in clean condition, free of foreign materials and residue.
 - 2. Remove rags and waste from storage areas daily.

1.6 PROJECT CONDITIONS

- A. Apply paints only when temperature of surfaces to be painted and ambient air temperatures are between 50°F and 95°F.
- B. Do not apply paints in snow, rain, fog or mist; when relative humidity exceeds 85%; at temperatures less than 5°F (3°C) above dew point; or to damp or wet surfaces.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

2.1 MANUFACTURERS

- A. Available Manufacturers: Subject to compliance with requirements, manufacturers offering products that may be incorporated into the Work include, but are not limited to, the following:
 - 1. Sherwin-Williams Company (basis of design and paint systems)
 - 2. Benjamin Moore & Co.
 - ICI Paints
 - 4. Porter Paints
 - 5. PPG Architectural Finishes
 - 6. Ospho by The Skybryte Co.

2.2 PAINT, GENERAL

- A. Material Compatibility:
 - 1. Provide materials for use within each paint system that are compatible with one another and substrates indicated, under conditions of service and application as demonstrated by manufacturer, based on testing and field experience.
 - 2. For each coat in a paint system, provide products recommended in writing by manufacturers of topcoat for use in paint system and on substrate indicated.
- B. Colors: As selected by Architect from manufacturer's full range.

PART 3 - EXECUTION

3.1 EXAMINATION

- A. Examine substrates and conditions, with Applicator present, for compliance with requirements for maximum moisture content and other conditions affecting performance of work.
- B. Maximum Moisture Content of Substrates: When measured with an electronic moisture meter as follows:
 - 1. Concrete: 12%
 - 2. Masonry (Clay and CMU): 12%
 - 3. Wood: 15% 4. Plaster: 12%
 - 5. Gypsum Board: 12%
- C. Verify suitability of substrates, including surface conditions and compatibility with existing finishes and primers.
- D. Begin coating application only after unsatisfactory conditions have been corrected and surfaces are dry.
 - 1. Beginning coating application constitutes Contractor's acceptance of substrates and conditions.

3.2 PREPARATION

- A. Comply with manufacturer's written instructions and recommendations in "MPI Architectural Painting Specification Manual" applicable to substrates and paint systems indicated.
- B. Remove plates, machined surfaces, and similar items already in place that are not to be painted. If removal is impractical or impossible because of size or weight of item, provide surface-applied protection before surface preparation and painting.
 - 1. After completing painting operations, use workers skilled in the trades involved to reinstall items that were removed. Remove surface-applied protection, if any.
 - 2. Do not paint over labels of independent testing agencies or equipment name, identification, performance rating, or nomenclature plates.
- C. Clean the substrates of substances that could impair the bond of paints, including dirt, oil, grease, and incompatible paints and encapsulates.
 - 1. Remove incompatible primers and re-prime substrate with compatible primers as required to produce paint systems indicated.
- D. Concrete Substrates: Remove release agents, curing compounds, efflorescence and chalk. Do not paint surfaces if moisture content or alkalinity of surfaces to be painted exceeds that permitted in manufacturer's written instructions.
- E. Concrete Masonry Substrates: Remove efflorescence and chalk. Do not paint surfaces if moisture content or alkalinity of surfaces to be painted exceeds that permitted in manufacturer's written instructions.
- F. Steel Substrates: Remove rust and loose mill scale. Clean using methods recommended in writing by paint manufacturer.
- G. Galvanized-Metal Substrates: Remove grease and oil residue from galvanized sheet metal fabricated from coil stock by mechanical methods to produce clean, lightly etched surfaces that promote adhesion of subsequently applied paints.
- H. Aluminum Substrates: Remove surface oxidation.
- I. Wood Substrates:
 - 1. Scrape and clean knots and apply coat of knot sealer before applying primer.
 - 2. Sand surfaces that will be exposed to view and dust off.
 - 3. Prime edges, ends, faces, undersides, and backsides of wood.
 - 4. After priming, fill holes and imperfections in the finish surfaces with putty or plastic wood filler. Sand smooth when dried.

- J. Gypsum Board Substrates: Do not begin paint application until finishing compound is dry and sanded smooth.
- K. Plaster Substrates: Do not begin paint application until plaster is fully cured and dry.
- L. Finish Wood and Fiber Reinforced Plastic Substrates:
 - 1. Prepare surfaces and paint materials as recommended by the paint manufacturer.
 - 2. Correct dents and gouges before applying primer.
 - 3. Prime edges, ends, faces, undersides and backsides.
 - 4. After priming, fill holes and imperfections in the finish surfaces with filler. Sand smooth when dried.

3.3 APPLICATION

- A. Apply paints according to manufacturer's written instructions.
 - 1. Use applicators and techniques suited for paint and substrate indicated.
 - 2. Paint surfaces behind movable items same as similar exposed surfaces. Before final installation, paint surfaces behind permanently fixed items with prime coat only.
- B. Tint each undercoat a lighter shade to facilitate identification of each coat if multiple coats of same material are to be applied. Tine undercoats to match color of topcoat, but provide sufficient difference in shade of undercoats to distinguish each separate coat.
- C. If undercoats or other conditions show through topcoat, apply additional coats until cured film has a uniform paint finish, color and appearance.
- D. Apply paints to produce surface films without cloudiness, spotting, holidays, laps, brush marks, roller tracks, runs, sags, ropiness, or other surface imperfections. Cut in sharp lines and color breaks.

3.4 FIELD QUALITY CONTROL

- A. Testing of Paint Materials: Owner reserves the right to invoke the following procedure at any time and as often as Owner deems necessary during the period when paints are being applied:
 - 1. Testing agency will perform tests for compliance of paint materials with product requirements.
 - 2. Owner may direct Contractor to stop applying paints if test results show materials being used do not comply with product requirements. Contractor shall remove non-complying paint materials from the Project site, pay for testing and re-paint surfaces painted with rejected materials. Contractor will be required to remove rejected materials from previously painted surfaces if, on repainting with complying materials, the two paints are incompatible.

3.5 FIELD QUALITY CONTROL

- A. Testing of Paint Materials: Owner reserves the right to invoke the following procedure at any time and as often as Owner deems necessary during the period when paints are being applied:
- B. After completing paint application, clean spattered surfaces. Remove spattered paints by washing, scraping or other methods. Do not scratch or damage adjacent surfaces.
- C. Protect work of other trades against damage from paint application. Correct damage to work of other trades by cleaning, repairing and refinishing as approved by Architect, and leave in an undamaged condition.
- D. At completion of construction activities of other trades, touch up and restore damaged or defaced painted surfaces.

RESIDENTIAL EQUIPMENT

- A. General: Extent of residential equipment required is indicated on drawings. Type of residential equipment required includes the following:
 - 1. Existing range hoods to be cleaned, reinstalled and re-connected
 - 2. Existing kitchen ranges shall be cleaned, reinstalled and re-connected.
- B. Electrical services and connections: Re-connect the range hoods to the existing electric service.
- C. Certification Labels: Provide all connection equipment required which complies with standards and bears certification labels as follows:
 - 1. UL Standards: Provide residential equipment with UL labels.
 - 2. ANSI Standards: Provide gas-burning residential equipment with American Gas Association (AGA) seal of approval, complying with ANSI Z21 Series.
- D. Range Hoods: Reinstall existing.
- E. Re-installation: Comply with manufacturer's instructions and recommendations.
- F. Freestanding Equipment: Place units in final locations after finishes have been completed in each area. Verify clearances are adequate for proper operation of equipment.
- G. Utilities: Contractor shall protect the existing utilities.
- H. Testing: Test each item of residential equipment to verify proper operation. Report any non-working equipment to the PHA.
- I. Accessories: Verify that accessory items required have been finished and installed.
- J. Cleaning: Leave units in clean condition, ready for operation.

RESIDENTIAL CABINETS

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.1 SUMMARY

- A. Section includes:
 - HUD Severe Use:
 - a. Kitchen countertops
 - b. Bathroom vanity cabinets and countertops
 - c. Existing kitchen wall and base cabinets shall be removed, cleaned, refinished and reinstalled.

1.2 REFERENCES

- A. Reference Standards: Comply with the following:
 - Cabinets:
 - a. HUD Minimum Property Standards for Housing, 1984 Edition (with changes).
 - b. ANSI/KCMA A161.1 Recommended Performance and Construction Standards for Kitchen and Vanity Cabinets, 1990.
 - c. Plywood:
 - 1) ANSI/HPMA HP Hardwood and Decorative Plywood, 1983
 - 2) US Product Standard PS 1-83 Softwood Plywood, Construction and Industrial
 - d. Particleboard: ANSI A208.1 Particleboard, Mat-Formed Wood, 1989
 - e. Pressure Treated Lumber: AWPA Standard C2 Lumber, Timbers, Bridge Ties and Mine Ties Preservative Treatment by Pressure Processes, 1992
 - 2. Cabinet Hardware: ANSI/BHMA A156.9 Cabinet Hardware, 1988
 - 3. Plastic Laminate Countertops: ANSI A161.2 Performance Standards for Fabricated High Pressure Decorative Laminate Countertops, 1979 (R1987)
 - a. Plastic Laminate: NEMA Standards Publication No. LD 3 High-Pressure Decorative Laminates, 1991
 - Joint Sealant:
 - a. Federal Specification (FS) TT-S-001543A Sealant Compound: Silicone Rubber Base (For Caulking, Sealing and Glazing in Buildings and other Structures)
 - b. ASTM C920 Elastomeric Joint Sealants
 - 5. Certification:
 - a. ANSI Z34.1 Certification, Third-Party Certification Program, 1987

1.3 SYSTEM DESCRIPTION

- A. Performance Requirements:
 - 1. Comply with tests procedures and required performances of ANSI/KCMA A161.1
 - a. Tests: Performed on standard 760mm (30") wall and base cabinets
 - 2. Drawers and Drawer Hardware for HUD Severe Use: Apply 330 N (75 lb.) point load to exterior edge of drawer extended 150 mm (6") from its closed position for a period of 15 minutes.
 - a. Successful Test: No failure in any part of drawer assembly or operating system and drawer remain operable with no mechanical interference with any part of cabinet assembly.

1.4 SUBMITTALS

- A. Product Data: Submit product data for cabinets and countertops to Architect.
- B. Shop Drawings: Submit shop drawings for cabinets and countertops to Architect.
- C. Samples: Submit samples of the following to Architect for selection:
 - 1. Wood veneers with stain finishes
 - 2. Plastic laminate patterns and colors
- D. Quality Assurance/Control Submittals: Submit the following to Architect:
 - 1. Certificates: Manufacturer's written certification that cabinets and countertops meet or exceed specified requirements.

1.5 QUALITY ASSURANCE

A. Certifications:

- 1. Cabinets: Continuously tested, certified and display label or seal of Kitchen Cabinet Manufacturer's Associations (KCMA)
 - HUD Severe Use Cabinets: Bear KCMA Certification Seal and additional label indicating conformance to HUD Severe Use specifications.

1.6 DELIVERY, STORAGE AND HANDLING

- A. Packing, Shipping, Handling, and Unloading:
 - 1. Do not deliver cabinets until building or storage area is enclosed and sufficiently dry to prevent damage from excessive changes in moisture content.
 - 2. Protect casework and equipment from damage during delivery, storage, installation and subsequent building operations.

1.7 PROJECT CONDITIONS

- A. Field Measurements: Field measure spaces to receive cabinets before beginning fabrications.
 - 1. Cabinets: Conform to building lines and neatly fitted around openings, pipes and other obstructions.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

2.1 HUD SEVERE USE CABINETS

- A. Wall and Base Cabinets: Comply with requirements under Cabinets General above.
 - 1. Construct to produce sturdy and rigid construction
 - 2. Wall and Base Cabinets and Countertops: Constructed of solid lumber and/or exterior grade plywood with wood veneer core.
 - a. Particleboard, flakeboard, fiberboard, or hardboard not allowed
 - 3. Base Cabinets:
 - a. Parts Touching Floor: Pressure treated solid lumber
 - b. Provide integral toe space of minimum 75 mm (3") by 75 mm (3")
 - c. Toe Kicks: 19.1 mm (3/4") net thickness, pressure treated solid lumber.
- B. Face Frames: 19.1 mm (3/4") net thick kiln dried solid hardwood, free of knots and selected for light uniform color suitable for stain finish.
 - 1. Frames: Mortised and tenoned, dovetailed or doweled, glued and stapled under pressure and filled and sanded.
 - 2. Vertical End Members (Stiles): Minimum 38 mm (1-1/2") net width.
 - 3. Vertical Center Members between Doors and Drawers (Mulls): Minimum 50 mm (2") net width
 - 4. Horizontal Members (Rails): 44 mm (1-3/4") net width
 - 5. Stiles and Top and Bottom Rails: Dadoed to receive ends, bottoms and tops

C. Doors and Door Hardware:

- 1. Doors: 19.1 mm (3/4") thick 7-ply A-D grade exterior hardwood plywood with no more than one veneer joint on face.
- 2. Edges: Reversed shaped to form continuous finger grip around sides.
- 3. Edges: Filled and sanded smooth prior to finish.
- 4. Edges: May be treated with hot foil transfer
- 5. Edges: May be covered with 9.5 mm (3/8") by 19.1 mm (3/4") reverse shaped hardwood bands.
- 6. Acceptable Hardwoods: Beech, birch, maple or oak suitable for stain finish.
- 7. Hinges: Manufacturer's standard heavy duty with self closing feature, face mount or semiconcealed type.

D. Drawers and Drawer Hardware:

- 1. Fronts Construction and Finish: Same as Doors
- 2. Side and Back: Minimum 17.4 mm (11/16") net thickness Grade C solid lumber with sides dovetailed or mortised and tenoned fronts.
- 3. Backs: Dadoed into sides.
- 4. Bottoms: Minimum 6.4 mm (1/4") softwood or hardwood exterior plywood let into fronts, sides and back.
- 5. Drawer Parts: Glued and nailed or strapped together

- 6. Mount drawers on metal side rails with 34 kg (75 lb.) loading capacity
- 7. Cabinet Members or Guides: Attached at rear to 19.1 mm (3/4") solid lumber hanging rail or 12.7 mm (1/2") solid lumber or plywood block which is attached to 19.1 mm (3/4") solid lumber hanging rail by use of metal rear mount brackets or by continuous wraparound method.
- E. Installation Cleats: Minimum 19.1 mm (3/4") by 89 mm (3-1/2") net thickness S4S, Grade C, kiln dried solid lumber, dodoes to receive bottoms and tops.
 - 1. Provide two horizontal members running full length of cabinet top and bottom.
 - 2. Base Cabinets with Drawers: Side mount drawer slide bracket(s) rigidly attached to 12.7 mm (1/2") thick plywood or wood block which is rigidly attached to top cleat. See "Drawers" paragraph above for alternate mounting.

F. End Panels:

- Exposed End Panels: Minimum 2-2 Grade, 12.7 mm (1/2") thick 5-ply exterior hardwood plywood, selected for light uniform color.
- 2. Ends Not Exposed: May be 12.7 mm (1/2") exterior softwood plywood, Grade A-D, with Grade A side to inside of cabinet.
- 3. Ends: Dadoed minimum of 6 mm (1/4") deep to receive shelves, bottoms and tops.
- 4. Ends: Let into dado in face frame.
- 5. Base Cabinet End Panels: Stop 89 mm (3-1/2") above floor and supported by 19.1 mm (3/4") by 89 mm (3-1/2") pressure treated solid lumber member.
- G. Shelves and Wall Cabinet Bottoms: 12.7 mm (1/2") thick Grade 2-2 exterior hardwood plywood of Grade A-D exterior softwood plywood with wood banded front edge or 19.1 mm (3/4") net thickness solid lumber.
 - 1. Shelves: Let into dadoes of end panels and braced behind mulls
 - 2. Bottoms: Let into (rabbet or dado, manufacturer's choice) ends, cleats and front frames
 - 3. Shelves and Bottoms: Glued and stapled
 - 4. Optional Adjustable Shelves: 19.1 mm (3/4") thick Grade 2-2 exterior hardwood plywood of Grade A-D exterior softwood plywood with wood banded front edge or 19.1 mm (3/4") net thickness solid lumber.
 - Shelves: Support as necessary to comply with shelf deflection provisions of ANSI/KCMA A161.1
 - b. Shelves: When loaded at 73.3 kg/sq m (15 PSF) for seven days shall not deflect more than 1.6 mm (1/16") per 305 mm (linear foot) between supports.
 - c. Maximum Deflection: 6.4 mm (¼") between supports.
- H. Backs: Provide on cabinets (optional on sink bases depending on job conditions).
 - Minimum 6.4 mm (1/4") thick Grade 2-2 exterior hardwood plywood of Grade A-D exterior softwood plywood
 - 2. Securely glued and stapled to ends, 89 mm (3 1/2") cleats and shelves of cabinet
 - 3. May be let into dado of ends and cleats or may be applied flush with ends and cleats.
- I. Base Bottoms: 12.7 mm (1/2") thick Grade 2-2 exterior hardwood plywood of Grade A-D exterior softwood plywood
 - 1. Let into (rabbet or dado, manufacturer's choice) end panels, front rails and installation cleats
 - 2. Supported by 19.1 mm (3/4") net thickness pressure treated solid lumber braces 610 mm (24") OC running front to rear of cabinet and resting on finished floor

2.2 COUNTERTOPS

- A. Solid Surface Countertops:
 - 1. Type: Quartz
 - 2. Perimeter of Bottom of Countertops and Sink Cut-outs: Sealed with varnish.

2.3 SOURCE QUALITY CONTROL

A. Testing: Performed under Third Party Administrator who is in compliance with ANSI Z34.1

PART 3 - EXECUTION

3.1 EXAMINATION

A. Site Verification of Conditions:

- 1. Existing Conditions: Examine spaces to verify that they are ready to receive cabinets and countertops.
- 2. Verify grounds, blocking and supports for proper location and support of cabinets before beginning installation. Verify location of mechanical and electrical rough-ins to assure proper match with installed equipment.
- 3. Survey each kitchen and bath to verify dimensions for cabinets and countertops.

PLUMBING

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.1 RELATED DOCUMENTS

A. Drawings and general provisions of Contract, including General and Special Conditions and Division-1 Specification sections, apply to work of this section.

1.2 SCOPE

- A. The work pertaining to this Division occurs within the confines of the building line, and within a boundary outside of the building line for a distance of five (5) feet, measured normal to the building line, or as indicated on the drawings.
- B. Alternates mayor may not substantially change scope and general character of the work; and must not be confused with "change orders", "substitutions", and other similar provisions.

1.3 RELATION TO OTHER WORK

A. Refer to the section, "General Mechanical Provisions", for related requirements. Refer to other sections of Division 15 and to all other applicable portions of the Drawings and Specifications.

1.4 SUBMITIALS

A. Submit manufacturer's data for review before any work commences.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

2.1 PIPING SPECIALTIES

- A. Where it is desirable or necessary to support the pipe hangers to concrete, inserts shall be placed in the forms by the Mechanical Contractor prior to the time concrete is poured.
- B. Lead tamp-ins may be used when installed in a concrete or masonry wall or other like vertical surface to support a vertical hanger. Lead tamp-ins will not be permitted to support hangers to the underside of concrete slab.
- C. For parallel runs of above ground suspended piping, an acceptable trapeze-type hanger may be used. Provide permanent, non-conductive type wrapping between copper pipe and steel trapeze hangers.
- D. Pipes passing through walls, floors shall have sleeves of the same materials as the pipe. Sleeves shall allow insulated pipes to pass without changing the insulation thickness. Clearance around sleeves shall be packed with glass fiber after completion of pipe work. Sleeves in all floor slabs except slabs on grade shall have pipe sleeves extended 1 inch above finish floor to prevent water from running through sleeves to area below. Make watertight, caulk with sealant around each sleeve.

PART 3 - EXECUTION

3.1 INSTALLATION

- A. The contractor shall furnish all labor, materials, *including gases* equipment and instruments required to conduct tests of piping systems. Tests shall be as herein called for.
- B. PVC piping, fittings and other PVC materials shall not be installed in air conditioning plenums or equipment rooms used as air conditioning plenums.
- C. Tests shall be conducted, and the inspection of the piping shall be made in the presence of the Architect and/or Engineers.
- D. Material and/or joints found defective shall be replaced and/or corrected and additional tests shall be conducted after correction of work.

3.2 PIPE SIZING, DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS

- A. It is intended that work covered by these specifications and drawings include everything requisite and necessary to make the various systems complete and operative, irrespective of whether or not every item is specifically provided for. Any omission of direct reference herein to any essential item shall not excuse contractor from complying with the above intent.
- B. Figured dimensions supersede scaled ones. Contractor shall take no advantage of and shall promptly call the Owner's Representative's attention to any error, omission or inconsistency in specifications and drawings.
- C. Special attention is directed to requirements that equipment and materials stated in specifications and/or indicated on drawings shall be furnished, except if otherwise noted, completely installed, adjusted and left in safe and satisfactory operating condition. Accessories, appliances and connections necessary for operation of equipment shall be provided to satisfaction of the Owner's Representative.
- D. Materials, apparatus or equipment specified or otherwise provided for on drawings, addenda, or change orders issued subsequent to award of contract shall be same brand, type, quality and character originally specified unless otherwise provided.
- E. Layout of equipment, accessories, specialties and suspended, concealed or exposed piping systems are diagrammatic unless dimensioned. In preparing shop drawings, contractor shall check project conditions before installing work. If there are any interferences or conflicts, they shall be called to attention of the Owner's Representative immediately for clarification.
- F. The drawings indicate required size and points of termination of pipes and ducts and suggest proper routes to conform to structure, avoid obstructions and preserve clearances. However, it is not intended that drawings indicate all necessary offsets, and it shall be the work of this contractor to make the installation in such a manner as to conform to structure, avoid obstructions, preserve headroom and keep openings and passageways clear, without further obstruction or cost to the Owner.
- G. Shop drawings shall be furnished by this contractor, indicating all changes to meet space requirements, code requirements and as necessary to resolve all space conflicts.
- H. It is intended that all apparatus be located symmetrical with architectural elements and shall be installed at exact height and locations as shown on the architectural drawings. Refer to architectural details in completing and correlating work.
- I. The contractor shall fully inform himself regarding any and all peculiarities and limitations of the spaces available for the installation of all work and materials furnished and installed under the contract prior to submitting his bid. He shall exercise due and particular caution to determine that all parts of his work are made quickly and easily accessible.
- J. The contractor shall carefully examine any existing conditions, existing piping and ducts and premises and compare the drawing with the existing conditions prior to submitting his bid.
- K. It cannot be too strongly emphasized that, except for work specifically excluded herein, every system shall be turned over to the Owner installed completed, with components, ready for normal operation.
- L. In addition to work shown on mechanical drawings, see Architectural Drawings for existing work to be removed, relocated and/or modified. Modify existing systems by re-routing for systems to remain or remove the abandoned systems as required to accommodate new general construction, plumbing, electrical and mechanical work.
- M. Pipe sizes shall be minimum as allowed by local codes or as shown on the drawings, whichever is larger.